jerEizEhx (EE ) BRA S
CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Stock Code : 00884

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 # %k

‘;wmyML
| : e~
I

&

B -.:"‘.:I 4
'ﬂl' nW ﬁ‘* e

For A Better Life
Aibvies RETEE



HEH

Cover

1 L8 fBIE o TR
Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International

3 &N JBIE o BAEER

Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town

2 UM fEE o JBIERF

Hangzhou Henderson CIFI Palace

4 JbT JBIE e fHR
Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden



NG

NAEIER
TERMERHR
RIREE

EEHRE

B R S AT
EENEREEAEGHN

G RERE
FHQRE
et Gk

I OfF

RFEMGHE

H %k
CONTENTS

N I - N N

25
57

65
80
95
97

98
100
102
104

232

Company Profile

Corporate Information

Major Property Projects

Performance Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management

Corporate Governance Report
Directors’ Report
Independent Auditor’'s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Five Years' Financial Summary



A W) i
Company Profile

BAREE

TR (RE) AR AR (B 3K A
RNAED@ECR LR TERREAR
KA (THEDREFHERSE - Fit
ERBELMEEEES o HAFIR ABHES
RIERERBREENSHELE -
TR APT P R R B0 36 7% SR S BRI S R B B
HEMISHZRERER 2

BMEER2E(MMEBEMRE - WEFR
BH—4& MAEGKRREIHZ_GN=
ST ST B E R AT o B APIR) T
BUEDE - BARERMNARKRIRRER
RES - RPN TPENMEIEE - 51
REZEXTERE: R=ZA(BEZLE -
M AR BIIREE) R
8 (BEILR - KE - LB RBY) &
FRB(BEEEE - RARRE) - B
MR ERREEE BEEA B
REREZEBEYERE RZT—=F
TZA=+—8 " BMEEEFTREWN
EEETE D B4 59,200,000 F 5K K
7,600,000 75 K H) M FEE ©

EEEMFEHRETE  ZME2FIRN
FRER/NFPE EERUERFARR
BREENSRENTEEYE - &8
MERBTE > RPETEFENFAEE
SRR ABYE - 1o RMPEBEH
MYMEEE AR RBMOEERE,REMR
MEER R -

ABOUT CIFI

Headquartered in Shanghai, CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI" or
the “Company”) is engaged in the property development, property
investment and property management business in the People's
Republic of China ("PRC" or “China”). We are a strategy-oriented
and shareholder value-focused real estate enterprise. We develop our
business strategies in line with government policies related to the real
estate sector in China.

We have achieved a nationwide geographical coverage and a strong
presence in first-tier cities, second- and third-tier cities with high
growth potential in China. Our business operations are diversified in
terms of geographic locations which facilitate our future expansion.
We have property projects in three geographic regions in the PRC:
the Yangtze River Delta (covering Shanghai, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Hefei,
Zhenjiang and Jiaxing), the Pan Bohai Rim (covering Beijing, Tianjin,
Shenyang and Langfang) and the Central Western Region (covering
Chongging, Changsha and Wuhan). Our development projects
cover various properties types like residential, office and integrated
commercial complexes. As at 31 December 2013, we had a land bank
with total and attributable GFA of approximately 9.2 million sg.m. and
7.6 million sg.m. respectively.

For our residential property development, we principally focus on
developing high quality, mass market residential properties with small-
to-medium unit sizes, comfortable living environment and locations
with good public transportation links. For our commercial property
development, we principally focus on developing office properties-
for-sale. Additionally, we provide property management services to
our residential and commercial customers through our own property
management companies.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Nationally, we were awarded as one of the “China Top 100 Real
Estate Developers” from 2006 to 2013 by the Enterprise Research
Institute of Development Research Centre of the State Council, the
Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and the China
Index Academy. These agencies also named us as one of the “Top
10 by Profitability”, “Top 10 by Operating Efficiency” and “Shanghai
Top 10" among the real estate developers in 2013. Leveraging our
effective business model focused on rapid asset turnover, its strong
execution capabilities, as well as business strategies developed in line
with government policies on China’s real estate sector, we are poised
to continue our rapid growth and develop into a renowned nationwide
property developer.

Looking forward, under our missions of “creating value for our
customers” and building “for a better life”, CIF| strives to become a
leading and well-respected real estate enterprise in China.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman)
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Zhong

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. LIN Zhong
Mr. LIN Feng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LO Tai On

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

CIFI Honggiao International

5th Floor, Block 3, Lane 288, Tongxie Road
Changning District

Shanghai

PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 2002-2003, 20th Floor

One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.cifi.com.cn

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LISTING INFORMATION

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 00834)
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Notes 2013 2012 Growth
EEKE Contracted sales
AREELE(ARERGET) Contracted sales (RMB'million) 1 15,319 9,544 60.5%
BREEEEBMBE(FEARXK) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 1,428,300 1,026,200 39.2%
SEBEETHER Contracted ASP (RMB/sg.m.)
(NR#TT/FHXK) 10,725 9,300 15.3%
TEHRKER Selected financial information
BEABANREBET) Recognised revenue (RMB'million) 11,909 8,144 46.2%
ENAREHET) Gross profit (AMB'million) 3,069 1,926 59.4%
FAFE(BEATERE) Profit for the year (including fair value gains)
(AR®BEET) (RMB'million)
— BRI — Including non-controlling interests 2,01 2,021 1.0%
— PR RS RS — Attributable to equity owners 1,894 1,937 2.2%
BOENBARKRET) Core net profit (RMB'million) 2
— B R ER ~ Including non-controlling interests 1,510 915 65.0%
— PR RS E(S — Attributable to equity owners 1,519 2 64.9%
Fix - At the end of year:
WEEANRERET) Total assets (RMB'million) 39,106 26,857 45.6%
RITEH LRSS AREEFET) Bank balances and cash (RMB'million) 3 1183 4,613 55.7%
EREE(ARERET) Total indebtedness (RMB'million) 4 13,374 8,950 49.4%
AnEE(AREEET) Total equity (RMB'million) 9,155 6,941 31.9%
PR R A Equity attributable to equity owners (RMB'million)
(ARBBEET) 8,611 6,550 315%
BisE —E-=f | —E2—_f
Notes 2013 2012
TERMBLLR Selected financial ratios
E S Gross profit margin 25.8% 23.7%
AT B Core net profit margin 5 12.8% 11.3%
BREARETF - AR Eamings per share (basic), RMB cents 3 42
BREAZOETF - AR Core earnings per share (basic), RMB cents 26 20
FHEEREE Average asset turnover ratio 6 53.4% 47.8%
FH R A Bl R Return on average equity 7 20.0% 18.8%
FREYRALE - FFK Net debt-to-equity ratio, at the end of year 8 67.6% 62.5%
MEFHEBRAE - FK Weighted average cost of indebtedness, at the end of year 9 9.2% 10.0%
TEEEHE Selected operating data
THfEE(CEEEE - FHK)  FX Land bank (GFA, sq.m.), at the end of year
— A&t —Total 9,202,900 6,234,400
— FEfh — Attributable 1,580,500 5,898,200
BERNEZEEE(THK)  FR Delivered GFA (sq.m.), during the year
— A&t —Total 1,238,900 734,700
— FEfh — Attributable 1,238,900 734,700
T EEmE New land acquisition (GFA, sq.m.), during the year
(BEEEE - FK) - £/
— A&t —Total 3,775,600 1,487,800
- &l — Attributable 2,658,110 1,335,100

BEER(EE)BRAR | —T—=FF#K
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Notes:

1. Contracted sales includes joint venture sales, but excludes subscribed
contract values.

2. Core net profit excludes fair value changes, non-cash expenses relating to
share option grants, net of deferred taxes.

3. Bank balances and cash include restricted cash and pledged bank deposits.

4. Total indebtedness includes bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
trust and other loans related derivatives.

5. Core net profit margin is calculated based on core net profit attributable to
equity owners over total recognised revenue.

6. The calculation of average asset turnover ratio is based on contracted sales
divided by average total assets less investment properties during each
financial year.

7. The calculation of return on average equity is based on our core net profit
attributable to equity owners (excluding fair value gains) divided by average
equity attributable to equity owners for each financial year.

8. Net debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by the Group’s total indebtedness
(including bank and other borrowings, senior notes, and trust and other
loans related derivatives) under IFRS less bank balances and cash (including
restricted cash and pledged bank deposits) as a percentage of total equity
at the end of each period.

9. Weighted average cost of indebtedness is the weighted average of interest
costs of all bank and other borrowings and senior notes outstanding as at
the end of each period.

The expression “we”, “us” and “our Company” may be used to refer to our
Company or our Group as the context may require.

v

References to our “land bank”, “development projects”,
or “projects”
obtained land-use rights and property projects for which we have not obtained

property projects”
refer to our property projects with land for which we have

land-use rights but have entered into the land grant contracts or received
successful tender auction confirmations as at the relevant dates.

The site area information for an entire project is based on the relevant land use
rights certificates, land grant contracts or tender documents, depending on
which documents are available. If more than one document is available, such
information is based on the most recent document available.

The figures for GFA are based on figures provided in or estimates based on the
relevant governmental documents, such as the property ownership certificate,
the construction work planning permit, the pre-sale permit, the construction
land planning permit or the land use rights certificate.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Dear shareholders:

| am pleased to present to you the business review and outlook of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended payment of a final dividend of HK 7
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013. The total
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
HK$421.9 million (approximately RMB333.3 million), representing
a dividend payout ratio of approximately 22% of the core net profit
attributable to equity owners.

RESULTS

The year 2013 represented a new chapter for the Group's
development. During the year, we continued to grow and improve
every aspect of our business at a faster pace than the industry
average. Despite the challenges when we advanced within the
highly competitive China real estate industry, CIFI had successfully
completed the year with fruitful rewards and encouragements.

In the past year, the Group successfully delivered the spectacular
results for the first financial year after its initial public offering (“IPO").
We have gained respects and recognitions by the capital markets
through our balanced financials and high growth potential.

In 2013,

o Our sales were strong, outperforming our stated contracted
sales targets;

o In addition to our rapid growth, we improved our profit margins;

o We continued to expand in the first- and second-tier cities
where we have coverage. We strategically ventured into three
new cities: Hangzhou, Wuhan and Shenyang;

° We expanded our land bank by acquiring 21 high quality new

projects;

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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RESULTS (Continued)
o We co-operated with leading developers within the industry,
forming strategic joint ventures for developing new projects;

o We sustained our prudent financial management, improved our
debt structure and lowered our financing costs;

o We emphasised on high asset turnover, implemented fast
project development and enhanced shareholder returns;

o We adopted customer-oriented approach to emphasise their
needs on products and services and to improve construction
quality.

In 2013, the Group sustained its high growth and further achieved
record highs in terms of sales and profit. In 2013, the Group achieved
contracted sales of RMB15.32 billion, representing a significant
increase of 60.5% over RMB9.54 billion in the previous year and
surpassing the Group's initial yearly contracted sales target of
RMB12.5 billion set early in the year as well as the revised-up sales
contracted target of RMB14.0 billion in the middle of the year. In
2013, recognised revenue was RMB11,909.2 million, representing a
significant increase of 46.2% over RMB8,143.9 million in the previous
year. The Group's core net profit attributable to equity owners
increased by 65.0% to RMB1,518.8 million in 2013 from RMB920.6
million in 2012.

The Group's gross profit margin and core net profit margin were
25.8% and 12.8% respectively in 2013, improved from 23.7% and
11.3%, respectively in 2012. The Group delivered a core return on
average equity of 20.0% in 2013, surpassing the 18.8% achieved in
2012.
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REVIEW OF 2013

Market review

Since the beginning of 2013, transaction volumes and prices for
commodity housing in China experienced strong recovery from the
previous year, with strong sales and noticeable increases in property
prices being reported in key first- and second-tier cities.

In order to stabilise the real estate market, the State Council of China
promulgated the New Five Measures of the State Council in early
2013 to curb price growth and reiterated its austerity measures to the
real estate sector. In the fourth quarter of 2013, local governments of
all first-tier cities and a number of second- and third-tier cities further
introduced or reiterated tightening measures in the property market.
Overall, these government measures are principally not new but rather
mainly a reiteration or slight strengthening and/or stricter enforcement
of tightening measures that have been introduced in the past.

Notwithstanding these policies, homebuyers have already adapted to
the continued regulatory measures and end-users have been driving
the demand and transaction prices for the primary market property
sales. According to China National Bureau of Statistics, sales of
commodity properties in 2013 surpassed RMB8.14 trillion, increased
by 26.3% compared to 2012. Based on the official sales price index
released by China National Bureau of Statistics, sales price of newly
constructed residential commodity properties in December 2013
climbed over 20% year-on-year in all four first-tier cities in China, and
climbed over 10% year-on-year in most of the second-tier cities where
the Group have operations.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Sales performance

Benefitting from the massive increase in saleable resources, the
Group’s contracted sales and contracted GFA achieved record highs
in 2013. During the year, the Group's contracted sales and contracted
GFA reached RMB15,318.6 million and 1,428,300 sg.m. respectively,
representing year-on-year growth of 60.5% and 39.2% respectively.
Over 94% of the Group's contracted sales in 2013 were derived from
first- and second-tier cities. Over 77.5% of the Group's contracted
sales in 2013 were from residential projects, while the rest of 22.5%
were from office projects. Cash collection from property sales during
the year amounted to RMB13,680.9 million, representing a ratio of
89% of yearly contracted sales.

The Group’s contracted sales in 2013 were dispersed among 42
projects in 10 cities. During the year, the Group launched pre-sale of
12 new projects which started pre-sale in 2013 including: Shanghai
CIFI City, Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion, Shanghai CIFI Samite Life,
Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion Usonian City Villa, Suzhou CIFI Private
Mansion, Suzhou CIFI Elegant City, Suzhou CIFI Sunny Life, Beijing
CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden, Beijing CIFI The Education Park,
Tianjin CIFI Paradise Bay, Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion and Chongging
CIFI Purple City. The two Hangzhou new projects started pre-sale in
the last few days before the year-end.

CIFI was ranked 32nd and 36th nationally in terms of contracted GFA
sold and contracted sales amount respectively in 2013 according to
the “Top 50 Real Estate Enterprise Property Developers by Sales
in the First Half of 2013" jointly published by China Real Estate
Information Corporation and China Real Estate Appraisal Center.

Profit margin improvement

In addition to the Group’s strong growth in sales, the Group also
improved its profit margins. The recovery of the Group’s profit margins
will be sustained and will be primarily driven by (1) higher proportion
of recognised revenue from sales of office projects, which generally
have higher gross profit margin compared to mass market residential
projects; (2) better profit margins from new projects due to higher
selling prices versus reasonable land prices; and (3) more efficient
selling and general administrative expenses as well as lower interest
cost as a percentage of sales.



£ E 8

Chairman’s Statement

—E-=—FOEmw)

T bR EE
AEBREEMESILESELENLT
WET - AR —=F5RHEE
EREMEEEFRAINHRERA - &
EERBEGHEE LA AFEERIE
HERAHEEER - T NEBEKI
DEHTHWEERN T —=F ¥ F#
T BB SENBLIE -

Z!SEEE’\ T-=FNLREAAT
ASE  (WREPFREUREH R KL
AR %%ﬁ% BB R AR
R - QEBRERMEHEEREN

— R R AR TR IR - W RTIE = {E
e e N BUERROLES ¢ (3)
REmBPRRREE  EBR/F/IP
HHRZRFTEELEERRAE (1)
HEE AR ST ORI E B RIERR
R A ELEARS W BHAEE
KEMAAZRE  BEAREMLNHA
B E R MR ERBETIREA(E -

FR - $%l =R 31 B I\ I
& &8 Jdbm - iw‘ﬂ%ﬁ
B -RARBREBA2IEHIER @ 4
REEEEBERELREEERRES Wﬁ%
3,800,000 F 75 K K& #J /2,700,000 F 75
Ko REBEEEREE T H BB RED
A AR#10,771,600,0007T °

BEASEEGERENEEREME
EWERE —S—=FENtinkEYF
HAN BETEHARKAREAL0507T  F
N AEEF T KB REEREES
WE M4 A ARS,600,000,0007T °

RZF-—=F+ZA=1+—8 4%
EmtuEREEeREERSENOR
9,200,000F 757K + & (5 S E AL

57,600,000 FK - RZE—=F+=
B=+—H LTHHENFEHYEMKAR

BAEBELEETDENMELKATE
B EEFFEFARAREE2,9007T -

REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Land acquisition

The Group always adheres to a systematic and disciplined land
acquisition approach. Due to its overwhelming contracted sales and
strong cash inflow from property sales achieved in 2013, the Group
took a proactive approach in land bank replenishment to provide
sufficient saleable resources for sustainable growth. The majority of
the Group's land acquisitions during the year were transacted in the
first half of 2013 when land transaction prices were still reasonable.

The Group's land acquisitions in 2013 were characterised by (1) higher
quality, better locations and larger sites in top notch first- and second-
tier cities in China; (2) expansion mainly in the first- and second-tier
cities where we have coverage, with new penetration into three new
second-tier cities: Hangzhou, Wuhan and Shenyang; (3) targeting
end-users demand with primarily mass market residential properties
with small-to-medium unit sizes and office properties for sale; (4)
attractive estimated profit margins using conservative future average
selling price assumptions; and (5) utilising joint venture strategies by
partnering with leading large-scale property developers, as well as
other investment institutions as equity partners.

During the year, the Group purchased 21 new projects in Shanghai,
Suzhou, Hangzhou, Hefei, Jiaxing, Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang,
Chongging, Changsha and Wuhan, with total planned GFA and
attributable GFA of approximately 3.8 million sgq.m. and approximately
2.7 million sg.m., respectively. The corresponding land acquisition
consideration attributable to the Group was approximately
RMB10,771.6 million.

Based on the Group's attributable GFA acquired and the attributable
acquisition considerations, the average cost of land acquisitions in
2013 was approximately RMB4,050 per sgq.m. During the year, the
Group's attributable cash outflow for the land acquisition and related
payments amounted to approximately RMB8,600.0 million.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's land bank amounted to a total
GFA of approximately 9.2 million sq.m., of which attributable GFA
amounted to approximately 7.6 million sg.m. As at 31 December 2013,
the average unit cost of land bank based on the Group's attributable
GFA and attributable cost was approximately RMB2,900 per sg.m.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Joint ventures with renowned property developers

In 2013, the Group successfully executed equity joint ventures with
Greenland Holdings Group Company Limited (“Greenland”) and
Henderson China Properties Limited (“Henderson China”) or their
respective subsidiaries to jointly develop the following newly acquired
projects:

AEERAER

The Group’s

FESELHIER Major joint venture projects equity interest
B4R th: With Greenland:
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Shanghai Huacao Project 50%
Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City 50%
Hefei Baohe District Project 33%

With Henderson China:
Shanghai Honggiao Central Business District Project 50%
Hangzhou Henderson CIFl Palace 49%

The Group's co-operations with renowned property developers
demonstrate their recognitions of CIFl's strong execution abilities and
governance standard. The Group's joint venture strategy diversifies
its financial exposure in the particular projects, enhances its project
branding and management capabilities by benefiting from the
synergies of renowned project partners. In the future, the Group
will strive to reinforce its co-operations with renowned property
developers.

Massive breakthrough achieved in the international capital
markets

Following its IPO in November 2012, the Group has achieved
significant breakthrough in establishing its track records in international
capital markets:

International credit ratings

o At the beginning of 2013, the Company obtained issuer’s credit
ratings of B1 (stable outlook) from Moody's, B+ (stable outlook)
from Standard & Poor's and B+ (positive outlook) from Fitch,
respectively.
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Massive breakthrough achieved in the international capital
markets (Continued)

Offshore bond issues

In April 2013, the Company issued its inaugural 5-year US dollar
senior notes (“US Dollar Bonds Due 2018") with a principal
amount of US$275 million at a coupon rate of 12.25%. In
September 2013, the Group further issued the US Dollar Bonds
Due 2018 with an additional principal amount of US$225 million.
The issue price of the additional issue in September 2013 was
104 % with an effective interest cost of 11.11% per annum.

In January 2014, the Company issued a new 5-year US dollar
senior notes (“US Dollar Bonds Due 2019) with a principal
amount of US$200 million at a coupon rate of 8.875%. The
issue price of USD Dollar Bonds Due 2019 was 99.545% with
an effective interest cost of 8.99%. Within less than a year,
the Company successfully lowered its 5-year US dollar bonds
issue cost from 12.25% to less than 9% per annum, reflecting
market's well acceptance of the Group's credit.

Offshore syndicated loans

In July 2013, the Company signed a syndicated loan facility
("CIFI Syndicated Loan") with a consortium of offshore banks.
The CIFI Syndicated Loan is a US dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual-
currency unsecured term loan facility with an aggregate amount
of approximately US$156.5 million, with final maturity of three
years and interest rate of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 5.65% per
annum.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Massive breakthrough achieved in the international capital
markets (Continued)

Offshore syndicated loans (Continued)

In January 2014, the Group's 50%:50% joint venture companies
with Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited in respect of
Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City project signed onshore
and offshore syndicated loan facilities (“Hangzhou Glorious City
Syndicated Loans"”) with a consortium of offshore and onshore
banks. The Hangzhou Glorious City Syndicated Loans comprise
(i) an offshore US dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual currency term
loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately US$320
million, with a final maturity of three years and interest of
LIBOR or HIBOR plus 4% per annum offshore term loan; and (ii)
an onshore RMB project development loan facility with a facility
amount of RMB1 billion, with final maturity of three years and
interest rate of 106% times PBOC Base Rate per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, offshore financings accounted for
approximately 31% of the Group's total indebtedness. In
future, the Group plans to further increase the proportion of its
offshore financings with a view to achieve longer debt tenures
and lower interest costs.

Equity placement

In October 2013, the Company issued approximately 256.6
million new shares at issue price of HK$1.52 per share with a
consideration of approximately US$50 million to Dalvey Asset
Holding Ltd, a company wholly-owned by RRJ Capital (“RRJ").
The new shares invested by RRJ accounted for approximately
4.3% of the enlarged issued share capital of CIFI. RRJ is a
renowned Asian investment firm which focuses on China and
South-East Asia. RRJ and their founders have in the past made
many successful investments in China. RRJ's investment
underscored its vote of confidence in CIFl and improved CIFI's
institutional shareholders’ base.
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Massive breakthrough achieved in the international capital
markets (Continued)

Successful execution of the Group’'s multiple issues of US dollar
bonds, syndicated loans and equity placement within a short
time frame from its IPO reflected strong recognition of CIFI from
the international capital market and banking industry. The Group
utilised the offshore proceeds from the bond issues, syndicated
loans and equity placement for re-financing of loans, new business
developments and/or general corporate purposes. These new offshore
financings have broadened the Group’s financing platform and
enhanced its debt structure; and provided strong foundation to the
Group's future development.

We believe that the re-rating of the Company’s shares and credits will
be sustained as the Group further grows in terms of revenue scale
and operations coverage.

Healthy financial position with improving debt structure and
lower funding costs

In 2013, the Group enjoyed good operating cash inflow from strong
sales of properties. By utilising joint ventures in land acquisitions, the
Group lowered its financial commitments, while successfully executed
its land banking strategies for growth in saleable resources. As a
result, the Group sustained a healthy financial position with its debt
structure further improved due to lower funding costs, longer duration,
higher proportion of offshore debts and lower proportion of non-bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's:

° net debt-to-equity ratio was 67.6% (31 December 2012:
62.5%);

o weighted average cost of indebtedness based on its
outstanding overall indebtedness decreased to 9.2% (31
December 2012: 10.0%);

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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REVIEW OF 2013 (Continued)

Healthy financial position with improving debt structure and

lower funding costs (Continued)

° proportion of offshore indebtedness out of overall indebtedness
increased to 30.4% (31 December 2012: 4.2%);

o proportion of short-term borrowings out of overall indebtedness
reduced to 21.9% (31 December 2012: 37.7%);

° proportion of onshore non-bank borrowings out of overall
indebtedness reduced to 19.2% (31 December 2012: 34.0%).

Other than balance sheet liabilities, the Group also paid close attention
to off-balance sheet commitments. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had unpaid attributable land considerations of approximately
RMB3,400 million, versus cash-on-hand of approximately RMB7,182.5
million. The Group's debt positions and off-balance sheet
commitments are within a comfortable range for its operations.

Brand building and customer satisfaction

Since three years ago, we have engaged a third-party consultancy
firm to research and track our customers’ satisfaction ratings for the
purpose of internal evaluation and improving customer satisfaction. In
2013, we made further improvements in overall customer satisfaction
compared to the previous year according to the third-party surveys,
evidencing that our brand recognition has continued to strengthen.

Through closer customers’ surveys and appraisal systems, we have
placed higher emphasis on understanding their preferences on
products, their needs on sales and property management services. It
has prompted us to adopt a more client-oriented approach to improve
service and construction quality.



£ E 8

Chairman’s Statement

—E-NERE

BRINIEERE
BAZT—NF - REMBBERFET
BABA - EEIAC B FIR1E & - ol BUIE B
HERREHKEEBIEREEK  MEEE
WEEEHREIRKE EBRATHRA
M SIBBEBEARNRLIETS - B
R IRBR S B T 45 1 F ) DA 2R K 18 R
B) o AFUR - AEIPREATEEITE
BEREREERAE  ZEFNAMHER
HIEED A FELTEMIEER o IR
HRBRLEERE DT REANTE -
A —fEEBEHATFENRAEERE
(GDP)IE KA AR 7 % HI/KF o

MENMESE - BEEXBEREERTHR -
ERRASEEALTHAR  MABEILE
RENEMISE - RE T BT B R
FTIRITEHONE - WBRINRSTE
HE TR E T B E M ETT
EHRERE - ESRALTT -

TRNTZ
BERRE AP BERTEPEEETT
ENHARBRREFIE - ELEERN
BERSFEEBRBOBNTBRER - F
BB g F e B e RS ANF /T
ZHEK AUNZ2REEMEREA—F
BIEIR - ERFGDPIE R MR B 4ETE
REF AR HETT o PIFRHIRFREK
JRRE R - ITRFER)

20

OUTLOOK FOR 2014

Domestic and international economic conditions

Entering into 2014, the global markets continued to face uncertainties.
As the United States economy shows signs of recovery, the Federal
Reserve signaled tapering of quantitative easing policies, which
imposed uncertainties on prices of global asset classes and triggered
international capital outflow from the emerging markets. As a result,
this caused significant fluctuations in global financial markets in
the beginning of the year. Since last year, the Central Government
of China has been pursuing economic reforms and structural
adjustments, which emphasize sustainable quality growth by using
market-driven measures. This may have short term effect on the
momentum of economic growth in China and it is widely expected
that China’'s GDP will slow down to 7% area.

In terms of liquidity, in line with the tapering of quantitative easing
policies, the United States dollar long term interest rate has been
trending up. Meanwhile, China is undergoing interest rate liberalization
as well as reforms and controls of local government finances and
shadowing banking system. These offshore and onshore factors are
expected to cause the tighter overall financings and higher funding
costs to China’s real estate sector.

Industry landscape

While it is expected that current Chinese government administrative
policies in China's real estate sector to remain in place, more severe
government policy risks are now alleviated by slower economic
growth. The Chinese government has emphasised on fostering
urbanization and domestic consumption as its key policies. This
implies certain growth in terms of real estate investment in order to
sustain GDP growth and to ensure that structural economic reforms
could be successfully implemented. We expect that government
policies in the upcoming year are neutral and will have less impact on
the industry.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2014 (Continued)

Industry landscape (Continued)

Our current major concern on the China's real estate industry is the
imbalances between the land and property prices. We anticipate that
transaction volume of residential and office properties catering to the
strong end-users’ demand in China’s first- and second-tier cities will
continue to grow steadily, as these cities are the main beneficiaries of
urbanization and sustained growth in inflow of new populations and
investment capital. However, property prices in large and mid-sized
Chinese cities, after rising significantly in 2013, will stabilise or slow-
down in 2014 as it would be difficult for China’s average property
price to further jump up substantially. We expect that in the upcoming
year, performance of property prices in different cities, districts and
product segments as well as sales results of different developers will
be divided. Their respective performances will eventually depend on
market demand and customers’ affordability, rather than government
policies.

We noticed that since the mid-2013, land prices has been rising far
more substantially than property prices and most first- and second-
tier cities have recorded frequent land deals with record highs in total
considerations or average land prices, representing a high premium to
the government’s base land auction price and land prices transacted
not long ago. We are concerned that high land transaction prices in
certain areas have substantially exceeded market affordable levels.

For developers, the largest cost item is the land and the most
important way to sustain profitability is to control its land costs.
As the development projects with high land prices transacted last
year progress into pre-sale period starting in the second half of this
year, those developers which acquired land aggressively will face a
difficult dilemma of either to let high land prices erode their profit, or
to experience declining sales and cash flow. As the current market
conditions do not allow another round of sharp rises in property prices,
we believe that the land prices cannot be sustained at ultra-high levels.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2014 (Continued)

The Group’s development strategy

We believe that the real estate industry in China is still in a long term
growth phase, and high quality properties catering to end-users’
demand will remain strong in the long run. However, due to impacts
of government policies or macro-economic cycles, transaction volume
and properties prices of China's real estate sector will fluctuate in
short term cycles within the long term uptrend.

The Group's long-term goal is to become a leading and well-respected
real estate enterprise in China. To achieve this, we are pursuing the
“high growth and balanced development” strategy. This strategy
targets an expansion pace higher than growth rates of the industry
average and those of leading developers, while stresses balances and
disciplines avoiding ruthless, high gearing and low margin expansions.
The Group in future will manage its expansion cautiously by taking into
account the Group's sales performance, joint venture strategy and
financial stability.

Based on its abundant saleable resources within the year and using
conservative sell-through assumptions, the Group has set initial
contracted sales target for the full year of 2014 at RMB22 billion,
representing an increase of approximately 43.8% from the contracted
sales in 2013. The Group is confident of achieving its sales target for
2014 and continues to emphasise and strengthen its fast turnaround
and high sell-through development model.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2014 (Continued)

The Group’s development strategy (Continued)

In the course of expansion, we emphasise on maintaining the
appropriate rhythm for land acquisition within the industry’s short
term cycles with precise product positioning as well as execution
of development and sales. We endeavour to achieve buying low-
cost lands at the lows of the industry cycle and selling properties
when the market demand is robust. We reduce our risk through our
healthy financials, balanced operating cash flows, and differentiating
products. The majority of the Group’s land acquisitions last year were
transacted in the first half of 2013 when land transaction prices were
still reasonable. Since the second half of last year, the Group has
cautiously tightened our land acquisition criteria, ensuring defensive
transacted land costs and reasonable profit margins. Regarding land
reserves, the Group has already secured abundant supply of saleable
resources in 2014 and 2015. At the time when land prices remain
high in 2014, we have sufficient flexibility to refrain from purchasing
land with overly aggressive land costs, but rather to acquire land sites
omitted by competitors but with good development value. Meanwhile,
if land prices revert to a reasonable level, we will decisively utilise our
stable cash flow to accumulate quality land reserve at attractive costs,
in order to prepare for our saleable resources for 2016 and beyond to
raise the Group's sales to the next level.

The Group in future will focus on the mainstream market, mainstream
customers and mainstream products in China’s real estate industry,
and will strive to enhance our product, service and brand capabilities.
We also actively research and apply industry innovations, aiming
to attract young customers with spending power by more stylish
product designs, to improve customer experience and promote sales
through mobile Internet and e-commerce platforms, and to utilize
next-generation data systems for stricter cost controls and better
operational efficiency.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all employees for their dedication and hard work, and
to our shareholders, bondholders and business partners for their
support in the past year.

CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
LIN Zhong
Chairman
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

In 2013, the Group achieved contracted sales of approximately
RMB15.32 billion, representing a significant growth of 60.5% as
compared to 2012. The significant growth in the Group’s contracted
sales was mainly attributable to the corresponding increase in the
Group's saleable resources and effective sell-through strategies. In
2013, the Group contracted sales of approximately 1,428,300 sgq.m. in
GFA, representing an increase of 39.2% over the previous year. The
Group's contracted ASP in 2013 was approximately RMB10,725/sg.m.,
representing an increase of 15.3% from RMB9,300/sq.m. in 2012.

Contracted sales from Yangtze River Delta, Pan Bohai Rim and Central
Western Region contributed to approximately 57.8%, 30.4% and
11.8% of the Group's total contracted sales respectively. Contracted
sales from first- and second-tier cities accounted for approximately
94.0% of the Group's total contracted sales whereas those from third-
tier cities accounted for the remaining 6.0%. Contracted sales derived
from residential projects contributed to approximately 77.5% whereas
those from office projects contributed to the remaining 22.5%.

/8 JB¥E e ZFE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Cash collection from property sales during the year amounted to
RMB13,680.9 million, representing a ratio of 89% of yearly contracted
sales.

During the year, the Group's average asset turnover ratio (contracted
sales as a percentage of average total assets less investment
properties) improved to 53.4% in 2013, versus 47.8% in 2012. The
further improvement in asset turnover ratio was an evidence of the
Group’s successful implementation of high asset turnover and high
sell-through strategies.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately RMB11 billion

contracted but unrecognised sales which formed a solid basis for
Group's future growth in recognised revenue.

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2013

REBE S By project
EEER
HESE
BHEXE e Batt ERHE CR%BE
REA®E HESHE % of total BEEEE FHEE
Primary intended Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
1HH Project use of the project sales sales GFA ASP
~ (AR#T/
(ON:-5 ) (ERXK) FHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
BB & TR Shanghai CIFl Pujiang International SEER R 866,199 5.7 49,500 17,499
Office-for-sale
R e T Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard FF 381,439 25 19,800 19,265
Residential
B e Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay FE 112,340 07 8,900 12,622
Residential
EEBEeBAEE Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion F=E 277,936 18 16,100 17,263
Residential
BEEE e W Shanghai CIFl Rose Bay Ea=2 182,597 12 11,000 16,600
Residential
e e BIE Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach F=E 118,580 08 6,500 18,243
Residential
8 182 o ATHE B Shanghai CIF Honggiao International SHER P 71,13 05 2,600 27,351
Office-for-sale
L5 B o AR5 Shanghai CIFI Century Square HETIE 201,982 13 7,900 25,567
Office-for-sale
5 BB « BREES Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town F=E 10,417 0.1 1,500 6,945
Residential
L5 e Shanghai CIFI City FE 1,318,764 86 107,700 12,245
Residential
TR ¢ (kT Shanghai CIFl La Baie D'Evian FF 657 * 300 2,190
Residential
LG BIB ¢ ) T/EEF Shanghai CIFl Jiangwan Mansion F=E 144,720 10 4,000 36,180
Residential
26 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)

Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2013 (Continued)

By project (Continued)

HHEER
HESHE
BHEXE e BAt ARISEE ARHE
REA®E HESHE % of total BEME FHEE
Primary intended Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
1HH Project use of the project sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥®RT,/
(AE%ETR) (ERXK) FHHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
LB e iR5E Shanghai CIFI Samite Life E=s 511,903 33 34,000 15,056
Residential
5 RSB e BRI EE Shanghai CIFl Pleasant Garden F=® 102,427 0.7 10,800 9,484
Residential
BN JBIE o WER Suzhou CIFI Canal County F=E 378,000 25 32,200 11,739
Residential
ER)N JEIE o BAEED Suzhou CIFI Ronchamp Town FF 127,850 08 15,100 8,467
Residential
BN BB 0 BIREE Suzhou CIFI California Bay F=E 5,450 * 300 18,167
Residential
BN TBHE 0 FERE Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard F=® 1,347,980 838 159,600 8,446
Residential
ERN JEIE o HEIAT Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion FF 293,495 19 22,300 13,161
Usonian City Villa Residential
BN BIE e BEEEE Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion F=E 459,405 30 53,300 8,619
Residential
BN TBEE o 2R Suzhou CIFI Elegant City (Formerly known as: {22 133,466 09 14,700 9,079
Suzhou CIFI Meilan Town) Residential
BN TBIE o 17 E Suzhou CIFI Sunny Life (Formerly known as:  {¥=¢ 88,064 06 10,100 8719
Suzhou CIFI Joyous Mansion) Residential
B TBIE o HRZE Hefei CIFI Central Park E=s 139,772 09 20,700 6,752
Residential
S TBIE o BT Hefei CIFI Private Mansion E=s 1,152,526 75 141,300 8,157
Residential
ST JBIE o R Zhenjiang CIFI Times FE 372,782 24 39,700 9,390
Residential
=E BB ES Jiaxing CIFI Square FF 52,980 03 4,900 10,812
Residential
bR BB o BED Beijing CIFI Olympic City SHER R 3,866 * 200 19,330
Office-for-sale
bR BB o AT Beijing CIFI Private Mansion F=® 433 464 28 31,400 13,805
Residential
b5 JBIE o RET Beijing CIFI Purple County F= 15,527 0.1 900 17,252
Residential
I3 NBIE e 158 Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden ¥ =2 847,844 55 33,600 25,233
Residential
LR BIE e ZEARL Beijing CIFl International Negotiate Garden 5555 3## 1,150,427 75 78,100 14,730
Office-for-sale
bR BB ¢ EXH Beijing CIFI The Education Park HER G 858,130 5.6 35,400 24,241
Office-for-sale
RE JBIE o FHEB Tianjin CIFI Rosedale F=E 442566 29 55,100 8,032
Residential
KE TBIE o BAYE Tianjin CIFl Paradise Bay T2 43,344 03 7.800 5,557
Residential
RE JBIE o AT Tianjin CIFl Private Mansion F=® 359,839 24 36,900 9,752
Residential
R Ls JBIE o + U FB Langfang CIFl Path Walf E=s 514,317 33 71,400 7,203
Residential
EE JBIE o« BAERED Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town F= 236,470 16 45,300 5,220
Residential
TEEILRR (RE)BRRTF | —E—=FFRK 27
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Contracted sales (Continued)
Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2013 (Continued)

RIEE &S (8 By project (Continued)
EHEER
HELE
EHFE &R Bt ERHE CRHE
REAR H$ESE  %ofotl BEEW  FHEE
Primary intended Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
HH Project use of the project sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥®RT,/
(ARMT ) (FHK)  FRK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sqm.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
EE BB o PAINER Chongging CIFI Langyuejun F=E 455,915 30 78,400 5815
Residential
EHE BIE o X% Chongging CIFI Purple City SHE R P 296,680 19 40,100 7,399
Office-for-sale
R B8 ¢ HED Changsha CIFl Upward Community F= 6,030 * 2,600 2319
Residential
R 058 o R Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard (G2 54,165 04 12,700 4,265
Residential
£ B2 o T Changsha CIFI Private Mansion F=E 747,127 49 103,600 7212
Residential
At Total 15,318,555 100.0 1,428,300 10,725
* DR0.1% * less than 0.1%
REBEESD By type of project
HBEREE
SEEIL ERHE ERME
ERHESHE % of total EEMEE FI9EE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥RT,/
(AR®T ) (FFXK) EHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.)  (RMB/sq.m.)
F=1EE Residential projects 11,870,158 775 1,214,500 9,774
HELEHIER Office-for-sale projects 3,448,397 225 213,800 16,129
A&t Total 15,318,555 100.0 1,428,300 10,725
28 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EERZ e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
EREE®) Contracted sales (Continued)
BEmE D By city
HEERHEE
SHEESL ERHE ERHE
ECRBESE % of total EEmBE FHEE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(ARE®Rx,/
(AR¥F ) (FEF73K) FHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
! Shanghai 4,301,074 28.2 280,600 15,328
1 Beijing 3,309,258 215 179,600 18,426
ER N Suzhou 2,833,710 18.5 307,600 9,212
=y Hefei 1,292,298 8.4 162,000 7977
RiE Tianjin 845,749 5.6 99,800 8,474
E=Y) Chongqing 989,065 6.5 163,800 6,038
D Changsha 807,322 53 118,900 6,790
$ET Zhenjiang 372,782 2.4 39,700 9,390
520 Jiaxing 52,980 0.3 4,900 10,812
ERy Langfang 514,317 3.3 71,400 7,203
&5t Total 15,318,555 100.0 1,428,300 10,725
Riv =85 By region
HBEERMEE
AL ERHEE ERHEE
ERMESHE % of total EBEMmE FIHEE
Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR¥x,
(AR¥F ) (EFHK) FFK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
E=A Yangtze River Delta 8,852,844 57.8 794,800 11,138
REE Pan Bohai Rim 4,669,324 304 350,800 13.311
AR Ep Central Western Region 1,796,387 11.8 282,700 6,354
&t Total 15,318,555 100.0 1,428,300 10,725
TEEILRR (RE)BRRTF | —E—=FFRK 29



CEVEE P TR

Management Discussion and Analysis

EERZ e PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

EREE®H) Contracted sales (Continued)

B—E2 - —BR=8RTED By first-, second- and third-tier cities
HEERHEE

SEEIL SRME SRS
AREESE % of total EEmE FEEE

Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(AR#T
(AR¥F ) (FEF73K) FHK)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
— Sk First-tier cities 7,610,332 497 460,200 16,537
TR Second-tier cities 6,768,144 443 852,100 7,943
=Y Third-tier cities 940,079 6.0 116,000 8,104
&5t Total 15,318,555 100.0 1,428,300 10,725
BIE - Notes:
1. LA EEREESURBEHERSBA - 1. The above contracted sales data includes sales of carparks.
2. —iR e EERIER o 2. First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
3. TR AR KE - EENRD - 3. Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Tianjin, Chongging and Changsha.
4. =R TTIEEIT - RE KRR o 4. Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing and Langfang.

o LR

& JBIE IR ES Shanghai CIFI Yangpu Commercial Square /ERI7TREETEE Shanghai Minhang Huacao Project
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

Revenue recognised from sales of properties in 2013 was
approximately RMB11,579.2 million up by 44.9% year-on-year,
accounted for 97.2% of total recognised revenue. In 2013, the Group
delivered approximately 1,238,900 sg.m. of properties in GFA (all from
its operating subsidiaries), up by 68.6% year-on-year. In 2013, the
Group's recognised ASP from sales of properties was approximately
RMB9,346/sg.m., representing a decrease of 14.1% from RMB10,877/
sg.m. in 2012.

The increase in the Group's revenue recognised from sales of
properties was attributable to the increase in GFA delivered.

Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in

R B4 2013
REBE S By project
HEEME
BEIERAUAE HEVECEIRA ERABAEDL
Primary intended ~ Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue ~ ER{HAREER ERRTHERE
EH Project use of the project  from sale of properties  from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥F ) (FHXK) (AR¥T,/F5HXK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZB-ZF |Z%-ZF | ZB-ZF | Z%--F | ZB-ZF | Z%-CF | -B-ZF | ZFCf
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
L5 18 - HITER Shanghai CIFI Pujiang Internationel HEREH 1,319,767 - 14 - 73,900 - 17,859 -
Office-for-sale
HB8E - FEE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard F=E 715,901 - 62 - 41,000 - 17,461 -
Residential
LigmE - BE Shanghai CIF Comfortable Joyous Bay i 1,160,782 - 100 - 114,700 - 10120 -
Residential
HEBE BAEE Shanghai CIF| Private Mansion FE 311,220 - 21 - 19,200 - 16,209 -
Residential
Hg8E - BoE Shanghai CIFl Rose Bay FE 400,071 1,574,575 35 197 25,500 105,400 15,689 14,939
Residential
L EE - BRE Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach £ 14841 - 13 - 7,600 - 19,528 -
Residential
B BE - ATAEERE Shanghai CIFl Honggiao International SHEREH 269,741 134,345 23 17 9,400 4,000 28,696 33,586
Office-for-sale
LgBE - tHiEs Shanghai CIFI Century Square HEREN 201,814 2,79 11 * 7,900 600 25,546 4,657
Office-for-sale
LigBE - BB Shanghai CIFI Ronchamp Town fea=a] 10,078 2972 01 03 1,400 4,000 7199 5,493
Residential
b - kEE Shanghai CIFl La Baie D'Evian FE 657 17,380 * 02 300 1,500 2190 11,587
Residential
L8 - FiEe Shanghai CIFI New Dream FE - 4,058 - * = 1500 = 2,705
Residential
BN BE - LA Suzhou CIFI Canal County e 1,422,291 901,533 123 113 158,400 95,800 8979 9411
Residential
#7858 - BAEED Suzhou CIFl Ronchamp Town FE 389,736 358,733 34 45 49,800 43,100 1,826 8323
Residential
BN e ERmE Suzhou CIFI California Bay FE 5,450 4,500 * * 300 300 18,167 15,000
Residential
AIEBE - hREE Hefei CIFI Central Park £ 141,889 691,973 12 87 20,900 91,200 6,789 7587
Residential
AR B5E - AT Hefei CIFl Private Mansion FE 794,792 - 69 - 109,000 - 7292 -
Residential
JEEER (RBDBR AR | ZT—=FFH 31
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FEibER & @) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
HEMECERWA ) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
RD ZE-=ZFRAYEHEENTH® Table 2: Breakdown of recognised revenue from property sales in
U B4 (&) 2013 (Continued)
REB &5 () By project (Continued)
=

BRIEREME HENECREIRAN  CRIKAEIL
Primaryintended  Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue B R{TAREEE BERATHER

EE Project use of the project  from sale of properties  from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥F ) (FHK) (AR®T/LHX)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
Z8-ZF | Z3——F |Z%-zf | Z%--F | =%-=f |-%—% | =%-=f | 2=
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

ST MBI - B Zhenjiang CIFI Times FE 768,752 - 66 - 81,500 - 9433 -
Residential

SR BERES Jiaxing CIFl Square =z 94,641 134,220 08 17 9,600 13,600 9,858 9,869
Residential

IR 188 - B8 Beijing CIFI Olympic City HERH 3,866 - * - 200 - 19,330 -
Office-for-sale

LR RE - AT Beijing CIFI Private Mansion £ 523626 | 2,153,056 45 269 35,600 115,300 14,709 18,674
Residential

JLR B - %3 Beijing CIFI Purple County =z 24,539 775290 02 97 1,200 46,900 20,449 16,531
Residential

55 189 - I Langfang CIFl Path Walf *=E 125104 | 204258 11 26 12,000 22,700 10425 8,998
Residential

B B8 - BEH Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town k£ 1070842 | 319407 93 40 | 195100 45,700 5,489 6,989
Residential

EE B5E - B Chongging CIFI Langyuejun i 775,057 - 6.7 - 128,000 - 6,055 -
Residential

R 8% - EE Changsha CIFl Upward Community FE 6,140 45520 01 01 3,000 500 2,047 9,040
Residential

R B - EE Changsha CIFl Luxury Courtyard e 56,811 688,851 05 86 12,300 142,600 4,619 4,831
Residential

R 1858 - HFF Changsha CIFI Private Mansion = 837,179 - 12 - 121,100 - 6913 -
Residential

A&t Total 11,579,157 | 7,991,465 100.0 1000 | 1,238,900 734,700 9,346 10877

* DR0.1% * less than 0.1%

8 B ¢ §A& =8 Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion 8 JBEH, Shanghai CIFI City

32 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013



WP W B o B

Management Discussion and Analysis

Eﬂi’:éﬁﬁ ﬁ(%) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)
HEMECDERRA(E) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
REBBHE D By type of project
SR
HENECEIRA ERARARAL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue ~  EX{TAZEERE BRATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR#FTT) (FHK) (AR%T,/FHXK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZE-ZE | ZE-ZF | ZB-ZF | 22K | Z%-=F | 2K | =%-=f | ZT—=F%
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
F=EE Residential projects 9,783,969 | 7,854,326 845 983 | 1,147,500 730,100 8,526 10,758
HERIEIIER Office-for-sale projects 1,795,188 137,139 15.5 17 91,400 4,600 19,641 29813
&3t Total 11,579,157 | 7,991,465 100.0 100.0 | 1,238,900 734,700 9,346 10,877
BETmE D By city
HHEME
HENXERARA ERARARAL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue ~  EX{TAZEERE ERATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR#TT) (FFK) (AR%T,/LHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
—E-=fF |ZB--f |ZB-=§ |ZE——F |=F-=F |ZB-——fF |ZB-=F% |Z2—=F&
2013 2012 2013 2012 213 2012 2013 2012
g Shanghai 4,538,442 | 1,755,124 392 20 300,900 117,000 15,083 15,001
IR Beijing 552,031 | 2,928,346 47 366 37,000 162,200 14,920 18,054
&M Suzhou 1817477 | 1,264,766 15 158 [ 208500 | 139,200 817 9,086
Gl Hefei 936,681 | 691,973 81 87 129,900 91,200 121 7,581
S Chongging 1845899 | 319,407 16.0 40 323,100 45,700 5713 6,989
=9 Changsha 900,130 | 693,371 18 87 136,400 143,100 6,599 4,845
ST Zhenjiang 768,752 - 6.6 - 81,500 - 9433 -
RE Jiaxing 94641 | 134,220 08 17 9,600 13,600 9,858 9,869
2] Langfang 125104 | 204,258 11 25 12,000 22,700 10425 8,998
a5 Total 11,579,157 | 7,991,465 100.0 100.0 1,238,900 734,700 9,346 10,877

b5 B#E o 2=/ L Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden JbF JB#E « EXI Beijing CIFI Education Park
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Eiﬂ_’,EFaﬁ ﬁ(%ﬁéj) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
HEMECERWA ) Revenue recognised from sales of properties (Continued)
R EE S By region
hEENE
HEENEERARA ERAUABD L
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue B R{TAREEE ERAFHER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AR¥T ) (FHXK) (AR EHK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZE-ZF |Z%ZF |ZF-ZF |ZF—ZfF |Z%-=f% |Z% % |ZB-Z% |ZB2—=f%
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
R=A Yangtze River Delta 8,155,993 | 3,846,083 104 48.1 730,400 361,000 11,166 10,654
REE Pan Bohai Rim 677,135 | 3,132,604 58 392 49,000 184,900 13819 16,942
el Central Western Region 2,746,029 | 1,012,778 238 127 459,500 188,800 5,976 5,364
At Total 11,579,157 | 7,991,465 100.0 100.0 1,238,900 734,700 9,346 10,877
B8  _ER=&EHTED By first-, second- and third-tier cities
=S
HENESEIRA ERABAEDL
Recognised revenue from % of recognised revenue ~  EX{TEAZEER BRATIER
sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
(AE¥F ) (FFK) (AR¥T/ F7HK)
(RMB'000) (%) (sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ZB-ZF |ZB—F (ZB-=F ([ZF-_F [=B-=% |Z2-_F |=%-ZF |_B—F
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
— W First-tier cities 5,090,473 | 4,683,470 439 586 337,900 279,200 15,065 16,775
il Second-tier cities 5,500,187 | 2,969,517 416 312 797,900 419,200 6,893 7,084
=il Third-tier cities 988,497 | 338,478 85 42 103,100 36,300 9,588 9,324
G Total 11,579,157 | 7,991,465 100.0 1000 | 1,238,900 734,700 9,346 10877
Ft5E Notes:
1. A I E SR e IEHEREAL o 1. The above sales data includes sales of carparks.
2. — iR B MIE R o 2. First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
3. R miEEIN c AR EBRREYD - 3. Second-tier cities refer to Suzhou, Hefei, Chongging and Changsha.
4. SR TIEET - ZE LB o 4. Third-tier cities refer to Zhenjiang, Jiaxing and Langfang.
34 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013




CEVEE P TR

Management Discussion and Analysis

FEihERE )

ERERGFENE

RZE—=FFF AKEEHLITIEAE
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BEP HERRBENYE
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M 4R SR FE %) A 2,700,000F 75 K (=
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BEER(EE)BRAR | —T—=FF#K

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Completed properties held for sale

During the year 2013, the total GFA of newly completed projects
of the Group amounted to approximately 1.5 million sgq.m. (2012:
1.2 million sq.m.). As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 22
completed properties projects with a total unsold or undelivered
GFA of approximately 0.7 million sg.m. and an attributable unsold or
undelivered GFA of approximately 0.7 million sgq.m., respectively.

Properties under development/held for future development
During the year 2013, the total GFA of properties newly commenced
construction by the Group was approximately 2.7 million sg.m. (2012:
1.5 million sgq.m.). During the year 2013, the total GFA of properties
under development by the Group was approximately 5.4 million
sg.m. (2012: 3.9 million sg.m.). As at 31 December 2013, excluding
properties completed by the Group during the year, total GFA of
properties under development by the Group was approximately 3.9
million sg.m. (2012: 2.7 million sg.m.).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 42 property projects
under development or held for future development with a total and
attributable GFA of approximately 8.5 million sg.m. and 6.9 million
sg.m. respectively.
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FitERE PROPERTY INVESTMENT

HAEWA Rental income

KREBR-_ZT—=F0HE2UWARAR The Group's rental income in 2013 was RMB47.7 million, up by 7.5%
#47,700,0007T ' IRFEILRT 5% o H1  year-on-year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in rental
DEERAREEZHEBEEESMASY  income from Jiaxing CIFI Square.

ASE -
R ZE—=FZHELWABHEMHA Table 3: Breakdown of rental income in 2013
—E-=F —T-—F
2013 2012
S EH% HEWA
HALWA WABS HeWA  WABESH BR=E
Rental % of Rental Rental % of Rental  Rental income
income income income income growth rate
AR¥TT ARETTT
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
"EME Investment properties
= JRIEES Jiaxing CIFl Square 45,258 9.8 42,161 95.0 74
Hig &Y s Other investment properties 807 1.7 960 2.2 -15.9
HhIE &Y Other non-investment properties 1,667 35 1,269 2.8 314
A&t Total 47,732 100.0 44,390 100.0 75
wEYE Investment properties

MN-—ZE—=#+-_HA=+—08 » A& Asat31 December 2013, the Group had 4 investment properties with
BATBEWME  #BELE®BELY A atotal GFA of approximately 134,700 sg.m. Out of such investment
134,700 F 53K « REEZZIREYEMH  properties portfolio of the Group, 3 investment properties with a total
AEth o JBAREEEELA89,3005F 5  GFA of approximately 89,300 sq.m. had commenced leasing, while

R

KB MEDHBEE - mMESJIFE  the remaining was under development.

b o

e £ . A F..'.Ai:.p".' uy
bR TBAE e (53 15 fB¥E e EXXH Beijing CIFI Education Park
Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2013, the Group's recognised revenue was approximately
RMB11,909.2 million, up 46.2% year-on-year. Out of the Group's
total recognised revenue in 2013, (i) sales of property increased by
44.9% from the previous year to approximately RMB11,579.2 million,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in GFA delivered; (ii)
rental income increased by 7.5% from the previous year, which was
primarily due to an increase in rental income from Jiaxing CIFI Square;
and (iii) property management and other property related service
income increased by 161.1% from the previous year, as boosted by
additional new property projects completed and added in our property
management portfolio during the year.

Table 4: Breakdown of recognised revenue in 2013

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
EE LA B RERIA
HENEDL BEHADL
=520 ON %of Total | THERUA % of Total REBT
Recognised recognised Recognised recognised  Year-on-year
revenue revenue revenue revenue change
AR¥TRT ARETT
RMB000 % RMB’000 % %
MIEHE Sales of properties 11,579,157 97.2 7,991,465 98.1 449
HeA Rental income 41,7132 0.4 44,390 0.6 75
MESE L HMYE  Property management income
FRE BRI WA and other property related
service income 282,213 24 108,094 1.3 161.1
“BEr Total 11,909,162 100.0 8,143,949 100.0 46.2
SHER A Cost of sales

AEEBR-_Z-—=ZFNHERANR
A K % 8,840,700,000 7T * ¥ & F & AN
42.2% > BT EHNE RS AL
BREFAMIGN - BEYEHERK
EFte

BEER(EE)BRAR | —T—=FF#K

The Group's cost of sales in 2013 was approximately RMB8,840.7
million, up 42.2% from the previous year. This increase was primarily
due to an increase in cost of property sales as a result of an increase
in total GFA delivered compared to the previous year.
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B E ) FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
HERA (&) Cost of sales (Continued)
RE —E-—=FHERSHA Table 5: Breakdown of cost of sales in 2013
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
HERRBA IEERERUA
BENEIL BENB DL
% of Total % of Total REEE
AR®T T recognised ARET T recognised  Year-on-year
RMB’000 revenue RMB000 revenue change
I SHE R AR Cost of property sales
EAMEMAEREA Construction and related costs 4,456,842 37.4 3,115,560 38.3 43.1%
THEEE AR R Land acquisition and
EE e related costs 2,786,538 234 2,093,626 25.7 33.1%
BB Capitalised borrowing costs 780,256 6.6 435,565 53 79.1%
N W EESHERUR Sub-Total: Cost of
property sales 8,023,636 67.4 5,644,751 69.3 42.1%
AR ER AR Cost of property rental 9,904 * 2,590 * 282.4%
Y EE B A Cost of property management 113,328 1.0 94,941 1.2 19.4%
HAth 24808 Cost of other property
RRT&G R AN related services - - 2,862 * -100%
TRFAEER Sales related taxes 693,783 5.8 472,754 5.8 46.8%
Wzt SHERAKR Total: Cost of sales 8,840,651 74.2 6,217,898 76.3 42.2%
BRI 4R ATE IR Total GFA delivered (sq.m.)
(FF7%) 1,238,900 735,900 68.6%
TSR AR Average construction costs
(AREETT /FHXK) (RMB/sq.m.) 3,597 4,234 -15.2%
T BT AR Average land acquisition and
HEARAR(ARET,  related costs (RMB/sq.m.)
FHAK) 2,249 2,845 21.1%
39 E A IE TR A Average capitalised borrowing
(AR F7%K)  costs (RMB/sg.m.) 630 592 6.2%
* DH0.1% * less than 0.1%
EXNRER=E Gross profit and gross profit margin

RAEER_Z—=FNEMNNBARK
3,068,500,0007T * #FHE N59.3% ° 7
EBNERNRE T — _FH23.7%IE
ME-ZT—=%1258% °

REBENEXR _T-—_FHETER
RO ZE—=FRAZTEAHE(HD
RU AR EEM15.5% ) 15 B R ALL
ER-_T-—FEERRRARLREN
17%)BEF - —&RiME - AEBEHEE
MR EENXRMFEETEEE
= RDMFmERALENEEER
EELEF BEEFELEF -
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The Group's gross profit in 2013 was RMB3,068.5 million, up 59.3%
year-on-year. Our gross profit margin increased to 25.8% in 2013 from
23.7% in 2012.

The improvement of the Group's gross profit margin compared to
2012 was primarily due to (i) high proportion of recognised revenue
from sales of office projects in 2013 (15.5% of total recognised
revenue) compared to 2012 (1.7% of total recognised revenue).
The Group's office-for-sale projects generally have higher gross
profit margins compared to mass market residential projects; and (ii)
increased selling prices of individual residential projects as a result of
favourable market sentiment resulting in better gross profit margin.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fair value changes

Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties

In 2012, the Group recognised a fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties in the amount of approximately RMB1,205.9
million as a result of the shopping mall portion of Jiaxing CIFI Square
being leased out and transferred to investment properties during that
year.

Initially at the time of construction, the commercial podium of Jiaxing
CIFI Square comprising the basement supermarket, department store
and the shopping mall portions were accounted for as properties
under development. Upon completion, they were accounted for
as properties for sale. Under IFRS, these commercial properties
accounted for as properties for sale could be transferred into
investment properties when it is evidenced by the commencement
of an operating lease to another party. The gains upon transfer to
investment properties relating to the commercial podium of Jiaxing
CIFI Square in 2012 represent the difference between the fair value of
the relevant properties after substantial appreciation and their original
book costs. As at 31 December 2012, the entire commercial podium
of Jiaxing CIFI Square were fully leased out and were fully transferred
into investment properties.

In 2013, the Group did not record any fair value gain upon transfer
to investment properties recorded, as it did not have properties
completed or under construction which were transferred to
investment properties during the year.

Change in fair value of investment properties

In 2013, the Group recognised a fair value gain on investment
properties of approximately RMB753.5 million as a corresponding
gain in 2012 of approximately RMB233.5 million. The increase in fair
value gain on investment properties was due to the appreciation of
the overall capital value and/or rental values of the Group’s investment
properties portfolio including completed and under development
projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Fair value changes (Continued)
Change in fair value of trust and other loans related derivatives

In 2013, the Group recognised a fair value gain on trust and other loans
related derivatives of approximately RMB3.0 million as compared to a
corresponding gain in 2012 of approximately RMB26.5 million. Such
fair value gain reflected the change in fair value of the embedded
financial derivatives relating to certain trust and other loans of the
Group during the year.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses increased by 25.6% to
approximately RMB308.7 million in 2013 from RMB245.8 million in
2012. This increase was in line with the Group’s new launch of more
property projects available for pre-sale in 2013. The Group placed
great emphasis on the effectiveness and appropriateness of sales
strategies and successfully controlled its selling expenses at 2.0% of
total contracted sales in 2013, compared to 2.6% in 2012.

Administrative and other expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by 80.1% to
approximately RMB513.6 million in 2013 from RMB285.2 million
in 2012. This increase was primarily attributable to increase in staff
costs and other administrative expenses resulting from the Group’s
business expansion. Due to implementation of stringent cost control
and improvement in per capita efficiency, the Group still controlled
its administrative expenses at 3.4% of total contracted sales in 2013,
compared to 3.0% in 2012.

In 2012, the Group incurred other expenses of RMB18.3 million,

which were professional fees and expenses related to our IPO during
that year. In 2013, the Group did not incur such expenses.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs expensed increased by 335.3% to
approximately RMB188.5 million in 2013 from RMB43.3 million
in 2012. This increase in finance costs expensed was primarily
attributable to an increase in the total finance costs incurred, net of the
portion being capitalised in properties under development during the
year. Total finance costs expensed and capitalised increased by 56.0%
to approximately RMB1,098.3 million in 2013 from RMB704.1 million
in 2012. The Group's weighted average cost of all indebtedness
(including bank loans, trust and other loans and senior notes) as at 31
December 2013 was 9.2%, compared to 10.0% as at 31 December
2012. The decrease in weighted average cost of indebtedness during
the year was primarily attributable to the decrease in the average
proportion of non-bank borrowings (trust and other loans) to total
indebtedness during the year. These non-bank borrowings generally
had higher interest costs.

Income tax expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 14.0% to
approximately RMB933.7 million in 2013 from RMB818.8 million
in 2012. The Group's income tax expense included payments
and provisions made for enterprise income tax (“EIT") and land
appreciation tax (“LAT") during the year. The Group's effective income
tax rate increased to 31.4% in 2013 from 28.8% in 2012, as a lower
proportion of the Group's profit before taxation was derived from fair
value gains relating to investment properties in 2013, for which no
provision for LAT was required.

The Group made LAT provisions of approximately RMB320.7 million in
2013, versus RMB164.5 million in 2012. The Group made actual LAT
payments of RMB309.7 million in 2013, versus RMB181.7 million in
2012. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had accumulated unpaid
LAT provisions of RMB303.3 million.
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SRR T =ZFERFHRALHRE
(THEARHRE])200%  —F——F8
518.8% °

&1 JBFE o T Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion Usonian City Villa

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the year

As a result of the factors described above, the Group’s profit before
taxation increased by 4.8% to approximately RMB2,974.9 million
in 2013 from RMB2,839.6 million in 2012. The Group's profit and
total comprehensive income for the year increased by 1.0% to
approximately RMB2,041.1 million in 2013 from RMB2,020.8
million in 2012. The Group’s net profit attributable to equity owners
decreased by 2.2% to approximately RMB1,894.2 million in 2013 from
RMB1,937.1 million in 2012.

The Group's core net profit attributable to equity owners increased by
65.0% to approximately RMB1,518.8 million in 2013 from RMB920.6
million in 2012. The corresponding core net profit margin was 12.8%
in 2013 and 11.3% in 2012.

Benefited from the implementation of the Group's stated high asset
turnover, high sell-through business strategies and improved profit
margins, the Group achieved a return on average equity (“ROE") of
20.0% in 2013 versus 18.8% in 2012.

BN BEE o

A= Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion
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T bR LAND BANK

MNZE—=F+_-_A=+—H8 K&EE Asat 31 December 2013, the total GFA of the Group’'s land bank
T Hb B R FE4959,200,000F  was approximately 9.2 million sg.m., and the attributable GFA of
Fok o MAEEEE T HEERSEEE  the Group's land bank was approximately 7.6 million sq.m. As at
49/7,600,000F 5K c R —ZE—=4% 31 December 2013, average acquisition cost of the Group's overall
+=—A=+—8  kELESEEREKLE land bank based on attributable GFA and attributable cost was
ERARGE - NEBEEE L #EHE T approximately RMB2,900 per sq.m.

WEEK A BFF T ARKARE?2,9007T -

RN ZXEBR=ZZF—=5+=H Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+—HH L hiEERA 2013

RYEE D By property
i AR HE R
AeHE A
EEmE
(FEEFEEN) REE
Saleable/ LR
BHEFXERERARE Rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended use remaining unsold attributable
HH Project of the project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(FFHK)
(sq.m.) (%)
BIYE Completed properties
k=54 Yangtze River Delta
B BB e EITEIRS Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International ~ $4%E4 3 9# Office-for-sale 55,300 100.0
g B e FERE Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard {£=E Residential 11,400 100.0
5 BB e SN E Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay {E=F Residential 1,600 100.0
8 BB e BAEEE Shanghai CIFI Private Mansion {£= Residential 12,700 100.0
I B e B A# Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach {£=E Residential 78,400 100.0
BN JBIE e IAER Suzhou CIFI Canal County {£=E Residential 15,200 100.0
B JBIE o FR=E Hefei CIFI Central Park {£E Residential 6,000 100.0
AHE fBiE « HET Hefei CIFI Private Mansion {£= Residential 10,200 100.0
SEST TRIE o BSRI Zhenjiang CIFI Times {£ = Residential 56,200 100.0
=8 BEES(EE) Jiaxing CIFI Square (Residential) {E =2 Residential 800 100.0
=206 BB ES () Jiaxing CIFI Square (Commercial) EWE Investment properties 82,600 100.0
JEEER (RBDBR AR | ZT—=FFH 43
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LAND BANK (continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2013 (Continued)

BB D (8 By property (Continued)
i R H SR
FSHE A A
EEER
(FEEFEEN) REE
Saleable/ EihER
BHEXERERARE Rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended use remaining unsold attributable
EHE Project of the project (carpark excluded) to the Group
(FFAK)
(sq.m.) (%)
B4 Pan Bohai Rim
bR fBIE e BEE% ), Beijing CIFl Wangxin Commercial B Investment properties 4,900 100.0
Centre
bR BHE o BE Beijing CIFI Olympic City $HER T Office-for-sale 5,800 100.0
ERsh BB o + LI Langfang CIFI Path Walf £ Residential 41,200 100.0
# FES Central Western Region
EE JBIE « BAEED Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town £ Residential 16,800 100.0
BE JBIE e BARED Chongging CIFI Langyuejun £ Residential 22,400 100.0
RY 0% e 52 Changsha CIFI Luxury Courtyard £ Residential 900 100.0
£ JBiE o HIfT Changsha CIFI Private Mansion =€ Residential 10,500 100.0
E Other
BN TBIE o iR Fuzhou CIFI Riverside {£= Residential 3,700 100.0
436,600
Bt Other
FENL Carpark 240,900 100.0
677,500
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LAND

BANK (Continued)

Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December

2013 (Continued)

BRYEED (B By property (Continued)
BERREE
RRERMN
ARSER
(FEEFER)
Total GFA under
BHIE development AEE
RERZ HHR TR and held g
Primary Estimated for future Interest
intended use Completion {EE®  development fE  attributable
EH Project of the project date Site Area  (Carpark excluded) Pre-sold tothe Group
(E7K) (ERK) (ERX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BRAREERREENE  Properties under development and
held for future development
Py Yangtze River Delta
5 BEGEH Shanghai CIFI Arthur Shire =z “Z-RFECZ 30,200 38,500 - 500
(b& RBIZEEE)  (Shanghai Kanggiao Industrial Residential 202015
District Project)
L5 ey Shanghai CIFI City Tz —I-MEERE/ 99,100 184,100 107,700 1000
Residential —2-n%E-%
4020141102015
LG EEekE2E Shanghai CIFI La Baie D'Evian #=x “Z-RFERE 189,800 24500 - 1000
Residential 402015
I8 mEeTEES Shanghai CIFl Jiangwan Mansion = —E-NEERE 26,000 34,100 4,000 755
Residential 402014
LB BB eiSEEEES  Shanghai CIFl Yangpu Commercial Square S E TG “E-REESE 19,600 - 530
(ffice-for-sale 302015 18300
L5 BB eiEEEEES  Shanghai CFl Yangpu Commercial Square % &% “I-RFE=Z ' 45,400 - 530
Investment properties 302015
E BiEeHE Shanghai CIFI Samite Life #=x ZF-MEENE 37600 83,200 34,000 1000
Residential 402014
8 BB« UK Shanghai CIFI U Block HEREH “Z-RFECZ 21,400 54,800 - 1000
(b§ @9EEge) (Shanghai Nanxiang Town Project) Office-for-sale 202015
& IRREMNER Shanghai Honggjao Xianfeng FE —E-FEENE 3200 5400 - 1000
Village Project Residential 402015
L8 WEROEERER  Shangha Honggiao Central Business HENEH —E-NEEME 135,700 - 500
District Project Office-for-sale 402015 84800
£§ WRROEEREE  Shangha Honggiao Central Business = —ENEREIR ' 34,900 - 500
District Project Residential 202016
& FEEER Shanghai Huacao Project HER R “E-REEC-F 14,800 30,100 - 500
Office-for-sale 202015
5 nZ=EER Shanghai Jiuting Town Project HETREH “EREEF 41500 106,300 - 150
Office-for-sale 102016
R (EE)AERLAA | —E =555 45
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RN ZXEBEBR=ZZF—=ZF+ =8 Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
=+— B L hREEEMAE) 2013 (Continued)
BB D (8 By property (Continued)
BEPREE
RRERMN
ARSHR
(FafFEl)
Total GFA under
BEHIE development AEE
RERZ AT R and held g
Primary Estimated for future Interest
intended use Completion {3 E®  development fE  attributable
EH Project of the project date Site Area (Carpark excluded) Pre-sold tothe Group
(E7K) (ERK) (ERX)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
& 2LEHER Shanghai Jinshan New Town Project = “E-NEFE-F 108,400 199,000 - 500
Residential 202016
£E BB e AE Shanghai CIF| Pleasant Garden frx S 36,500 69,000 14500 1000
Residential 202014
BN BB ERE Suzhou CIF Luxury Courtyard = “E-MEFNE 110,200 259,000 184,600 1000
Residential 402014
BN JER e 5 Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion Usonian #=x “Z-nFE-F 42,900 108,800 22,300 490
City Villa Residential 202015
B MEeAAERE Suzhou CIFI rivate Mansion frx “Z-nEECEF 55,600 98,600 53,300 1000
Residential 202015
BN OBE « M Suzhou CIFl Elegant City i3 —Z-nE/ 93900 256,900 14,700 1000
[Formerly known as: Suzhou CIFf Meilan Residential —ERE
Town) 2015/2016
B BE e HE Suzhou CIFl Sunny Life (Formerly known as: £ “F-RFENE 32,700 79900 10,100 1000
Suzhou CIFI Joyous Mansion) Residential 402015
B BB BREE Suzhou CIFI Apple Paradise frx i e 42,400 88,000 - 510
(BN =HEFEE (Suzhou Gaoxin District Hushuguan No53  Residential 402015
BN Project]
M st iBEs, Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City i3 —E-REFECF 235,100 - 500
(WM BIREEEZHIE  (Hangzhou Binjiang Olympic & Interational  Residential 202016
B) Expo Center Project) 500
M GRfess Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City e “I-RNEENE ' 31000 - 500
(il BTREHEENIE  (Hangzhou Binjiang Olympic & International - Office-for-sale 402016
B) Expo Center Project)
N EEERR Hangzhou Henderson CIFI Palace =z “Z-hEENE 86,700 220,800 - 490
(WM #M=B#H2058  (Hangzhou Yuhang Chongxian New Town  Residential 402015
) No.24 Project]
Tl AREBESI8%E  Hangzhou Yuhang Chongian New Town =z —E-NEE-F 35,300 90,800 - 500
JEH No.18 Project Residential 202016
AL 85 o BI7F Hefei CIFI Pivate Mansion frx —E-IEERE 107,200 302900 149,600 1000
Residential 402014
AR BRIER Hefei Baohe District Project #=x —E-1F/ 64,000 204,900 - 30
Residential —ENE
2015/2016
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Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December

2013 (Continued)

BB D (8 By property (Continued)
BRPREE
RRBEN
HREER
(TFafEEEN)
Total GFA under
BHHIE development XEE
RERZ PR T R and held bR
Primary Estimated for future Interest
intended use Completion {3 EE  development FHE attributable
EH Project of the project date Site Area  (Carpark excluded) Pre-sold tothe Group
(E7%) (EH*) (EH%)
(squm.) (sg.m.) (sgum.) (%)
R R Jiaxing CIFI Private Mansion % “E-nFENE 24,400 77,000 - 1000
Residential 402015
RE BB TR Jiaxing CIF Canal County % “E-nFENE 92,400 166,500 - 1000
(B2 ZNFEER) (Jiaxing Xiuzhou New District Project) ~~~ Residential 402015
Ro% Pan Bohai Rim
R B e 55 Beijing CIFI Private Villa Riverside Garden “E-MEERE 76,400 142500 33,600 800
Residential 402014
IR B e EREAL Beijing CIFI International Negotiate Garden ~ §4& 78 —E-NEENE 34,600 106,200 103,700 1000
Office-for-sale 402014
IR B eERM Beijing CIFI The Education Park HENEN “E-nFENE 30,800 86,600 35,400 1000
Office-for-sale 402015
pa= XD Tianijin CIFI Rosedale Ea “E-MEE-E 120,700 272,000 92,000 1000
Residential —T-REERE
20201440 2015
K2 BB efftE Tianiin CIFI Paradise Bay % “E-n%E=% 65,500 163,000 7800 510
Residential RREE=R
30.2015/30 2016
RE B o BT Tianjin CIFl Private Mansion =z RERHM-_T-1%F 165,200 322,300 36,900 190
Residential EIT+F
By phases from 2015 to
017
Rz BEIZHAEE  Tianjin Binhai lndustrial Office Project TERHAE “E-1E 262,300 307,700 - 1000
—H Phase | Industrial office park 2015
Rz BEIZHNEE  Tianjin Binhai lndustrial Office Project TERHAE —E-RE 168,500 168500 - 1000
—H Phase Industrial office park 2016
s RERER Shenyang Dongling District Project i3 “E-NEE-F 81,500 162,800 - 1000
Residential 202016
B B e T Langfang CIF| Path Walf % “E-MEERE 140,600 266,100 64,200 1000
Residential 402014
BB (EE)BRAT | —T—=FFf 47
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Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December

2013 (Continued)

BYEE S (8 By property (Continued)
BEPREE
ARERN
AREER
(FREFER)
Total GFA under
BEEE development pie- 4 |
RERZ g an=k: and held FEfGER
Primary Estimated for future Interest
intended use Completion {3 EE  development FHE attributable
EH Project of the project date Site Area  (Carpark excluded) Pre-sold tothe Group
(EHX) (ERX) (ERX)
(squm.) (sg.m.) (sgum.) (%)
Lt Central Western Region
BE 1B PED Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town =2 “E-NEENE 18,700 56,000 - 1000
Residential 402014
BE BB LH Chongqing CIFI Purple City HENEH “E-MEERE 44,400 151,900 40,100 1000
Office-for-sale 402014
EE BB FRAE Chongging CIF! Jade Mansion HEREH “E-REE-F 24,200 58,500 - 1000
Office-for-sale 102016
ER feE Chongaing CIFI City fre BEBR-F-0F 448200 - 1000
(EF EBEmRE®ER) (Chongging Banan District Project) Residential e
By phases from 2015 to
ar 192,400
EE JBEy Chongging CIFI City HEMES REGEH-E-1E ' 193,300 - 1000
(EF EBEmREER) (Chongging Banan District Project) Office-for-sale e
By phases from 2015 to
2017
&Y B « HIF Changsha CIFl Private Mansion =2 —E-MEEME 97,500 162,900 57,800 1000
Residential 402014
Y BEeBE Changsha CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay i3 “E-REE-F 41,500 148,800 - 80.0
(EY EHELER) (Changsha Nancheng Centre Project) Residential 202016
£Y ZZER Changsha Hualing Project =z “E-REFECF 131,150 - 1000
Residential 202016 % 400
Ry #EER Changsha Hualing Project HENEH —E—+E ' 136,750 - 1000
Office-for-sale 217
HE B o SR Wuhan CIFl Private Mansion frx “Z-nEENE/ 133,500 348700 - 500
(R FHS%EIER)  (Wuhan Donghu Gaoxin District Project]  Residential I EENE
402015/40.2016
3,357,800 7,120,700 1,086,300
Hih Other
Eafi Carpark 1,404,700 700
8,525,400 1,067,000
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Table 6: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December
2013 (Continued)

RILEE D By region

BT EEEE DL
% of total land bank
(%)
k=M Yangtze River Delta 49
REE Pan Bohai Rim 25
FRPEER Central Western Region 26
100

RIEE BRSNS By type of project
AL REETSL
% of total land bank
(%)
F=1EE Residential projects 75
HETHIIEE Office-for-sale projects 24
AR EAD Investment properties and others 1
100

—E-CHFENLRE
R-ZE—=FH/H  AEERES A2
A% IER - EF1918E B Jy@BHAH
NS AEREHELERE 1B
BUYTEA A S YR LR 2B IR R -
BE-T—=F9 A&EEREEHEBAE
¥ HEWEREFLERKREEHR
RF#EFKEEE ALAKER_-F
—=FHENEH21EAREEEP 12
EES=EE -

AEERZZT—=FWHE T BRI
M4 A3,800,000F 5K - Hep
7N 5 B % AN # 2515 2,700,000 F 5 K o
AEEBTHEENERERENABAR
#16,975,900,0007T © AAEBEREE
REEBEENR T EZENERARKE
10,771,600,000 7T ° 1R 45 7~ & [ & {4 U
BHREEEEREGRERE XEH
RZE—=FHFH L BER AL A
F¥HAKAREEL,0507T ©

TBIBEpR (M) ER AR | —E—SFER

Land acquisition in 2013

During the year 2013, the Group purchased a total of 21 new projects,
out of which 19 projects were acquired through government-held
public tenders, auctions or listing-for-sale and the other 2 property
projects were acquired through acquisition of equity interest. Since the
beginning of 2013, the Group has been utilising equity joint ventures
with property developers and financial investors to jointly develop the
newly acquired projects. Out of the total 21 new projects acquired by
the Group in 2013, 12 were equity joint ventures.

Total planned GFA of the Group’s land acquisition in 2013 amounted
to approximately 3.8 million sg.m., out of which 2.7 million sq.m.
were attributable to the Group's equity interests. Total contracted
consideration of the Group's land acquisition amounted to
approximately RMB16,975.9 million, out of which RMB10,771.6
million were payable by the Group according to its equity interests in
relevant projects. Based on the Group's attributable GFA acquired and
the attributable acquisition considerations, the Group’s average land
acquisition cost in 2013 was approximately RMB4,050 per sg.m.
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xt  XEBR-_S-—=FEM1iUkE Table 7: The Group’s land acquisition in 2013

EiERE

BEER

REREAR (T8f
(TBE  FEf)

AE£E BEfI)  Attributable b2

HEERERE RaER Planned GFA Planned EERE  TiEA

b EH Primary intended Group's equity {EEE excluding  GFA excluding KE  Atributable Average
City Project use of the project interest Site area carpark carpark  Consideration Consideration land cost
(AR¥%T/

(Fh%) (¥5%) (%) (AR¥m) (AR¥7) E5K)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (sq.m) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)

“E-CEHTHKNE
Land acquisition in 2013
g TBIE e DEB(REIXRER) frz 500 30,200 38500 19250 515000000 257,500,000 13377
Shanghai CIFI Arthur Shire (Kangajao Industrial District Project) Residential
g EEER HERER 500 14,800 30,100 15050 182,200,000 91,100,000 6,053
Shanghai Huacao Project Office-for-sale
g If%OEBRER HENERRET 500 84,800 170,600 85300 2144000000  1,072,000,000 12567
Shanghai Honggiao Central Business District Project Office-for-sale and Residential
g NEEER HERER 50 41500 106,300 4780 37500000 165,375,000 3457
Shanghai Jiuting Town Project Office-for-sale
g UFER frz 500 108,400 199,000 99500 704010000 352,005,000 3538
Shanghai Jinshan New Town Project Residential
Bl ThRReti frz 1000 32,700 79900 79900 242000000 242,000,000 309
Suzhou CIFl Sunny Life (Formerly known as: CIFI Joyous Mansion)  Residential
Bl TBIE « BRERE (RHEFEERER) fr= 5.0 42400 88,000 44880 240000000 122400000 A
Suzhou CIF Apple Paradise (Gaoxin District Hushuguan Residential

No. 59 Project]
il i BEg (BT RERERER) FERBENEH 500 58,800 266,100 133050 3565000000  1,782,500,000 13397
Hangzhou Greenland CIFl Glorious City (Binjiang Olympic & Residential and Office-for-sale

International Expo Center Project]
il BERER(AMEENHRER) =z 490 86,700 220800 108190 763000000 373,870,000 345
Hangzhou Henderson CIFl Palace (Yuhang Chongyian New Town Residential

No. 24 Project]
il RMEEHI8HIER =z 500 3,300 90,800 HA00 35000000 182500000 400
Hangzhou Yuhang Chongxian New Town No.18 Project Residential
2 ARER = 30 64,000 204,900 6760 462048600  152476,038 205
Hefei Baohe District Project Residential
R TRIBOEIRT =z 1000 24,400 77,000 7100 151791636 151,791,636 191
Jiaxing CIFI Private Mansion Residential
R T8E 0 LB FNFERER) fr= 1000 92400 166,500 166500 312990640 312,990,640 1880
Jiaxing CIFI Canal County (Xiuzhou New District Project] Residential
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&t REBNR—E—=FW1ikiE @) Table 7: The Group’s land acquisition in 2013 (Continued)
L |
BE@R
RUREER (Taf
(Faf BEfr)
r5E EEf)  Atributable 27
EETEREAR RAgR Planned GFA Planned EERE  1#AE
b R Primary intended Group'sequity M excluding GFA excluding RE  Atributable Average
City Project use of the project interest Site area carpark carpark  Consideration  Consideration land cost
(AR¥71/
(F5K)  (Ba%)  (FAK)  (AR¥R) (AR%7) FhK)
(%) (sqm) (sq.m) (squm.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)
IR JBBSERS HEREH 1000 30800 86,600 86500 537088400 537,088,400 6,202
Beijing CIFl The Education Park Office-for-sale
PN fRiReIf fr® 90 165,200 3230 157,930 1,340,000000 656,600,000 4158
Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion Residential
A RIERIER frz 1000 81,500 162800 162800 292004108 232,224,108 1785
Shenyang Dongling District Project Residential
£ BBERNE HEREH 1000 24,200 58,500 58500 101000000 101,000,000 1726
Chongging CIFl Jade Mansion Office-for-sale
£ s (EaRER) FERHELEH 1000 192.400 641,500 641,500 1,900,000,000  1,900,000,000 292
Chongging CIFI City (Banan District Project] Residential and Office-for-sale
R R o LR (A LER) fr® 800 41500 148,800 119040 460,550,000 368,440,000 30%
Changsha CIFl Comfortable Joyous Bay {Nancheng Centre Project) Residential
R £5ER FERHELEH 1000 9,400 267,900 7900 94593 984,924,593 3676
Changsha Hualing Project Residential and Office-for-sale
HE BRI (RMEMEEE) fr® 500 139,500 348,700 174350 1345570000 672,785,000 3859
Wouhan CIFI Private Mansion (Donghu Gaoxin District Project] Residential
ZE-ZETCAST-R# (REZXEDNERAL) NIbyE
Land acquisition subsequent to 31 December 2013 (and up to the date of the results announcement)
& TIHBRAGRRER fr® 1000 49400 148,300 148300 210,000,000 210,000,000 1416
Zhenjiang Dingmao New District Guyang Road East Project Residential
R (EE)AERLAA | —E =555 51



WP W B o B

Management Discussion and Analysis

/)lbibﬁﬁ N ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁ/ﬁ
WEART
AEER-_TE—=F+ZA=+—
HEERTEHBREASOHOARE
7,060,700,0007 T (Z T ——F : AR
4,590,700,0007t) * BEATFRLHAR
#100,000,0007C(ZF——F : &)X
PR 53R 4 AR #521,800,000T0( =& ——
&+ AR¥21,800,0007T) °

E%
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 ' A&
EEREERTERBBOARARE
13,292,000,0007( =2 ——F : AR
8,865,400,0007T) * BIFEERITERK « &
FE N E M E A A K %10,154,100,000
T(ZE—=—F : AR#%¥8,865,400,000
TL)UERR ZZE—N\FMH AR HEAES
AR #3,137,900,000 B EEE (=
T—_F \E) N_T—=F+_A
=+—HB AEETEEAREMER
FARESTE T A A R¥82,000,00070( =
——4F : AR#85,000,0007T) c R —Z
—=ZF+-A=+—8 ' AEEAHX
BAMIRITEIE A K% 3,045,200,0007T
(Z=—=%F : AR™1,472,200,0007T) °

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash position

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately RMB7,060.7
million (2012: RMB4,590.7 million), pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB100.0 million (2012: Nil) and restricted cash of
RMB21.8 million (2012: RMB21.8 million) as at 31 December 2013.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding total borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB13,292.0 million (2012: RMB8,865.4
million), comprising bank loans, trust and other loans of approximately
RMB10,154.1 million (2012: RMB8,865.4 million) and senior notes due
April 2018 with an carrying amount of RMB3,137.9 million (2012: Nil).
As at 31 December 2013, the Group also had trust and other loans
related derivatives of RMB82.0 million (2012: RMB85.0 million). As
at 31 December 2013, the Group had un-utilised banking facilities of
RMB3,045.2 million (2012: RMB1,472.2 million).

TN #73h o JE3ESL Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City
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(Continued)

Indebtedness (Continued)

Table 8: Breakdown of indebtedness
By type of borrowings and maturity

—E-=F T4
+=A=+—-B | +=ZA=+—H
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
ARETR ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BRRITER Onshore bank loans
—FR Within one year 1,119,355 1,898,000
—F LA E - BRHBBMRE Over one years and within two years 1,311,022 1,798,646
MEE - B BB=F Over two years and within three years 3,684,353 840,382
=FP L BBBEF Over three years and within four years - 262,000
MEME - BETBBART Over four years and within five years - 12,000
AFELE Over five years 619,032 633,023
INET Subtotal 6,733,762 5,444,051
BRGEEREMER Onshore trust and other loans
—FR Within one year 1,815,288 1,098,380
—F LA E - BRHBBMRE Over one years and within two years 339,885 1,557,641
MEE - BRBB=F Over two years and within three years 334,330 389,496
INET Subtotal 2,489,503 3,045,517
BIMRITER Offshore bank loans
—FR Within one year - 375,840
—FP L BBBME Over one year and within two years 232,708 -
MELAE - B RHBR=F Over two years and within three years 698,125 -
e Subtotal 930,833 375,840
BIMBEARE Offshore senior notes
MEME - BETBBARSE Over four years and within five years 3,137,901 -
INEE Subtotal 3,137,901 -
st TOTAL 13,291,999 8,865,408
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(Continued)
Indebtedness (Continued)

Table 8: Breakdown of indebtedness (Continued)

By currency denomination

—B-=F e
+=B=+—-8| +=ZA=+—8H
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
AR¥T T AREBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
INEEEI DB Analysis of borrowings by currency

—AARKEEE — Denominated in RMB 9,223,265 8,489,568
—AZEITEHE — Denominated in USD 3,598,823 -
—LABTTEHE — Denominated in HKD 469,911 375,840
13,291,999 8,865,408

REESH T ERZE D By fixed or variable interest rates
=B =5 —E——F
+=H=+—-HB| t=ZA=+—8
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EFE & Fixed interest rates 5,617,036 2,785,670
TFEF R Variable interest rates 7,674,963 6,079,738
13,291,999 8,865,408
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AR B#E o fIfF Hefei CIFI Private Mansion

KiE fB¥E o 4T Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Cost of borrowings

The Group's total finance costs expensed and capitalized in 2013 was
approximately RMB1,098.3 million, representing an increase of 56.0%
from RMB704.1 million in 2012. The increase was mainly attributable
to higher average balance of indebtedness in 2013.

The Group’s weighted average cost of all indebtedness (including
bank loans, trust and other loans and senior notes) as at 31 December
2013 was 9.2%, compared to 10.0% as at 31 December 2012. The
decrease in weighted average cost of indebtedness during the year
was primarily attributable to the decrease in the average proportion
of non-bank borrowings (trust and other loans) to total indebtedness
during the year. These non-bank borrowings generally had higher
interest costs.

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s
certain bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior
notes are denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material
exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and may, depending on the
circumstances and trend of foreign currencies, consider adopting a
significant foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

i I-'.'I i His
et

$BT JLfff‘é B Zhenjiang CIFI Times
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Financial guarantees

The Group has provided mortgage guarantees to PRC banks in respect
of the mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group's
customers. The Group’s mortgage guarantees are issued from the
dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon
the earlier of (i) the relevant property ownership certificates being
obtained and the certificates of other interests with respect to the
relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagee banks, or (i) the
settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee banks and the
Group's customers. As at 31 December 2013, the Group provided
mortgage guarantees in respect of mortgage loans provided by the
PRC banks to the Group’s customers amounting to RMB977.7 million
(versus 31 December 2012: RMB1,667.3 million).

Gearing ratio

The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total indebtedness net of bank
balances and cash and restricted cash divided by total equity) was
67.6% as at 31 December 2013 versus 62.5% as at 31 December
2012. The Group's debt-to-asset ratio (total indebtedness divided by
total assets) was 34.0% as at 31 December 2013 versus 33.0% as at
31 December 2012. The Group’s current ratio (current assets divided
by current liabilities) was 1.6 times as at 31 December 2013 versus 1.7
times as at 31 December 2012.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 3,600 full-
time employees in the PRC including Hong Kong, out of them,
approximately 1,500 employees worked for the property development
business and 2,100 in the property investment, property management
and other businesses.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total
remuneration of the employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus
and share-based incentives.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Zhong, aged 45, our founder, is the executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Lin Zhong has about 23 years of
experience in the real estate business. He was appointed as Director
on 20 May 2011 and is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and is
also a substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Zhong was awarded “2010 Star of
Real Estates” by Fudan University Real Estate Research Center and
other institutions, “2013 Shanghai Real Estate Outstanding Leaders”
by (MES) Magazine and “Golden Phoenix Global Chinese Real
Estate Outstanding Growth Entrepreneur” by ifeng.com, Phoenix
Television and China Real Estate Journal in 2014. He was appointed
as the Member of the Board of Directors of the Oriental Real Estate
Institute, the Council Member of the Council Board of Shanghai
Land Institute in 2011, the Vice Chairman of Fujian Chamber of
Commerce in Shanghai, Vice Chairman of Shanghai Population
Welfare Foundation, Vice Chairman of National Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce and Honorary Chairman of its Shanghai Sub-Chamber
in 2013. Mr. Lin Zhong graduated from the Xiamen University with
a bachelor’s degree in economics. He further pursued and obtained
an executive master of business administration degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Lin Zhong is a brother of Mr.
Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng.

Mr. LIN Wei, aged 41, is the executive Director and Vice-Chairman
of the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Wei has
about 18 years of experience in the real estate business. He laid the
foundation of our Group's development with Mr. Lin Zhong. Mr. Lin
Wei is a brother of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Feng.
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Mr. LIN Feng, aged 38, is the executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin
Feng has about 14 years of experience in the real estate business.
He joined our Group in 2001. He was appointed as Director on 20
May 2011. Mr. Lin Feng was awarded “Shanghai Fifty-Four Youth
Medal” and “Shanghai Putuo District China Socialism Outstanding
Contributors” in 2013. He is currently a Council Member of All-China
Youth Federation, Executive Council Member of Shanghai Youth
Federation, Executive Council Member of Shanghai Federation of
Industry and Commerce (Commerce Chamber), Council Member of
Shanghai Changning District Association of Industry and Commerce
(Commerce Chamber), the Executive Council Member of Shanghai
Putuo District Youth Federation, Representative of the Shanghai
Putuo District People’s Congress, Member of the Board of Shanghai
Institute of Visual Art and Director of CIFI Charity Foundation. Mr. Lin
Feng graduated from the Xiamen University with a bachelor’'s degree
in economics and further obtained a master of business administration
degree from the University of Dundee. Mr. Lin Feng is a brother of Mr.
Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Wei.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GU Yunchang, aged 69, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Gu was the vice chairman
of the China Real Estate Research Association from 2006 to May 2013
and had also been the vice chairman and secretary-general of the
China Real Estate Association from 1998 to 2006.

Mr. Gu formerly served at different positions in the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC, including the deputy director at Policy
Research Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1988 to 1998;
the person-in-charge of the City and Township Residence Research
Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1986 to 1988; and the Deputy
Division Head and Division Head at Urban Residence Bureau of
Ministry of Construction from 1979 to 1986.
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Mr. Gu specialises in theory and policy research, market research
and analysis concerning China real estate industry. In the 1980s,
he participated in the policy research and formulation of China’s
city and village residential construction techniques, carrying on a
State key project “2000 China”, and won the First Class National
Science Technology Advance Award in China twice. After joining
the China Real Estate Association in 1998, he has been involved in
promoting the development of the China real estate industry as well
as undertaking the research and analysis of the national real estate
market. He is also the main organiser and writer of the China Real
Estate Market Report, an annual analysis report issued by the China
Real Estate Association. Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive
director of Shimao Property Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 813)
from April 2006 to May 2011. Mr. Gu has been the independent non-
executive director of Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 3377) and of E-House (China) Holdings Limited (NYSE stock
code: EJ) since 2007 and 2008, respectively. Mr. Gu has also been the
independent director of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock
code: 000031) and Zhejiang Yasha Decoration Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock
code: 002375) since April 2012. Mr. Gu obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Urban Planning from Tongji University.

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, aged 59, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics from East China Normal University where he taught
since his graduation and he had become a professor of the Business
School at the same university since 1998. He is currently a tenured
professor at East China Normal University, and the Dean of Shanghai
E-house China R&D Institute, concurrently as the vice president of
the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and Agents, Shanghai
Economist Association, Shanghai Real Estate Economy Society, as
well as Council Member of China Real Estate Association. Mr. Zhang
has been the independent director of Shanghai Wanye Enterprises Co.
Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600641) since May 2010.
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Mr. TAN Wee Seng, aged 58, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2012 and is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Tan is a professional in value and business management consultancy.
He is a non-executive director of Xtep International Holdings Limited
(SEHK stock code: 1368), an independent non-executive director of
Sa Sa International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 178) and an
independent non-executive director and chairman of remuneration
committee of Biostime International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock
code: 1112), the shares of all of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, an independent director of ReneSola Ltd (NYSE
stock code: SOL), the shares of which are listed on the NYSE, and
a board member and chairman of finance committee of Beijing City
International School, an academic institution in Beijing. Mr. Tan had
been an independent director of 7 Days Group Holdings Limited listed
in the New York Stock Exchange since November 2009 to July 2013
when the Group privatized and he was the chairman of the special
committee for privatization from October 2012 to July 2013.

Mr. Tan has over 30 years of financial management, corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, business management and strategy
development experience. He has also held various management
and senior management positions in a number of multi-national
corporations. From 2003 to 2008, he was an executive director,
chief financial officer and company secretary of Li Ning Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. From 1999 to 2002, he was the senior vice president of
Reuters for China, Mongolia and North Korea regions, and the chief
representative of Reuters in China. Prior to that, he had served as
the managing director of AFE Computer Services Limited, a Reuters
subsidiary in Hong Kong which was a company mainly engaged in
domestic equity and financial information services, and as director
of Infocast Pty Limited, a Reuters subsidiary in Australia and as
the regional finance manager of Reuters East Asia. Mr. Tan is a
professional accountant and a fellow member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants in United Kingdom, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. Mr. Yau has over 19 years of experience in capital
markets and corporate management. He joined the Group in July
2011. From December 2005 to June 2011, Mr. Yau was the director
of corporate affairs of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited, where
he was responsible for corporate finance, business development
and investor relations. From January 2003 to December 2005, he
was a director of DBS Asia Capital Limited. From September 1999 to
January 2003, he worked for ICEA Capital Limited and his last position
held was executive director (investment banking division). During his
employment with DBS Asia Capital Limited and ICEA Capital Limited,
Mr. Yau executed a wide variety of capital markets and corporate
finance transactions, including initial public offerings, equity fund
raisings, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate restructuring. Mr.
Yau graduated from the University of California at Berkeley with a
bachelor of science degree. He is also a holder of Chartered Financial
Analyst.

Mr. CHEN Dongbiao, aged 46, is the Executive Vice President
of the Group, responsible for overall management of operations,
construction, procurement and cost, and business development of
Yangtze Delta Region. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2013. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd., and
held the positions of Director of Engineering of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
General Manager and Chairman of Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Chen graduated from the China Europe International Business
School with a master of business administration degree, and Shanghai
City Construction Institute with a bachelor of engineering degree.
Mr. Chen was a Representative of Shanghai Pudong District People’s
Congress from 1997 to 2002 and has been a Committee Member of
Shanghai Minhang District Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. SHEN Zhenyu, aged 59, is the Chief In-house Legal Counsel of
the Group. Mr. Shen has various experience in legal work. Mr. Shen
joined the Group in May 2005. Prior to joining the Group, he obtained
the senior judge certificate (Grade 4) in the PRC and served in the
judiciary in the PRC.
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Mr. ZHANG Liang, aged 40, is the Vice President and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in
February 2012. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked in SPH Ke
Yuan Xinhai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (formerly known as CITIC Pharma
Co., Ltd.) as the Chief Human Resources Officer from July 2010 to
January 2012. He also worked in Tianjin Tasly Group Co., Ltd. as the
President Assistant and the Director of the Human Resources Centre
from April 2005 to July 2010. Mr. Zhang had worked in Motorola (China)
Electronics Limited from December 1995 to April 2005, as the Human
Resources Manager of semi-conductor department and the Asia
Pacific Representative of Global Performance Management Project.
Mr. Zhang graduated from the China Europe International Business
School with a master of business administration degree, and Tianjin
Foreign Studies University with a bachelor of arts degree.

Mr. ZHU Yu, aged 51, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined our Group in March 2006. Prior to joining our Group, he was
the secretary of the board and deputy general manager of Jiangsu
Xiake Color Spinning Co., Ltd, a listed company in the PRC. Mr.
Zhu graduated from Nanjin Normal University (F A& AER) with a
bachelor's degree in mathematics. He also obtained the qualification

of associate professor in the PRC.

Mr. PAN Taoyuan, aged 46, is the President Assistant and Director of
Investment and Development. Mr. Pan joined the Group in February
2008 and was previously the Group’s General Manager of Sales and
Marketing Management Centre of the Group. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Pan worked in Shanghai P & R Real Estate Consultant Co.,
Ltd as the deputy general manager from October 2004 to January
2007. Mr. Pan graduated from the National Taichung Institute of
Technology majoring in Japanese language.

Mr. DING Yuangang, aged 47, is the Director of Operations
Management of the Group. Mr. Ding joined the Group in June
2010. He had various experience in information technology. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as Group Chief Information Officer for
Chongging Longhu Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Ding graduated from
the Harbin Institute of Technology University with a bachelor degree in
computer software. He further completed the Mini-EMBA programme
at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Ding also obtained
the qualification of senior engineer in the PRC. He has been awarded
the Excellent Chief Information Officer Awards 2009.
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Mr. YANG Xin, aged 40, is the General Manager of Finance Centre of
the Group. Mr. Yang joined the Group in July 2010. He has experience
in banking and finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in various
management positions at Agricultural Bank of China Limited. Mr. Yang
graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor’s
degree in international finance and further obtained a master of
business administration degree. He also holds the Senior International
Finance Manager qualification issued by International Financial
Management Association.

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming (Lawrence), aged 39, is the Director of
Investor Relations of the Group. He has extensive experience in
investor relations, investment banking, Listing Rules compliance and
accounting. In his career, Mr. Leung has worked for Powerlong Real
Estate Holdings Limited, Macquarie Capital (Hong Kong) Limited,
DBS Asia Capital Limited, the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong and Ernst & Young. Mr. Leung received his bachelor’s
degree in commerce and LLB from the University of Calgary and the
University of London respectively. He is a charter holder of the CFA
Institute, member of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He joined the Group in June 2013.

Mr. LIU Feng, aged 38, is the Director of Cost Management of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined in the Group in August 2011. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Liu worked for China Resources Land (Shanghai) Co.
Ltd from 2003 to 2011 and held the position of Contract Manager,
Shanghai and Zhejiang Area Contract Responsible Officer. Before
that, he worked for Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. as Head
of Procurement in Engineering Management Department. Mr. Liu
graduated from Zhejiang University majoring in civil engineering, with
a master degree in engineering.

Mr. GE Ming, aged 34, is the Director of Human Resources of the
Group. Mr. Ge joined the Group in April 2012 and have vast experience
in human resources management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ge
worked at Oriental Cambridge Education Group as the Director of
Human Resources and a Member of the Executive Committee. Prior
to that, Mr. Ge worked at Shanghai Tuosheng Associates and Longfor
Properties. Mr. Ge graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor’'s
degree in economics, majoring in international finance.
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Mr. ZHAN Peng (Peter), aged 35, is the Director of Design
Management of the Group. Mr. Zhan joined the Group in June 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhan worked for China Resources
Land (Shandong) Co., Ltd. from 2010 to 2013 as Director of Design
Department. Between 2000 and 2010, he worked in the United
States for various international architectural firms including Callison,
Leo A Daly and Lessard. Mr. Zhan obtained bachelor’'s degree in
architecture from Tianjin University, master’'s degree in architecture
from Washington University in St. Louis and is a registered architect in
Washington D.C., Virginia and Maryland in the United States.

Mr. ZHOU Qing, aged 33, is the General Manager of Sales
Management Centre of the Group. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in July
2011. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou worked for China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. and held sales management positions in Nanjing Vanke Real Estate
Co., Ltd., Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Sunan Vanke
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhou graduated from Nanjing University
with a master’s degree in management, majoring in land resources
management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mpr. LO Tai On, aged 59, was appointed as our Company Secretary
in October 2012. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 26 years of experience
in the field of company secretarial services and is now a director of
Fair Wind Secretarial Services Ltd., a secretarial company rendering
secretarial services. Mr. Lo is also the company secretary of AAC
Technologies Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2018), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (SEHK stock code: 239), and Good Friend
International Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2398), all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

During the year under review, the Board is of opinion that the
Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board consisted of six Directors
including Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman), Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman), Mr.
LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer) as the Executive Directors; and
Mr. GU Yunchang, Mr. ZHANG Yongyue and Mr. TAN Wee Seng as
the Independent Non-Executive Directors. The overall management
and supervision of the Company’s operation and the function of
formulating overall business strategies were vested in the Board.

Save as Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng are the brothers of Mr. LIN
Zhong, there are no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (Continued)

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors represent half of
the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what is required by
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the
board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in
the Board to safeguard the interest of shareholders.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at
31 December 2013, the Board comprised six Directors, including three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Their names and biographical details are set in the section entitled
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the
Company was maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage
for certain legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing
their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of Executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them
to deal in securities of the Company at any time when he possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees
was noted by the Company.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external auditors on
the financial statements of the Group are set out in the “Independent
Auditor's Report” in this annual report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. They bring an impartial view
on issues of the Company's strategies, performance and control.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess extensive academic,

professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

The Board also considers that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors can provide independent advice on the Company’s business
strategies, results and management so as to safeguard the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. As at 31 December 2013, none of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors held any other offices in the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company. For
the year under review, all Independent Non-Executive Directors have
confirmed their independence to the Company in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“"AGM") upon
retirement. The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member
of the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
members of Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM of the Company, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director
by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period
of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by
ordinary resolution elect another person in his stead.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times a year.
During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings
and one general meeting.

BEEMLERSNT ¢ The attendance of each Director is as follows:
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
Total no. of Total no. of
Board meetings general meetings
HEESESRAE HERRAERE
EEnE Name of Directors EE2SRAY BERASHEZ
HITEF Executive Directors
MRS A Mr. LIN Zhong 4/4 171
MBS A Mr. LIN Wei 4/4 171
RIS A Mr. LIN Feng 4/4 171
BUIHBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors
BEE%SAE Mr. GU Yunchang 4/4 0/1
FROKESTE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 4/4 0/1
PRIZR & Mr. TAN Wee Seng 4/4 171
BB (EE)BRAR | —T—=FF#K 69
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings (Continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training
received by Directors during the year under review according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

BHEER -
EERRR

H A AHBA = REE I
Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development

EElA Name of Directors and other relevant topics
HITEF Executive Directors

MRS A Mr. LIN Zhong v/
ME A Mr. LIN Wei v/
RIS A Mr. LIN Feng v
BB TESE Independent Non-Executive Directors

BEEENRE Mr. GU Yunchang v
RKERE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue v
PRIERK S Mr. TAN Wee Seng v
TEERINEE Corporate governance functions

EERRBRTHEXEABBEE

(@ BEREEHAAREREABRK
AR

b) RAMEEEENSREEARN
BB R R ER

© WIREERRTBREER A
BTARENMEERE

(d) BE- RIMEEERANEENE
EMRTERERFM(ME)
K&

(e) i@Ef AR B EST LT AR BRI &40
ZBER(EREETAREEE R
&) e
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) toreview the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year under review, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. LIN Zhong, and Chief Executive Officer was held
by Mr. LIN Feng. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer's responsibility to manage the Company’s
business.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the Company’s website.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to provide the
Board with an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the
Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. TAN Wee Seng (being the chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue.
In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of
the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the senior management and independent auditor of the Company
to consider the independence and audit scope of independent auditor,
and to review and discuss the internal control system, interim and
annual financial statements of the Company and the opinion and
report of independent auditor before submitting to the Board for their
approval.

BB ERsENT The attendance of each member is as follows:
No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESBRE
REHESH Name of members 2EEY
PRIERK S A (EFF) Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman) 2/2
BEEXE Mr. GU Yunchang 2/2
RAKELAE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2/2

FHEEE Remuneration Committee
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but not limited to): (a)
making recommendations to our Directors on our policy, structure
remuneration packages, for all remuneration of our Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(b) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of our
Directors and senior management; and (c) reviewing and approving
performance — based remuneration be reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by our Directors from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, of whom
two are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members
are Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. LIN Zhong, our Executive Director and Chairman and
Mr. TAN Wee Seng.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the remuneration structure of the Directors
and senior management of the Group and appraisal system of the
key positions of the Group, discuss the challenges of attracting and
retaining senior level staff of the Company, and make recommendation
on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management for 2014.

BEEMEFERSENT ¢ The attendance of each member is as follows:
No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESERE
REHA Name of members erimaney
FoKELRA (EF) Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman) 1/1
A S A Mr. LIN Zhong 1/1
BRIE K S Mr. TAN Wee Seng 1/1

REBFERMNAES ZFHMFBHN
AR EARMEE o M BF RN
R EIEE Z HINEA TEE -

Details of the remuneration payable to the Directors during the year
under review are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. The remuneration payable to the senior management
during the year under review falls within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AB
£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3
1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
1,500,001 7C%2,000,000/% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 6
2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1
2,500,0017% 70 23,000,000/ 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2

REZEE

ARBIEKUIEREZEE > WERLES
A RIP SR+ ST RISEA BERRIARE » AT3L
EHRELE - REZEENTIERE
REFEFGORE - RERMENK - I
RHBEHIEEOARE EREFT &
FHEEFI N EELIFNTEETNE
THMEESRHES -
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and select and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors, re-appointment
of Directors, succession planning for directors and assesses the
independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, of whom two
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The three members are Mr.
LIN Zhong (being the chairman of the Nomination Committee), the
Executive Director and Chairman, Mr. GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG
Yongyue.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the composition of the Board and its committees
as well as the background and experiences of the Board members
and evaluate the contributions of the Board members to the Group in
2013 and make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors and assesses the independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

BB EREIT The attendance of each member is as follows:

No. of
meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings
HESERE
REH®A Name of members iy
MAPEE(ER) Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman) 1/1
BEEELE Mr. GU Yunchang 1/1
RoKELAE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 11

EEEHESZTLER Board Diversity Policy

ARABCHMEETEKNEZ TILEER
(TRE]) > EhHEFTERER NS
FREZT AR ETE Z AR
BRER 2 T3t

BIBEBSR - ARBASRKEBESTEK
EyEMA%meﬁﬁ'@%@$@
RUEER - Fie - XIERBEE = ~ KA

R R RIS

it BEER - B
ié o

EXelEEHERERRUHETR
R WP REZETRRARRELSE
BRHEEESZERR LR -

?E%iﬁ 2 S B R AT ERER
RITZB °

© AREIRIK

74

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement the
Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
In preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies
have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. Pursuant to
code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informal assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor, are set out on page 95 of
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remunerations paid or
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services
and non-audit services are approximately RMB3,500,000 and
RMB140,000, respectively. The amount for 2013 non-audit services
comprised mainly the tax-related services fee. The Audit Committee
was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2013 did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publications and the
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis

by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed
at least once each year by the Board.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its Company
Secretary. Mr. LO has confirmed that for the year under review, he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The
biography of Mr. LO is set out on page 64 of this annual report. Mr.
LO is not an employee of our Group and Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), our
Chief Financial Officer, is the person whom Mr. LO can contact for the
purpose of code F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does
not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ rights (Continued)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings (Continued)

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she
should give to the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the
intention to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed
for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available on the Company's website.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 2002-2003, One Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong (email: ir@cifi.com.cn).

(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. Effective investor relations can contribute towards lower
cost of capital, higher market liquidity for the Company’'s stocks and
bonds as well as a more stable investor base. The Company'’s investor
relations team is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant information
to investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner to keep them
aware of the Group’s corporate strategies and business operations.

The Company has adopted a stringent internal control system to
ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure of relevant
information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and regulations
in order to ensure all shareholders and investors equal access to
information.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

During the year, the Company has proactively taken the following

measures to ensure effective shareholders’ communication and

transparency:

° maintained frequent contacts with shareholders and investors
through various channels such as meetings, conference calls,
video meetings and emails;

o held numerous roadshows and participated in investor
conferences introducing the Group’s development strategies and
recent business developments;

° regularly update the Company’s news and developments through
the investor relations section of the Company's website;

° arranged on-site visits to the Group's projects for investors and
research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavours to
communicate with the investment community and provide them with
the latest development of the Group and the PRC real estate industry.

In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. In 2013, an
annual general meeting was held on 27 March 2013. The Chairman
of the Board, as well as Chairman of each of the Board Committees,
or in their absence, members of the respective Committees, and the
external auditors of the Company, were available to answer questions
from shareholders at the annual general meeting. At the annual
general meeting, procedures for conducting a poll were explained
by the Chairman and a resolution was proposed in respect of each
separate issue itemized in the agenda.

The forthcoming 2014 annual general meeting will be held on 2 April
2014.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

— P28 Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in

2013

2012 Final Results Announcement Events
Bond Issue Roadshow (Singapore, Hong Kong and London)

Investors On-Site Visits (Shanghai and Suzhou)

Annual General Meeting
DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Conference (Hong Kong)
HSBC Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)

Macquarie Greater China Conference (Hong Kong)
Barclays Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)
Citi Asia Property Conference (Hong Kong)

Macquarie China Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

2013 Interim Results Announcement Events

Hong Kong Non-Deal Roadshow (Arranged by Citi)

Singapore Non-Deal Roadshow (Arranged by Standard Chartered, Deutsche
Bank, Citi and DBS)

Hong Kong/Singapore Non-Deal Roadshow (Arranged by Deutsche Bank)
Hong Kong Non-Deal Roadshow (Arranged by China Orient Securities)
Nomura IPO Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

Credit Suisse China Investment Conference (Hong Kong)
BoA Merrill Lynch China Conference (Beijing)

Citi China Investor Conference (Macau)

Morgan Stanley Asia Pacific Investors Summit (Singapore)
London Non-Deal Roadshow (Arranged by Citi and HSBC)
CIMB North Asia Conference (London)

Nomura Annual Asian High Yield Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

2014

DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Conference (Singapore)
BNP Paribas Regional FIG Conferences (Property & Financial) (Hong Kong)

Nomura HK/China Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

RHB — 0SK DMG ASEAN & HK Corporate Day (Singapore)

Citi HK/China Property Top Picks Corporate Day (Theme:) (Hong Kong)
UBS China Investment Conference (Shanghai)

Deutsche Bank Access China Investment Conference (Beijing)

Citi Fixed Income Conference (Hong Kong)
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development, property investment
and property management. The activities and particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries are shown under note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s turnover and operating
profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note
5 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 97 of the annual report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2013 of HK
7 cents (2012: HK 4 cents) per Share (the "Proposed Final Dividend").
Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday,
2 April 2014 (the “2014 AGM"), it is expected that the Proposed Final
Dividend will be paid on or around 16 April 2014 to the shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members of the Company on 9
April 2014.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2014 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 27 March 2014 to Wednesday, 2 April 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 26
March 2014.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend
The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
8 April 2014 to Wednesday, 9 April 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.
In order to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 7 April 2014.

81



o0 W

Directors’ Report

W% BERRE
FARAKEVE  BELRRKEEHF
BRI AR S TS MARMIEE15

&N
FA - ARBRAZEFBHNGE
A MIFE28

]
FR - ANEERAD B REEE
MARERE100%1998 o

B

BN

ERFBENAERIEERBT LD
i | —8f MR B BA RS HR R P RE 25 ©

BE - HENERAQR LHHE
s

REBFR - AR B REAERHER A
HEEE  RERWEAQREF LD

B¢ ML
g °©

BrRBERE

ARAFBBERER LSS (AR
AR AR S AT TE Rl AR ) AR A B
ERBEROEMBAE - HRADAA
VR A AR SR AR L TR AR 5 TR

82

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out on pages 100 and 199 of this
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at AGM and be eligible
for re-election. Further, the Company's articles of association requires
that any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until
the following AGM and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company and each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company. The
appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not
less than six months’ (in case of Executive Directors) or three months’
(in case of Independent Non-Executive Directors) prior written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors, the management shareholders
of the Company nor their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might
compete with the business of the Group. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei
and Mr. LIN Feng, being the Executive Directors and the controlling
shareholders of the Company declared that they have complied
with the undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 13 November 2012
(the “Prospectus”). The Independent Non-executive Directors have
also reviewed the relevant undertakings and have not noticed any non-
compliance incident.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus, during the term of a loan facility
granted by Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“CIFI Pre-
IPO Loan") to the Company, Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN
Feng, their family trust and the companies beneficially owned by them
are required to maintain beneficial shareholding of not less than 51%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company. The CIFI Pre-IPO
Loan had an principal amount of HK$580 million and for a term of 24
months commencing from 14 September 2011, being the date of the
facility agreement. Such loan was fully repaid in August 2013.

In July 2013, the Company signed a syndicated loan facility agreement
("CIFI Syndicated Loan Agreement”) with a consortium of offshore
banks. The Syndicated Loan is a US dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual-
currency unsecured term loan facility with an aggregate amount of
approximately US$156.5 million, with final maturity of three years from
8 July 2013, being the date of the loan agreement and interest rate of
LIBOR or HIBOR plus 5.65% per annum.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

In January 2014, the Group's 50%:50% joint venture companies
formed with Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited in respect of
Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City project signed an onshore and
offshore syndicated loan facilities agreement (“Hangzhou Glorious
City Syndicated Loans Agreements”) with a consortium of offshore
and onshore banks. The Hangzhou Glorious City Syndicated Loans
comprise (i) an offshore US dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual currency
term loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately US$320
million, with a final maturity of three years from the date of first
utilization; and (ii) an onshore RMB project development loan facility
with a facility amount of RMB1 billion, with final maturity of three
years from the date of utilization.

Pursuant to the CIFI Syndicated Loan Agreement and Hangzhou
Glorious City Syndicated Loans Agreements, it is required that (i)
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, their family trust and
the companies beneficially owned by them will collectively maintain
beneficial ownership of at least 51% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company; and (i) any one of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and
Mr. LIN Feng shall remain as the chairman of the Board.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the Directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the Board
provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the grantee
(which date must be a business day, “Offer Date"); (b) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders to
refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time
of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years from the
grant date. The Company granted options to certain Directors and

LR E R HERE - employees under the Share Option Scheme during the year under
review:
Z2E Directors
BREHA
Number of Share Option
R=B-=% REFEE R-B-=F
fTfEER —H—H #EH t=A=+—H
(B 7T) e RATE Granted e RATE
o 51 R B Exercise Price  Outstanding during  Outstanding
Name Capacity Date of Grant (HK$) at1Jan 2013 the year at 31 Dec 2013
Wi 5 EREBA —E-ZETHAZTNH 1557870 - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mr. LIN Feng Beneficial Owner 29 October 2013 HK$1.55
HEELE EREAA —Z—=%-A=+H 16847 7T - 800,000 800,000
Mr. GU Yunchang Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
“E-=H+HAZTNHE 155%87C - 700,000 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
FoKERAE EnAA —T—=%-A=+H 168478 7T - 800,000 800,000
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue  Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
—E-=%+H=Z+hH 15578 7T - 700,000 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
BREMEE ESHEEA —T-=F-A=+XA 168478 7T - 800,000 800,000
Mr. TAN Wee Seng Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
=5+ HZTNHE 1.55/87T - 700,000 700,000
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
EBE Employees
BRERE
Number of Share Option
R=Z—=%F RAEFE R=-Z—=F
TREER —H—H ‘g +=-A=+—H
(& 7T) & ARITHE Granted e ARAT
B H 54 Exercise Price Outstanding during Outstanding
Date of Grant Capacity (HKS) at 1Jan 2013 the year at 31 Dec 2013
“E-=F"A-1+RB EREEA 168475 7T - 150,000,000 150,000,000
26 February 2013 Beneficial Owner HK$1.684
—E=FTAZTAE EBmlEBEA 1558 7T - 144,900,000 144,900,000
29 October 2013 Beneficial Owner HK$1.55
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

1. As for the share option granted on 26 February 2013, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$1.65. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014
to 30 June 2018.

2. As for the share option granted on 29 October 2013, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$1.52. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014
to 30 June 2018.

3. No option was exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO share award scheme in December 2010
(amended in August 2011)(the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme") so
as to build up medium and long term incentive mechanism, retain and
cultivate talent, maintain the stability of the management team and
corporate business and to align the interests of the management team
with those of the shareholders. Selected employees were awarded
shares of the Company which are held by Full Happiness International
(PTC) Limited ("Full Happiness”) as trustee for the benefits of
the selected employees under the Full Happiness Trust. The total
number of the shares of the Company held by Full Happiness was
136,500,000, representing approximately 2.26% of the total issued
share capital of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) as at the date
of this annual report. No further shares will be issued by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

The selected employees are entitled to exercise or enjoy the rights
to the Awarded Shares after the vesting of the Awarded Shares in
accordance with the applicable vesting period. Vesting period is four
years during which the Awarded Shares granted to any particular
selected employee will vest on each anniversary of the first vesting
date in equal portions. The first vesting date for all the relevant
selected employees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme is 1
January 2013. Prior to vesting, the selected employees are not entitled
to the rights to and interests in the Awarded Shares, including voting
and distribution rights.

87



o0 W

Directors’ Report

EERETERITHABNRESER

R-F—=F+-"HA=t+—H EFK
ARNREBZITBABRARE RERR
AE(ER R ESMEGRD (185 K
SO HEXVER B ~ MR RIEZF
A (a)iRIFE 5 KA EIRHIFEXVERER
7887 BR B F & AN N A K B AX P ) R
SRR (BREREES B ERIINZE
X IRFREE AR SHA M SR
A) ¢ H(b)RIERE 7 M HE (5P 55 362 {5
BELNZGREFENELMARE
@mMORB ¢ () RIE_ AR A KT 8% 4P
FHLEMRREFETEFIHNFEST
,E\'JZE%D@$QE&Hﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁéﬁii&%
TN

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"), which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

RO REBRONGE : Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares:
DR
BEBITRAEN
BABEIL
Approximate
B, ¥8r8 percentage
RDEE  of the issued
Number share capital
of Shares/ of the
B EEME underlying Company
EEEE Name of Director Corporation  Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
ML Mr. LIN Zhong YN 2RIZFEHABILA () 1,156,739,670 19.19%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
NS REEFEAHFAIA (MF2) 2,056,385,975 34.12%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
NES e Mr. LIN Wei PN R (PH5E3) 613,765,775 10.18%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
ARA] RGN HFAIA (MFF2) 2,056,385,975 34.12%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
PRI S Mr. LIN Feng ARE 2IEETHOAILA (H54) 204,588,580 3.4%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4)
EA/NE] REFENHRAILA (M) 2,056,385,975 34.12%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
PN Bz A A D) 3,000,000 0.05%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
EAEE%4%  Mr. GU Yunchang AT Ema A (5E5) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
FAELLE  Mr ZHANG Yongyue ZAN/NC| Bl A A (D) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
BRIZACIEAE  Mr TAN Wee Seng /NS EmEAA(MEL5) 1,500,000 0.02%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 5)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares: (Continued)
Notes:

1. These Shares are held by Ding Chang Limited (“Ding Chang”). The entire issued share
capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success International Limited
("Eternally Success”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by
SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. ("SCTS"), which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered
Trust (Singapore) Limited (“Standard Chartered Trust”) as the trustee of the Sun
Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects
of the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong. Mr. LIN
Zhong as founder of the Sun Success Trust is taken to be interested in the 1,156,739,670
Shares held by Ding Chang pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”). The
entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty Assets
Limited (“Gentle Beauty"”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by SCTS, which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee
of the Lin's Family Trust. The Lin's Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as
trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Lin's Family Trust include certain
family members of Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN
Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as a co-founder of the Lin's Family Trust is taken to be interested
in the 2,056,385,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These Shares are held by Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent Talent”). The entire issued
share capital of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Wei.

4. These Shares are held by Rain-Mountain Limited (“Rain-Mountain”). The entire issued

share capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited
(“Beauty Fountain”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned
by SCTS, which is in turn wholly owned by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee
of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr.
LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as founder of the Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested
in the 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. The relevant Director was granted options to subscribe for such number of Shares under
the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012. Please refer to
the section on “Share Option Scheme" for further details.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2013, the following shareholders, other than those disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in
Securities”, had notified the Company of its interests and/or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors were aware, persons
other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO were as follows:

EARAE
ERITRAK
BB
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

% HERGEE capital of
TERRERE 510/ REME Number of Shares/ the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest underlying Shares (%)
Gentle Beauty SPEHl AR (M) 2,056,385,975 34.12%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
%= EmEAAME) 2,056,385,975 34.12%
Rosy Fortune Beneficial owner (Note 1)
Eternally Success el AR (T EE2) 1.156,739,670 19.19%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
88 EmEAA(ME2) 1,156,739,670 19.19%
Ding Chang Beneficial owner (Note 2)
=5 EmEAAMEE) 613,765,775 10.18%
Eminent Talent Beneficial owner (Note 3)
Standard Chartered Trust SEEA(HiEE4) 3,417,714,225 56.71%
Trustee (Note 4)
SCTS Ryt EE R (M) 3,417,714,225 56.71%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, which is in turn directly and wholly owned
by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Lin's
Family Trust. The Lin’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong,
Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11
May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Lin's Family Trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng.

2. Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success, which is in turn directly and wholly
owned by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun
Success Trust. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of
the Sun Success Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong.

3. Eminent Talent is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Wei.

4. These include 2,056,385,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune, 1,156,739,670 Shares held by
Ding Chang and 204,588,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain. The entire issued share capital
of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued share capital
of which is in turn directly and wholly owned by SCTS. SCTS is wholly held by Standard
Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust. The Sun-Mountain Trust is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as
trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain
family members of Mr. LIN Feng.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year under review.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers together accounted for less than 25% of the Group's
purchases and sales respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Pursuant to the six commodity property sale and purchase
agreements all dated 29 May 2013 in respect of the six residential
units within Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach (=% fBEe[E5#) located at
Haima Road, Fengxian District, Shanghai, the PRC (& )8 EE=
I EK) (the “Properties”) entered into between L/E@IIREE
IBHPR A Fl(Shanghai Fukai Investment Management Co., Ltd.*)
(“Shanghai Fukai”) as purchaser and /&/B#E 2B A= (Shanghai
Xupu Properties Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Xupu”) as vendor (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”), Shanghai Xupu agreed to sell, and
Shanghai Fukai agreed to purchase, the Properties for a total sum of
approximately RMB33 million.

Shanghai Fukai is wholly owned by F/G&BIEEEBEERAA
(Shanghai Jianpu Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai
Jianpu”), which in turn is owned by Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei
and Mr. LIN Feng as to 60%, 30% and 10% equity interest therein
respectively. As such, Shanghai Fukai is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Sale and
Purchase Agreement constituted connected transaction of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Pursuant to a lease agreement made by a subsidiary of the Company
Zhejiang Xuhui Property Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Xuhui”) as landlord with
Jiaxing Xucai Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Jiaxing Xucai") as tenant
(the "Lease Agreement”), the commercial arcade of Jiaxing CIFI
Square is leased by Zhejiang Xuhui to Jiaxing Xucai for a term of 15
years commencing from 17 June 2011. EEkAMEEEERA
7] (Shanghai Yongsheng Property Management Co., Ltd.*), another
subsidiary of the Company, also provides property management
services to Jiaxing Xucai as occupier of Jiaxing CIFI Square pursuant
to the Lease Agreement.

Jiaxing Xucai is a company controlled by executive Directors, namely
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng. Therefore, Jiaxing
Xucai is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and the leasing of commercial arcade of Jiaxing
CIFI Square under the Lease Agreement constitutes continuing
connected transaction of the Group. The actual amount paid by Jiaxing
Xucai to the Group pursuant to the Lease Agreement in 2013 was
approximately RMB14 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the aforesaid sale of the Properties and the leasing
have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have performed certain agreed-upon
procedures and provided a letter to confirm that the continuing
connected transaction set out above:

() has been approved by the Board;

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the relevant terms of
the agreement governing the transaction; and

(i)  has not exceeded the total cap amount of the transaction
contemplated under the Lease Agreement as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM IPO AND EQUITY
PLACEMENT

The net proceeds from the Company’s IPO in November 2012
amounted to approximately HK$1.62 billion (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.32 billion), of which approximately RMB94
million was used to repay a portion of loan in 2012. The balance of
the proceeds of RMB1,226 million was fully applied during the six
months ended 30 June 2013 in accordance with the section headed
“Future plans and the balance and use of proceeds” contained in the
Prospectus.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM IPO AND EQUITY
PLACEMENT (continued)

The net proceeds from the equity placement in October 2013
amounted to approximately HK$390 million (approximately RMB308
million), which was fully utilised for acquisitions of new project or land
and/or for general working capital of the Group in accordance with the
disclosure in the relevant announcement.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of opinion that the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the
year under review.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who were appointed as auditor of the Company since listing
and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

LIN Zhong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 February 2014

Note: The English names marked with “*" of the PRC entities are provided for identification
purpose only. The Chinese names are the official names of the PRC entities.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013



T S B B Tl o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

BeEER (SE) BRQTERR
(RASESEMKZNERIR)

FEECEZHIINFEITE231 HfBEZER
(EB)ERQR(ERE]) REMBA
AR EEE )RS MERE - It
HEMBRREER _ZE—=F1+_#
=t ARG BRAE  #EZA
FFENGABa At EEKEER
RAaBRAEREHRIEABASRE
gﬁu&z%@ﬁﬁ%mgﬁﬁm%%

ESRGOUBHEARRY
=1
ERRNERRAERBERE S ER
ZESRMNBEIRETEREERRES
NREAMEPINBRERERBKEETANR
FERNGAUB®ME  UMREEES
RAVERE AR - DATE (R 4R 5
ReMBRRE NFERNEERER
B H E AR

m

RN EE
EENEERREESFNEZHZER
BMBHRRELER @ UIRRIHENE
BBIRAR - BMERBRERRS @ Rk zoh
ABERIEEME H) o BFH AR
TORE - BEMEMA LA B SRE
EREME - BEFEREBEBEBGAE
BB BB ERNETER - ZFE
AIBEREFETERMRL - WA LH
T8EZ  WEERESEMBEHRRES
W EAEM B AR FERRIRAL ©

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

TO THE MEMBERS OF CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CIFI
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 231,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group's preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_T—=F+_A=1+—HBHI%E Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —ET——-F

2013 2012
iz ARETT ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5 11,909,162 8,143,949
HERAK Cost of sales (8,840,651)  (6,217,898)
ER Gross profit 3,068,511 1,926,051
H WA Other income 7 174,695 40,259
ERTIEY RN A TEUES  Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties - 1,205,882
REMENTFEES Change in fair value of investment properties 753,535 233,488
SEENMEMEFRBITA T AR Change in fair value of trust and other loans
NEEE related derivatives 3,000 26,541
LR TISEERY Selling and marketing expenses (308,662) (245,837)
THHEZ Administrative expenses (513,621) (285,155)
Hibfx Other expenses = (18,258
JEIRE &S Share of results of joint ventures (14117) -
BMEKAK Finance costs 8 (188,465) (43,328)
IR b Profit before taxation 2,974,876 2,839,643
FEHEx Income tax expense 9 (933,743) (818,809)
FRABRZEKALLE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 0 20m133 2,020,834
AN EBIBEN, Attributable to:
VNN Equity owners of the Company 1,894,231 1,937,127
IR Non-controlling interests 146,902 83,707
FRFEREEKR AL Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,041.133 2020834
BREFM(ARY) : Earnings per share, in RMB:
E-WiN Basic 13 033 0.42
- Diluted 13 033 0.42
BB (EE) AR AR | —T—=F4R 97
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-Z—=F+_A=+—H At31 December 2013

—E-=F —ET——-F
2013 2012

iz ARETT ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
BB Investment properties 14 4,650,400 3,955,800
ME - BB NEE Property, plant and equipment 15 47,161 105,573
FEHEERE Prepaid lease payments 16 57,645 79,418
EPERER Interests in joint ventures 17 4,298,994 -
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 18 54,023 9,463
PR IR TIF R Restricted bank deposit 23 21,768 21,768
EAERIE A E Deferred taxation assets 29 147,186 114,073
9,2771717 4,286,095
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
BEIEHEYE Properties held for sale 19 3,951,144 2,768,689
FZER Y2 Properties under development 20 13,044,558 13,040,466
FEURBR SR Efth lEULZRIE ~ 354 Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
SSENEE prepayments 21 3,370,007 1,396,198
JFE U FEE I 25 R Amounts due from non-controlling interests 22 64,704 122,554
FIEHEME TG AREe Deposits for land use rights for properties
held for sale 1,972,562 467,254
EIEE ] Taxation recoverable 265,197 184,526
B EHIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 23 100,000 -
RITEHBNIRE Bank balances and cash 23 7,060,748 4,590,733
29,828,920 22,570,420
REaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JE S BR R K JE 1B <2 Accounts payable and accrued charges 24 6,330,270 2,982,025
ERMEHEERS Deposits received from property sales 8,067,878 6,201,751
FE{ IR IR R 2 TN TE Amounts due to non-controlling interests 22 433,202 263,849
JEFRIE Taxation payable 784,341 760,540
RITREMIETR — R —FAEIE  Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 25 2,934,643 3372,220
SR EMEREEITETA Trust and other loans related derivatives 26 82,000 -
18,632,334 13,580,385
REEETE NET CURRENT ASSETS 11196586 5,390,035
BREERABER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,473,763 13276130
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2013 2012

fizr ARBTR ARKETT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000

BEAXRGHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(SN Paid in/share capital 28 487,896 467,370
& Reserves 8,123,057 6,082,158
KRR R R EERAER Equity attributable to equity owners of
the Company 8,610,953 6,549,528
Eanliig Non-controlling interests 544,442 391,066
RS AR TOTAL EQUITY 9,155,395 6,940,594
FnBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RITREMER - —F%EE  Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 25 7,219,455 5,493,188
SN EMEREEITETA Trust and other loans related derivatives 26 = 85,000
BhLEE Senior notes 27 3,137,901 -
BRERIBEEE Deferred taxation liabilities 29 961,012 757,348

11,318,368 6,335,536

20,473,763 13,276,130

FHBEWBNEMNGZEMBWMKREMNZE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 231 were
—ME_A-+ANABEFESHENEK  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 26

R WH T ALTREKRESE - February 2014 and are signed on behalf by:
e PRig LIN Zhong LIN Feng
EE EF DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

BEER(EE)ERAR | —ZE—=FFK 99
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T—=F+_A=1+—HBHI%E Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

KRTRRERE
Attributable to equity owners of the Company
Bl EE AR
Ba/RE REE  AnRE  RBEE  BREEE Capital ~ (REBFE FriER RS
Paid in/ Share Special and Statutory  Share option contribution Retained 5+ Non-controlling ot
share capital premium  otherreserve  surplus reserve reserve Teserve profits Total interests Total

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETL AR%TT ARMTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(WtzE1) (KzE2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)

R-E—-—F—-f-H At1 January 2012 10449 236,442 159,454 315471 - - 2548812 3210628 373,867 3,644,495
ERFER2AEKALLE  Profitand total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 1931121 1931121 83,707 2,020,834
BRERE Appropriations to reserve - - - 64,328 - - (64,328) - - -
3R UM B AR Acquisition of additional interest in
tsEsMER (1) asubsidiary from non-controlling
interest (note 1(i)) - - 23765 - - - - 23765 (81,021) (57,256)
HERBLAIECE Reserves released upon deregistration of
subsidiaries (note 1(ii) - - 3,746 (2.433) - - (1.313) - - -
E Recognition of equity-settled
WARB R share based payments - - - - - 5,307 - 25,307 - 5,307
IR ERS L EH B AT Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
BoER to a non-controlling interest - - 15,487 - - - - 15,487 14513 30,000
BRI BT (F55281a)  Capitalisation issue of shares (note 28(al) 355,266 (355,266) - - - - - - _ _
3t EAEITARIA (H3E28(0))  Issue of shares in connection to the Listing
(note 28(b)) 101,655 1,250,357 - - - - - 1,352,012 - 1,362,012
IR E1TR Y Share issue expenses - (74,798) - - - - - (74,798) - (74,798)
WZZ-ZF At 31 December 2012
+-A=t-H 467,370 1,056,735 202452 377,366 - 25,307 4,420,298 6,549,528 391,066 6,940,594
FERFIERZEBALE  Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 1,894,231 1,894,231 146,902 2,041,133
EREHE Appropriations to reserve - - - 107,157 - - (107,157) - - -

AIEERER EEM B AR Acquisition of additional interest in
HOBBOIME 25 (B asubsidiary from non-controlling

interest note 1ii) - - (374) - - - - (374) (526) (900)
Y —RNE AR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 7,000 7,000
DRSS Recognition of equity-settled
WIARRB R share based payments - - - - 36,581 172 - 44,305 - 44,305
TR (T 7E28(c) Issue of shares (note 28/c)) 2052 281317 - - - - - 307,903 - 307,903
BiRE Dividend paid - (184,640) - - - - - (184,640) - (184,640)
R=B-=F At31 December 2013
+=B=1+-B 487,89 1,159,472 202,078 484,523 36,581 33,031 6,207,372 8,610,953 544,442 9,155,395
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

On 28 April 2012, Shanghai Xuhui Investment Advisory Co., Ltd. acquired
2.05% equity interest in CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) from a non-controlling
interest at a cash consideration of RMB57,256,000. A difference between the
consideration paid and the equity interest of the non-controlling interest at the
date of acquisition of additional interest in CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) amounted
to RMB23,765,000 was recognised in the reserve.

The Group deregistered Fuzhou Yongsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
and Fuzhou Xuteng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. during the year ended
31 December 2012, reserve of RMB3,746,000 previously recognised upon the
acquisition of additional interest of Fuzhou Yongsheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. from non-controlling interest together with statutory surplus reserve
of RMB2,433,000 were transferred directly to retained profits upon the
deregistration.

On 28 May 2013, CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (PRC) acquired 3% equity interest in
Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. from a non-controlling interest at a cash
consideration of RMB900,000. A difference between the consideration paid and
the equity interest of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of
additional interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB374,000
was recognised in the reserve.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China, those subsidiaries are required to transfer 5% to 10% of the
profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends
to equity holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
years' losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_T—=F+_A=1+—HBHI%E Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —ET——fF
2013 2012
Mzt AR¥Tr ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
ReEy OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sy IRl Profit before taxation 2,974,876 2,839,643
FRA T RIEEL A - Adjustments for:
MEMAR Finance costs 188,465 43,328
REREE Allowance for doubtful debts 1,793 1,207
ME - BERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,100 13,365
BRI EMEREN AT EkE Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties - (1,205,882)
EEMEMERAERM Fair value gain on trust and other loans
PTHET AR T ERE related derivatives (3,000) (26,541)
B E N EREN Increase in fair value of investment properties (753,535) (233,488
HERAFETA Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through
BamRE RS profit or loss (100,000) -
HEME - BE k&ER Gain on disposal of property, plant and
LA R FBM TR E e F5E equipment and prepaid lease payments, net (131) (18,201)
BB EEEE Share of results of joint ventures 14,117 -
FEHA Interest income (38,898) (10,987
AEHERERBMA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment (1,405) (1,311)
HERAR A 4t 5 Recognition of equity-settled share based payments
AR 58 44,305 25,307
REIRME H s Unrealised exchange gain (69,542) -
LEASEHIIKEES R Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2,270,145 1,426,440
Ve EEL Increase in properties held for sale (1,160,682) (1,852,867
BER YR A (3G hn) Decrease (increase) in properties under development 1,500,505 (1,373,393)
FEU AR N E A JE UL FIE Increase in accounts and other receivables, deposits and
74 MIBFIEE I prepayments (1,975,602) (820,826)
FEHEME L MFERELRS (Increase) decrease in deposits for land use rights for
(&) properties held for sale (1,505,308) 911,842
FERTBR TN & FEETR 7 42N Increase in accounts payable and accrued charges 2,809,188 1,240,695
2 U S E IR SN Increase in deposits received from property sales 1,866,127 1,475,491
REmGHES Cash generated from operations 3,804,373 1,007,382
B BEITER PRC income tax paid (816,614) (400,475)
BETHMERETHE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,987,759 606,907
REZED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
M IEFRA I R B R (B0 Repayments from (advances to) non-controlling interests 57,850 (120,554)
BRI EYHE Additions to investment properties under development (46,140) (31,805)
HEME - WENEE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
PSSR IB A R BN EFIE equipment and prepaid lease payments 62,539 30,351
WM B AR Net cash inflow (outflow) from acquisition of
BemAORd)#8 a subsidiary 30 35,388 (27,517)
& B EMIRITER Placement of pledged bank deposits (110,871) -
RREEWIETER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 10,871 -
RAEPFEFIAER Capital injection into joint ventures (4,313,111) -
NE B ELEREZ Addition to interest in available-for-sale investment (44,560) -
BEYE  BENERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (16,915) (12,842)
2UFE Interest received 38,898 10,987
DU R HEREIRE Dividends received from available-for-sale investment 1,405 1,311
HERNBRRRSRAFR Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary 32 10,500 -
BERATEFABRNKE Purchase of investments at fair value through
profit or loss (173,600) -
PERNEEABRD Proceed from disposal of investments at fair value
KBS 50E through profit or loss 273,600 -
RETEMARS 3 NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (4,214,146) (150,069
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2013 2012
AR¥ETRT AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
gRIT R EMER New hank and other borrowings raised 8,113,435 6,080,725
EBEBITREMER Repayment of bank and other borrowings (6,824,745) (4,966,369)
BT Issue of shares 307,903 1,352,012
2RHME Interest paid (1,065,230) (704,127)
MBYE=TEN Repayment to an independent party (100) (177,500)
PR EEITRY Share issue expenses = (74,798)
JEIRHRE RS AR Advances from non-controlling interests 169,353 147,400
BRI R IE Repayments to non-controlling interests - (69,588)
BE TG NG Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary from
RESMERS non-controlling interests (900) (57,256)
JEIERERTE Capital injection from non-controlling interests 7,000 30,000
BITBAZBEMEIETE Net proceeds from issue of senior notes 3,174,326 -
ERERE Dividends paid (184,640) _
METBDRERTFE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,696,402 1,559,999
RERBSSEYRINFE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,470,015 2,016,837
ENRERBLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 4,590,733 2,573,896
FRAERBRESZEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE YEAR 1,060,748 4,590,733
RERASEENERDIN ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITEERNIR S Bank balances and cash 7,060,748 4590733
EBEER(EE)BRAR | —ZT—=FF#FK 103



Bk o7 S 05 B MY ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T—=F+_A=1+—HBHI%E Forthe year ended 31 December 2013
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

The Company is a company incorporated on 20 May 2011 and
registered in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
registered office is P. O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

As at the date of incorporation, the Company's initial authorised share
capital was HK$1,000,000,000, divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
of a par value of HK$0.10 each, of which 1 subscriber share was
allotted and issued to Mapcal Limited as the initial subscriber, and was
subsequently transferred to Ding Chang Limited, a BVI incorporated
company wholly owned by Mr. Lin Zhong, one of the controlling
shareholders, at HK$0.1 on 20 May 2011. To rationalise the corporate
structure in preparation for the listing of its shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing”), the Company underwent a group reorganisation
(the "Reorganisation”), further details of which are set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 13 November 2012. The Company's
shares were then listed on the Stock Exchange on 23 November 2012
(the “Listing Date").

The address of principal place of business of the Company is Suites
2002-2003, 20th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway Hong
Kong. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are property development,
property investment and provision of property management and
property related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the group entities operate (the functional currency of group entities).
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the
following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board.

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to [AS 1

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRIC 20

Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Except for as described below, the application of the above new or
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,

associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the

package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,

associates and disclosures comprising IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial

Statements”, IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure

of Interests in Other Entities”, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate

Financial Statements” and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “Investments

in Associates and Joint Ventures”, together with the amendments to

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals
only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of IFRS 10

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements
and SIC-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. IFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor has control over
an investee when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and c) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three
of these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in IFRS 10 to
explain when an investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the date of
initial application of IFRS10 as to whether or not the Group has control
over the investees in accordance with the new definition of control
and the related guidance set out in IFRS10, and concluded that the
application of IFRS10 does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other entities
as at 1 January 2013.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 11

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, SIC-13 “Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers”,
has been incorporated in IAS 28 (as revised in 2011). IFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under IFRS 11,
there are only two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and
joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under IFRS 11
is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to the
joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, IAS 31 contemplated
three types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of
joint arrangements under IAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was
established through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly
controlled entity).

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any
assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the
sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its
share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses,
relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the
applicable Standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 11 (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of IFRS11, the Group re-evaluated its
involvement in its joint arrangement. The Group has reclassified
the investment from jointly controlled entity to joint venture. The
investment continues to be accounted for using equity method and
therefore this reclassification does not have any material impact on
the financial position and the financial result of the Group.

Impact of the application of IFRS 12

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of IFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 17 for details).

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad;
the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS
17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes
of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (Continued)

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes
extensive disclosure requirements.

IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period (see
note 14 and 41 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
[tems of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to IAS 1, the Group's 'statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the 'statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
Furthermore, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income” (Continued)

Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the application

of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or

loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

IFRS 9

Amendments to IAS 32

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRS 14

IFRIC 21

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures?

Financial Instruments?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets!

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Levies!
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income” (Continued)
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when the
outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions

5 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
above new or revised IFRSs have been issued but are not yet effective
will have no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, and
in accordance with accounting policies set out below which are
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when all of the following criteria are satisfied:

o the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
are transferred to buyers;

o neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
properties are retained;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria

for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management service income is recognised over the period in
which the services are rendered.

Other property related service income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investment properties (Continued)

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
development and is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair
values using the fair value model. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under development will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or
development is completed, in which time any difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount will be recognised in profit or loss in
that period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for administrative purposes are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land
use rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit
or loss over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as properties under development
intended to be held for sale.

Properties under development

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for sale, the leasehold land component is amortised
over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of the costs of the properties under development.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
are shown as current assets and carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted

lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”

for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency, i.e., RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred taxation
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred taxation is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities and deferred
taxation assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 “Investment Property”,
such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities and
deferred taxation assets for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12
(i.e., based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent
to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options or shares granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in reserve.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with related costs. Grants related to non-
current assets are presented as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and are released to income over the useful lives
of the assets. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis in
the period in which they become receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading on
initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
interests, pledged bank deposits, restricted cash and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
accounts and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When an accounts or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group (including accounts and other payable,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, bank and other borrowings
and senior notes) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with IAS 18 “Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations specified
in the relevant contracts are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities or deferred
taxation assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption set out in IAS 12
“Income Taxes"” that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Construction costs estimation for revenue recognition

Certain projects of the Group are divided into several phases according
to the development and delivery plans. The Group recognises sales
upon delivery of properties. Cost of sales including construction costs
specific to the phases and common costs allocable to the phases
are calculated based on management’s best estimation of the total
development costs for the whole project and the allocation to each
phase at the time when the properties are delivered.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the valuations
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market condition. In relying on
the valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group's investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Income tax expense

Deferred taxation assets of approximately RMB139,824,000 (2012:
RMB114,073,000) mainly in relation to tax losses and land appreciation
tax that have been recognised at 31 December 2013 as set out in note
29. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the tax losses or/and deductible temporary
differences are expected to be utilised. The directors of the Company
will review the assumptions and profit projections by the end of the
reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less than expected, a reversal of deferred taxation assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period in which
such a reversal takes place.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However, the
implementation of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions
in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have
not finalised their land appreciation tax calculations with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related income
tax provisions. The Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management’'s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with
local tax authorities.

Valuation of trust and other loans related derivatives

As described in note 26, assumptions are made based on market
data such as volatility, credit spread, risk free rate, property selling
prices of the project and the property development plan estimated
by management for the valuation of trust and other loans related
derivatives.

Where the actual future market data or property development plan
varies, a material adjustment on the fair values of trust and other loans
related derivatives may arise. When estimating the fair value of the
derivative with reference to the valuation report, management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the assumption adopted
for the valuation is reflective of the current market conditions and its
best estimation on the property development plan.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the Company are
responsible in determining the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the Company work
closely with the independent qualified professional valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
directors regularly assess the impact and the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of investment properties and financial instruments. Note 14 and
41 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
various assets and liabilities.

5. REVENUE
Revenue represents income from sales of properties, rental income
and income from provision of property management and property
related services earned during the year, net of discounts allowed, and is
analysed as follows:

—E—=F —E——fF

2013 2012

ARETr ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

IHEYZE Sales of properties 11,579,157 7,991,465
Ha A Rental income 41,732 44,390
L EX-BER ST/ EVIEE] T PN Property management and property related services income 282,273 108,094
11,909,162 8,143,949

134

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013



6. oEER

AEERBEELEAEE (NAQTE
E2) AR MR BERREHEEN
FHRMMEBAEEAR S HRD

W MEELEDE -

AAEEEREERRERDEER R
AHERRMBENEHEPRIAT=IH
ERES

o FHMERE : WOMEFEREE
MAEMEREEME - AEEE
REARLMBE(THE ) RERE
B ERER

o FHERE: WOMEHERKE
FERIREYER  URIES KA
W ERBMERYEFEFXE - A
KEBAMREYEAS 2FUR
R -

o MEREERWEMRBRE - LD
IZRYMEREEMELNEA - K
S E B A BIFREE T mHERR ©

IERERRESEHENS S HER
BLHRAMKERE - BINFEHER KA
BHMRTE  HRATEZREHED
X BEPREHHERRERERR T
BEEHEMZEEBERERRMEHRE
ERNESHIE LD H |G RE—F 2
DEB(EHERZ)

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (i.e., the board of directors of the
Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess
its performance.

Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is
focused on three main operations:

o Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office premises and residential properties. All the
Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").

o Property investment: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are developed by the Group to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in
the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio is located entirely in the PRC.

o Property management and property related services: this
segment mainly represents the income generated from property
management. Currently the Group's activities in this regard are
carried out in the PRC.

The chief operating decision maker regularly reviews the operating
results by property development projects. As property development
projects are all located in the PRC, their revenue is primarily derived
from the sales of properties, and is related and subject to common risk
and returns. All property development projects are aggregated into a
single reportable segment, property development, in accordance with
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
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6. /\ﬁl@ﬁﬂ &) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) 2EBRARFIE (a) Segment revenue and profit
EW IR T ARERFBLEREAELL  Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided
@Eﬁf&uﬂﬁ“*ﬁ%fﬁmﬁfaﬁgl to the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
WO HNERFHINAT - resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
year is set out below.

NXEER
EHEHRE EHERE VEEBRE st
Property
management
and property
Property Property related
development investment services Total
ARETR  AR®TR  AR®TR  AR%Tx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE-E-=F+-A=t+-HILFE Yearended 31 December 2013
EEE GrN Reportable segment revenue 11,579,157 47132 282,213 11,909,162
N2RHHHE Reportable segment profit 2,623,354 44,628 91,867 2,759,849
NEEBR
FUHERE BHERE MEEBRK 5t
Property
management
and property
Property Property related
development investment Srvices Total
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE-T--HT-A=T—BIEFE  Yearended3! December 2012
DEEGEN Reportable segment revenue 7,991,465 44390 108,094 8,143,949
25 A Reportable segment profit 1,628,123 41,801 10,290 1,680,214

(b) PHEEREE (b) Segment assets and liabilities
MARTEREARAEENSTEREBEDE  No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of the Group's
SR EAAZERAE BHIEME  segment reporting that are used by the chief operating decision
VD HEERERE - maker. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue and profit

The reportable segment profit represents the results by each segment
without including any effect of allocation of other income earned from
operations other than the Group's main operations, unallocated head
office and corporate expenses, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, allowance for doubtful debts, fair value gain upon transfer
to investment properties, change in fair value of investment properties,
change in fair value of trust and other loans related derivatives, finance
costs and share of results of joint ventures. This is the measurement
basis reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes

E
ETE A o

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

—B-—=F —T—_F
2013 2012
AR®BTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue
A E2HmDEBREERA Reportable segment and consolidated revenue 11,909,162 8,143,949
58 Profit
REINBEFHT] 23R EF)E Reportable segment profit derived from external customers 2,759,849 1,680,214
H YA Other income 174,695 40,259
A YR AT E WS Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties = 1,205,882
EREREMEFEBEITETLA Change in fair value of trust and other loans related
NHEE derivatives 3,000 26,541
KEMENTFEES Change in fair value of investment properties 753,535 233,488
FE R AN Finance costs (188,465) (43,328)
JEIRE &S Share of results of joint ventures (14117) -
VI - BB RRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (13,100) (13,365)
REREAE Allowance for doubtful debts (1,793) (1,207)
AOESRCERT Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (498,728) (288,841)
BRI AIAR S FE Consolidated profit before taxation 2,974,876 2,839,643
(d) HEER (d) Geographic information
AR AREBERN&EEE IRAREETT 0 No geographic information has been presented as the Group's

WA EZ SR EE

(e) EEEF

WERE MR ETNRZMEKR

MNEREBUAT10% A L ©
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operating activities are carried out in the PRC.

(e) Major customers

amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
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7. HigA 7. OTHER INCOME
—B-—=F —T—_F
2013 2012
ARETRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Al EERE R E YA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment 1,405 1,311
HERAFE ABRD Gain on disposal of investments at fair value
S RIS E AU (M) through profit or loss (note) 100,000 -
FEMA Interest income 38,898 10,987
HEYE  BEMERBEUAR Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
FERHEERENRZEEE prepaid lease payments, net 131 18,201
IEdisgcEE Government grants 23,442 6,289
BRERZ SRS Forfeited deposits paid by purchasers 1,422 1,942
UL A Sundry income 9,397 1,529

174,695 40,259

MiaE © R AEEIAARE 173,600,000t AET  Note: During the year, the Group acquired certain investments at fair value through profit
BAFEFABENRE  HBRUREBARKE or loss at RMB173,600,000 and subsequently disposed of at a consideration of
273,600,000 T HE - Bt - &Rz ARE RMB273,600,000. A gain on disposal of RMB100,000,000 was therefore recognised.
100,000,0007TE FHER °

8. HBEMX 8. FINANCE COSTS
—E-=F —T—=-F
2013 2012
AR¥TRT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR AFNESERNRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings and amounts
HAth {8 FREL T IEIE AR A 2 due to non-controlling interests wholly repayable
HIHHF S within five years (824,451) (697,579)
BEARAFRABBEENRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings not wholly repayable
HAB AR & within five years (52,068) (6,548)
BEZBNNEFAX Interest expense on senior notes (221,828) -
B BT YENEREE Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development
MENER SRR and investment properties under construction 909,882 660,799

(188,465) (43,328)

FAEsh M E N EEREWEDERILH)  Borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development and
ERKARTIIBIESRITRNEMERNE  investment properties under construction were determined by the
BT RET (DRIRHFE25K  contracted interest rates of respective bank and other borrowings and
271K FE) ° senior notes as disclosed in notes 25 and 27 respectively.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—E-=F —ET——-F

2013 2012

ARETRT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

P EEFTISH PRC enterprise income tax:

BNERFR1S Y Current income tax (447,639) (329,495)
B FERERE Overprovision in respect of prior years 5183 51
(442,456) (329,444)

I ER ([ LB ER]) Land appreciation tax ("LAT") (320,736) (164,537
(763,192) (493,981)

TR TR (B 5E29) Deferred taxation (note 29) (170,551) (324,828
(933,743) (818,809)

BRERZZEENF-—A—BERHF
EFARAMBE D EMSE B ERE K
Bl RRRFEMBRARAEEHE S
25% ' EEAEEXEERER_TT
NF—A—BRIZBEBLEMEHE
15%METHENBRARRBEEZSZ
NF ZFE—ZFTFRZFT——F+ZA
=+—BIEFEREAATERRAKR
SER D PIIE20% ~ 22% K 24% i o &
BB AT —E——F— 8 —HiEf
R E25% °

KEZEARBEESRIE  ETHEM
BRARES BRIEERBIMARILRE
TEMEE25% AT - M FERBIUAILRIR IR
BAPEREERARETR AN T
WAHBI8% E10% °

-+ b 8 (A 8 1 T 8 AL B P R B
RRERMBAT A o LHBERE
e L R 0 8 s OB L 48 (O
AT HANRERAR) -
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Under the Law of Enterprise Income Tax and Implementation Rules
of the People’s Republic of China effective from 1 January 2008, the
statutory tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% except
for certain PRC subsidiaries, which were previously approved by
competent authorities to enjoy the preferential Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 15% before 1 January 2008, were taxed at 20%, 22%, 24%
for the year ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively,
pursuant to relevant grandfathering rules and regulations. The tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2012 onwards.

As approved by various competent tax bureaus, certain PRC
subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25% on their respective
deemed taxable income, ranging from 8% to 10% of revenue in
accordance with the prescribed tax calculation method pursuant to the
applicable PRC tax regulations.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable exemptions and deductions.
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9. FEEMAXw@
REXBEXHS((RBRELHES]) K
MEHSORAKER  AEBBAE

RERABEEMRFASEEHMMNTAME

i o

HRANKEENEARNEARTES
TIERBERE @ BALERE LT

e

BT R IB RN M FE29 -

FENTHHEEAERGABEaRIEME
ek R ABR B AT AR B RR N T -

SHIE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

derived from, Hong Kong.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 29.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the income
of the companies comprising the Group neither arises in, nor is

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

—E—=F —T——-F
2013 2012
AR®TR AR®BT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MR BRI A Profit before taxation 2,974,876 2,839,643
FR25% 40 Ay R B 1 TS R PRC enterprise income tax at 25% (743,7119) (709,911)
AL OGS 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes (22,759) (22,905)
BERHRBMANRIETE Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 2,343 19,032
+ IR (EF LAT (320,736) (164,537)
THIRERNRETE Tax effect of LAT 80,184 41,134
BEFEBERE Overprovision in respect of prior years 5,183 51
KRR EE RN G2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (6,373) (38,970)
B SRR R T IE B 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 38,133 49,018
RER R GRRE ZEN G & Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised (15,056) (21,508)
B LRI ARERAO R IR =4 Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised 21,662 29,900
HTHEKBAF Effect of adopting prescribed tax calculation method
HMNE TR AN E by certain PRC subsidiaries 24,076 (1,764)
HA, Others 3319 1,651
FEHIBER Tax charge for the year (933,743) (818,809)
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9. FEHBEX®@ 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

PffE Notes:

1. BERMBPANREZEEIBRELTREMER 1. Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes mainly represent fair value gain on
BEHTET AR A TE R trust and other loans related derivatives.

2. AERAMBREEZENT BT EEAZREHEE 2. Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised represent adjustments of
BRI S FTE LR AT HR R =58 o deductible temporary differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to

construction of properties.

10. FRFABFRZEBALE 10. PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

—E-=F —Z——F
2013 2012
ARBTRT AR®TRT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FRAMBEREZEWRALLET Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
KB GTA) THISE has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
ZEANEN & Auditors’ remuneration 4,592 6,582
S ABERARNIFEHEWERK AR Cost of properties held for sale included in cost of sales 7,991,166 5,518,303
W - BENERETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,100 13,365
HEWZE - BEMREAKR Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
B EREN WG F5E and prepaid lease payments, net (131) (18,201)
RIS Allowance for doubtful debts 1,793 1,207
T REFHKEHEEES Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings 38,730 15,040
BTHAR Staff costs
SREHB () Directors’ emoluments (note 11) 8,850 6,342
Hip 8 TRA Other staff costs
B THRA(TBERAEHFIEA) Staff costs excluding retirement benefit costs 344,487 291,678
RIRBHIB AR Retirement benefit costs 22,469 20,569
VARG S e 2 45 0 BARRAD 5 3R Equity-settled share based payment 43,575 25,307
88 TR Total staff costs 410,531 337,554
i REEMENENMEE R Less: Amount capitalised to properties under development (134,292) (98,627
276,239 238,927
SEYERS KA Rental income from investment properties (47,732) (44,390)
B HER X Less: Related outgoings 3,104 2,589
(44,628) (41,801)
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11. ESBRES M 11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

—E-=F —ET——-F
2013 2012
ARETRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

EE5H Director's emoluments
Yok Directors’ fees 633 70
EPITESRIET Equity-settled share-based payment for non-executive
IEITEEM AR ARERS AL directors and independent non-executive directors
RDITER 561 -
1T E B A H i 7 B Other emoluments for executive directors
—HEARH ¢ NKEEL — basic salaries and allowances 7,226 6,051
— AR AR 45 E W AR 1 50 — equity-settled share-based payments 169 -
— BRI T — retirement benefit contribution 261 221
8,850 6,342
PABR A 2R
EXFek #EIL BIKEH
EEikn ZE RHER TE4T fHx st
Basic  Equity-settled Retirement
Directors"  salariesand  share-based benefit
fees  allowances payments Bonus  contributions Total

ARBTE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARRTE ARETRT
RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO0O

BE-E—=fF Year ended 31 December

TZA=+—HLEE 2013

HITEEHRZ Name of executive director

A S A Mr. LIN Zhong - 1,824 - - 85 1,909
WERA Mr. LIN Wei - 1,725 - — 91 1,816
RIS Mr. LIN Feng - 3,677 169 = 85 3,931

BIEBTESMS  Name of independent

non-executive director

BEEXE Mr. GU Yunchang 198 - 187 - - 385
RAKESE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 198 - 187 = = 385
BRIEAK ST Mr. TAN Wee Seng 237 - 187 = = 424

633 7,226 730 - 261 8,850
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11. EEREEFM ) 11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
PABRZR 2R
EXHek HEUMN RIKTEA
by 2B RO TE4L iR st
Basic  Equity-settled Retirement
Directors'  salariesand  share-based benefit
fees  allowances payment Bonus  contributions Total

ARETE ARBTT ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT ARKTRT
RMBOOO  RVMB000  RVBOO0O  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000

BHE-T——F Year ended 31 December 2012

+-AZ+—HILFE
HITESHA Name of executive director
MRS Mr. LIN Zhong - 1625 - - 72 1697
WEEE Mr. LIN Wei - 1,761 - - 77 1838
MRIE ST 4 Mr. LIN Feng - 2,665 - - 72 2,731

BN EHITESEMS  Name of independent non-
executive director

BEERE Mr. GU Yunchang 2 - — - - 2
FAERE Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2 - - - - 2
BRI Mr. TAN Wee Seng 26 - — - - 2

70 6,051 = = 221 6,342

Mg S 4 AR A TIRITEAE - M EX  Mr. LIN Feng is the Chief Executive of the Company and his
PR 8 H 5 B B 38 BB (/T2 M9 % emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
B o him as the Chief Executive.
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11. EEREEFMHN =)

hEBRSHMAL
BE_ZTZ—=F+-_A=+—HIt#&
B AZEeFTMALTERE—RES(Z
T—_F: —HEF) BE_ZT—=F
+TZA=+t—HLEFENEBKNERS
HEMAT(—T——F : EHNESRSH
BHA ) BN T -

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals included 1 director for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 1 director). The emoluments of the
remaining 4 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: remaining 4 highest paid individuals) are as follows:

—EBE-—=F T4

2013 2012
ARETRT ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
== Employees

—HEARF & ERL — basic salaries and allowances 6,449 5,560
— B4 —bonus 2,234 -
— DAPR AN S A B LARR (DT 3k — equity-settled share-based payments 1,116 3,330
— iR RAE R — retirement benefit contributions 157 129
9,956 9,019

HENFHNRATEENA Their emoluments were within the following bands:
AE AH
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
—E-=F —ZT——-4F
2013 2012
2,000,0017% 7T 22,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
2,500,0017% 7T 23,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 2
3,000,001, 7T £ 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 1
3,500,001,% 7T, 24,000,000 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -

AEESEOARBDEEH ALK
MALNEAMHFHMIESMBRER
SN AN E ) SRR SRR AR (S -
A - REARBEFEREEFFM -
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No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors of the Company has waived any emoluments during
the year.
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12. RE

12. DIVIDEND

—E-=F —T—=F
2013 2012
AR®TR AR®BFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR E — FR T BT AL Proposed final dividend — HK 7 cents
(ZZ——%F : 43810) (2012: HK 4 cents) per ordinary share 333,270 186,948

TE-CZFNERARYBREAREART
BRI e A R ABF AN L ©

13. BREF
BE_Z—=F+_A=Z+—HLHF
ERNEBREARESRFNIEARAR
ARRESELFRAFNBOARK
1,894,231,000 L (ZE——F : ARK
1,937,127,000L) RBE-T—=F1+=
A=+—BLFEMNEBITERRINE
S5 815,818,504,000 % ( =& — — 4 :
4,645,658,0000% )5t & -

BE_Z—=F+_A=Z+—HLHF
B BRERABTEER-_ZE—=F1
MARITEBERNRARRRMDHFEHN
B MR ESREERNE - RER
T ZF+ANBEMANERETE
RZE-—=F-"A=-+RBEZZE—=
FTAZTABARENBREY THE
£ -

AR AEEBRBEE T =K _F
——F+ A=+ RHUIFETEDZH
EEEELAR  MABHZMEF
E2HRNERERRFSEEELFE

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

The proposed final dividend for the year 2013 is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity owners of the Company of approximately
RMB1,894,231,000 (2012: RMB1,937,127,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2013 of 5,818,504,000 (2012: 4,645,658,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the share options granted
on 26 February 2013 and 29 October 2013 under the share option
scheme adopted on 9 October 2012 are not included in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the Company’s shares during
the outstanding period in 2013.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both
years.
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14. BEWE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ERRENE BRI

Investment REME

properties Completed
under investment ot
construction properties Total
ARETT ARETT ARET:T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE——%—f—H At 1 January 2012 760,000 1,471,300 2,231,300
BRESEHENE Transfer from properties held for sale - 1,440,000 1,440,000
N Additions 51,012 - 51,012
NEER [ncrease in fair value 162,988 70,500 233,488
RZZE——F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2012 974,000 2,981,800 3,955,800
wE Additions 68,565 - 68,565
HeE Disposal (127,500) - (127,500)
NEEE Increase in fair value 442,935 310,600 753,535
R=E-=5+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,358,000 3,292,400 4,650,400

BE-_ZE——-—F+-_HA=1+—HL1#H
B rBHREF=FHKLHEERSA -
BRMERERE  WERELHEME
ERAIREME -

RER - AREZEBE—RNBARLE
BREFERAR(TLEEE])HEHR
—(AREME -

BERTHRENEIERREDEDURN
TE BRHEE - TACKRIKREY
EORgEEEEN -

AEER_ZT—=F+=_A=+—0K
# AR #4,570,000,0007T( =T — 4 :
AR #974,000,0007T) KK EWE © N
BRASBARITREMMAER -
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The transfer from properties held for sale to investment properties
was made since there was a change in use as evidenced by the
commencement of operating leases to third parties during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

During the year, the Group disposed of one of its investment
properties through disposal of a subsidiary, Shanghai Xujia Property
Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Xujia"”).

The completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are all situated in the PRC under medium-term
leases. All the completed investment properties are rented out under
operating leases.

The Group had pledged investment properties of RMB4,570,000,000

(2012: RMB974,000,000) as at 31 December 2013 to secure bank and
other borrowings of the Group.
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14. REWH )
AEBERTIREMERFTIELEMEE
EEAHLENN _E—=F R T — =
F+_A=+—HANAFE ' UERAKE
EEEREYER T —=—FK=_F
——F+-_A=+—HWAFEETDER
HASBEVEBENELEEREER
BRMITE - ATFRERHEREERM
BRAANZEHHETHHEMS
He B—AFRENGEREXENS
RAREBEGEMGEENR - BimHRET
AR R A % S m A 5 -

B THREDENEEDERER AR
DB S R AFEE AL R A

TEEEREEAWERSMANE
FEH -

ERREMENHEIDRAREERLE
% E YR AR IR SO 7 3 07 TR B MR
THEE - G RERFAEMERNRE
RAMSE  WRRER THEEAHN

FFEERAMGETELEEE) - REE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties at
date of transfer from properties held for sale and at 31 December
2013 and 2012 and the Group’'s investment properties under
construction at 31 December 2013 and 2012 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuations on those dates carried out by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group, who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations of completed investment properties were arrived by
capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary incoming potential of the
respective properties.

The valuations of investment properties under construction were
arrived at with adoption of the residual approach with the basis that
they will be developed and completed in accordance with the latest
development proposals and taken into account the construction costs
that will be expended to complete the development to reflect the
quality of the completed development.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior

%%E’Jﬂzﬁﬁﬁ% CMENRS RRER  year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
BREEERRE - best use of the properties is their current use.
RZTE—=F+_A=+—HHWAEE Details of the Group's investment properties and information about
KWEMERATFERRNERFFHBHOT the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:
RZE-=F
T-A=1-A
MATE
Fair value as at
E= 31 December
Level 3 2013
NS S NS
RMB'000 RMB000
RRBEERENE Investment properties located in PRC 4,650,400 4,650,400
FAWEE A E =Rk GEREL - There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
EBEER(EE)BRAR | —ZT—=FF#FK 147
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14. REWH )

TREEEBAREAFEFTENGE A
BN EREENNETEAREYE
B A B (B Rl PR B A (B 5 = & 86

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the major investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value

AEIER) - RAFEAEMEIDHATFE  hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
WRKF(—EZF)ER - (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.
NGRS
AR F AR EE
FIEREM R BEER
Investment A SRR
properties NEEMRR
held by the Group mETER BEMEER Relationship of
inthe consolidated ~ AFEARR < EEBEAHIE BB unobservable
statements of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs for
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
Property in Jiaxing Level 3 Income method (term and Term yield, taking into account The increase in the
CIFI Square E=MR reversionary approach) of yield generated from term yield would
7 52 H 1B 3 45 1Y comparable properties and result in a decrease
L3 The key inputs are: adjustment to reflect the in fair value.
(1) Term yield; certainty of term income fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂl/\rtm '
(2) Reversionary yield; and secured and to be received of NEEUE o
(3) Market unit rent of 3.5% t0 4%.
individual unit KET AR BRI EEER
WAE (HEERE) Woas B B BR AT HEAR K i i
R NG DL Sl = o F
I%iﬁ)\%@ﬁﬁ : B HEWARER3L5%E
) AR 4% °
2) ERAGEE
3) 1Bl Rl Bz Y
[k
Me: &

Reversionary yield, taking into The increase in the
account annual unit market reversionary yield
rental income and unit market would resultina
value of the comparable decrease in fair
properties, of 4.5% t05.2% value

KEtABMIZFEESK EHEkaXxds
ARAIE LR R B AL NEBIE -
e - EREREER4.5%
£52%
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14. BEWHE @)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NG
AR AR EE
PR B BEER
Investment i A BUR
properties NFERREEF
held by the Group HERER BEEER Relationship of
in the consolidated NEERR  EEE AR i A BUE unobservable
statements of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs for
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
Market unit rent, using direct The increase in the
market comparables and market unit rent
taking into account of location would resultina
and other individual factors increase in fair value.
such as road frontage, size of ~ Ti5 B A
property and facilities of range = N FEEB
from RMB136 sq.m./month to e
RMB416 sg.m./month.
FRAEETSLER AT
FTALLE RERETER - 7
FRNEREEEMEIA
HE - FrEmBEHEE
NFFFHREBRAARE
136LEFF AT AA
R¥4167T ©
Investment properties  Level 3 Residual Approach Market unit sales rate, using The increase in the
under construction 5 =4 market direct comparable and market unit sales

in Shanghai CIFI
Yangpu Commercial
Centre

LG JEiEet5m
BEESHNER
REMHE

The key inputs are:
Market unit sales rate
(RMB/sq.m.)

EREDER

ETRHABES
GBI HER
(AR®TT/F73K)

Developer's profit and risk rate

HERBEA RN S E R

taking into account of location
and other individual factors at
RMB50,612/sq.m.
EREEMSLBUETET A
78 N H M R A Z=a T
BEMHERRT T K
AR¥50,6127C

Developer's profit and risk rate,
taking into account of the

progress of the property of 5%.

TEREDNMERE B
REFTRMEEESP.

rate would result
in aincrease in fair
value.
i B S o
e AFEBR

E]

I

The increase in the
developer’s profit
and risk rate would
result in a decrease
in fair value.

B s &R
B 3= /938 AN 8
BATERD
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15. W% - BMERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RELTHREF wHEs  REREML @zt
Leasehold Equipment
[and and Motor and
buildings vehicles furniture Total
ARBETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
2N COST
R-E-—%—-f—H At 1 January 2012 78518 31369 23,726 133,613
ME Additions 32 4192 8318 12,842
HEELENZENHE Reclassified from properties held for sale 11,851 - - 11,851
HE Disposals (11,851) (838) (473) 13,162)
R-E-—F+-F=1-H At 31 December 2012 78,850 34723 31571 145,144
AE Additions 60 6,348 10,507 16915
KE-BHEAR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 181 181
HeE Disposals (66,834) (3,109) (534) (70477)
R-E-=F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2013 12,076 31,962 41,725 91,763
REHTE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R-E-—%—-Hf—H At 1 January 2012 4573 14,157 8597 21321
FRAEL Charge for the year 3840 4919 4,606 13,365
HERH Eliminated on disposals - (684) (437) (1121)
R-E-—F+-fA=1-H At 31 December 2012 8,413 18,392 12,766 39571
FRHY Charge for the year 560 6,754 5,786 13,100
HEREH Eliminated on disposals 6.557) (1282) (230) (8,069)
R-E-=%+-A=+-H At 31 December 2013 2,416 23,864 18322 44,602
REE CARRYING VALUES
R-B-=%+-H=+1+-H At 31 December 2013 9,660 14,098 23403 47,161
W-E-—F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 70,437 16,331 18,805 105,573
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15. Y% - BMERSZE®
EaiE - BERREEE IRET KR
BRI FRFTERN G RGEERUE
BREITE ¢

HE L RET RibE AR A
205 K AE HA
(AREHEA%E)

HEhE 8 20%

AR A AR A 20%

FRAEBF BN F AR HIEE R
BT E o

16. AAHEERKIE
BNHERBENREEREASERT
BB EMEA REEE R ER %
RATERFRE ) L FAE

REBR-_ZE——F+_-_A=+—81&
IR EFRIE AR 21,772,0007T
LERAEERRITREMER

17. REELENER

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

using the straight-line method after taking into account of their

estimated residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years
or the term of the leases, whichever

shorter
Motor vehicles 20%
Equipment and furniture 20%

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under medium-
term leases.

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use
rights held in the PRC under medium term leases intended for hotel
property development and administrative usage.

The Group had pledged prepaid lease payments of RMB21,772,000 at
31 December 2012 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—EB-=F —T—=—F

2013 2012

ARETRT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

NELSPEIEETREMA Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures 4,313,111 -
JEIGURRE B 2B R Hb 2 EUzs - Share of post-acquisition results and other comprehensive

MR B UL S income, net of dividend received (14,117) -

4,298,994 -

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K
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17.

REEDLENER @)
RZE—=FK_FT——_F+=H

=t—B AEEXEEELENFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 are set out as follows:

T -
Rl Bk AEBRGRE AEEFREEL X
Place of SR B Equity interest Proportion of
BENELR incorporation/  Place of attributable to voting power held ~ FE %
Name of joint venture establishment operation the Group by the Group Principal activities
“B-=fF “ZE-—_%F —B-=F —T-_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
HEBAEREEEARR AR PRC PRC 33% - 33% — Property development
Greenland Hefei Dingfeng Property i h FHERE
Co., Ltd.
FEGMEEARAR PRC PRC 50% - 50% - Property development
Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. m H FiERS
bEFHEEMEER AR PRC PRC 50% - 50% — Property development
Shanghai Xincheng Xudi Real Estate H FHERE
Development Co., Ltd.
LEREEZERRA PRC PRC 50% - 50% ~ Property development
Shanghai Xukang Property Co., Ltd. i H FHERE
BEMEZEEARR AT (Note)  PRC PRC 49% 100% 49% 100% Property development
Suzhou Xuyang Property Co., Ltd A H FHERS
REBEEMHEREERAR  PRC PRC 41.51% - 41.51% — Property development
Tianjin Xujin Real Estate Development 1 H FHERE
Co., Ltd.
REBEEEERNA PRC PRC 50% - 50% — Property development
Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. i H FHERE
TBEBR AT British Virgin PRC 50% - 50% — Investment holding
Xu An Co,, Ltd. Islands EF BEER
EBRUHS
EEERAF British Virgin PRC 50% - 50% — Investment holding
Xu Bao Co., Ltd. Islands s RERR
EERTEE
TBERRAR British Virgin PRC 49% - 49% — Investment holding
Xu Zheng Co., Ltd Islands h REAZK
EERAES

B & -
49% - iR KAE bl o

152

FR - R—BEHAEBHELTER  AEE
HEMBSEXBRARMEHIER100% 2=

Note: During the year, the Group lost control of Suzhou Xuyang Property Co., Ltd. from 100%
to 49% after capital injection made by a new joint venture partner.
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17. A2 WS o 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

AEEREGELENREFBEAT : Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:

TXHEABRAAEEEASLMESE  Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
BB BEREE - TBMBEREE  material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
BEEPEREREISREERRE  information below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures'
HARCEZEIERE T REHE o unaudited management amounts prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

AEDETIRER TN ZELEAIEIER  The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
RAER © consolidated financial statements.

KEREEHEMBERAT ([ XEME Tianjin Xujin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Xujin”)
)= 3))

RZZ-=%
+ZR=+-H
At31

December

2013
ARBT T
RMB'000

REEE Current assets 1,857,664

ERYEE Non-current assets 163

REAE Current liabilities 519,963

ERBAE Non-current liahilities -

Year ended
31 December
2013
ARET T
RMB'000

WA Revenue -

FABEREARYEE Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (12,514)

BB (EE) AR AR | —T—=F4R 153
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17. REELENER @

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

KEEZEMEREARAT([XZEME Tianjin Xujin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Xujin”)

)= 3)IE )

(Continued)

Ll ER B B EG A SRR TE  Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

RERE B2 RREEHR -

carrying amount of the interest in Tianjin Xujin recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R-E-=%
+ZA=t—-H
At31

December

2013
ARBT R
RMB'000

REERNEEFE
AEERRZBRN AR ELD

Net assets of Tianjin Xujin 1,338,164
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Tianjin Xujin 41.57%

AEERKRERNERNREE

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Tianjin Xujin 636,565

REEREXARAT ([HEER]D)

Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan Xucheng”)

R=B—=F
+ZR=+-H
At31

December

2013
ARET T
RMB’000

REEE

Current assets 1,443,867

FRBEE

Non-current assets 1,574

RBAE

Current liabilities 44,326

FRBAE

Non-current liabilities 56,215

154
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17. REELENER ») 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
HREEEREXARAR(REMRRED ()  Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan Xucheng”) (Continued)

BZE
—E-=F
+ZR=+-H
LLEE

Year ended

31 December
2013
AR®T T
RMB’000

WA Revenue -

FREEREERYESE Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (670)

P ER B EE S SRR TR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
R RERERAREEYE carrying amount of the interest in Wuhan Xucheng recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R-B-=%

+=A=+-A

At31

December

2013

ARBTT

RMB'000

REBENEETA Net assets of Wuhan Xucheng 1,344,900
AEERNRE RN TR LD Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Wuhan Xucheng 50%
AEENRZBRENERNRRE Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Wuhan Xucheng 672,450

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K 155
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17. REELENERS @ 17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
JBEEFRAT(EE ) Xu Bao Co., Ltd. (“Xu Bao”)

R-B-=%
+ZR=+-H
At31

December

2013
ARET T
RMB’000

TEEE Current assets 3,731,199

FRBHEE Non-current assets 612

prEIENE Current liabilities 190,148

FRBEE Non-current liabilities 930,883

BZ
—E-=F
+=A=1+-8
LLEFE

Year ended

31 December
2013
ARBT T
RMB'000

YA Revenue _

FREERZARTBE Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (5,546)
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17. REELENER @

EEARAB(MEHE ] (#)
it B RS B R B B B AR S B A R P R

REBE s AR m E ¥R -

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Xu Bao Co., Ltd. (“Xu Bao”) (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Xu Bao recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R-B-=F

t-A=1+-H

At31

December

2013

AR®TR

RMB’000

JBEMEEFE Net assets of Xu Bao 2,616,780
AEERNBE R A REL B Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in Xu Bao 50%
AEERNBERNERNERE Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Xu Bao 1,308,390

FERNERSELENERER

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually
material

R-B-=%
+=ZA=1+—-H
At31
December
2013
ARET T
RMB’000
ASEREEERZARZBE The Group's share of loss and total comprehensive expense (5,056)
FEERZSEAE N ENERRRELS Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in
these joint ventures 1,681,589
BRI (EEB)AR AR | —E—=FFR 157
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18. AIMtHERE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—E—=F —ET—_—4F

2013 2012

AR¥TT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A AR IE TR IR AR 5 Unlisted equity security, at cost 54,023 9,463

bt IE BT ARARIRE S T BRSO AL
SERLSTHBERETEARAA
(TR BRI E DR E - REM KR
HERKABRBRENTAGFE  REHE
REBAFEMGFTEERER - ARF
EERREATETRAIETE -

R_TE—=ZF+=-A=+—H8 A&H
BEEREHREHRA306% (=T —=
F:206%) c AARIESFRARELHR
WEEXBRIREER -

19. FHEHEYE
AEBNBELEMECRGR - 5

Fr{EH S Y IR AN 3 A &35 38 (A
BIKE R%E) IR o

AREBR-_Z—=F+_"A=1+—H#K
4 AN R#2912,649,0000( — T ——
& AR#E1,275,879,0007T) i EL &
ME - UIERAEBARITREMMER -

20. B

The above unlisted equity investment represents the investment
in CURA Investment Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“CURA
Investment”), a private entity established in the PRC. It is measured
at cost less impairment at each financial reporting date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be reliably measured.

At 31 December 2013, the Group owned 3.06% (2012: 2.06%) of the
paid-in capital of the investee. The directors of the Company consider
the principal activity of the investee is investment holding.

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in the PRC. All the
properties held for sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The Group had pledged properties held for sale of approximately

RMB2,912,549,000 (2012: RMB1,275,879,000) as at 31 December
2013 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

—E—=F —ZE—_—4F

2013 2012

AR¥TRT AR¥KTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

2% COST

F4 At the beginning of the year 13,040,466 10,880,027

= Additions 9,358,377 9,995,282

WHE— B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 405,760 -

HE (FHEE) Disposal (note) (247.837) _

EE S EHEYE Transfer to properties held for sale (9,512,208) (7,834,843)

FR At the end of the year 13,044,558 13,040,466
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20. BEEAPYIE m)
RERELSMATE - BHHEE -
Bk TR EHMETHE AP Y -

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H " it AH
Y4 A AR #5,203,606,0007T (=
T——fF : AR¥9,436,331,0007T) ' 1§
BHEREHRBE T —@EARBRETI
A ERTE -

rEER-_ZT—=F+=_A=+—0K
LA R#10,664,279,000T( =T ——
& AR%9,086,700,0007T) ) FZE 1)
¥ UERASEMRITREMBER -

M B2—F——Ft+_A=t—"RILFE  FL2&
R E R R B & A N1 A B 80% 25 HI
B BRI i E R B A IR A A3 I
HAE R - ARAEERELSENRETY
SEETWON - RS I E AR KB R A
HRIEREGRERER - BOBREFRZEX ©

21. BRI H B IR

BERANREA
BHRWFAEIZRELENENES
WA - BHEEEMFENRETIRIZEAR
BEEWHENIGEKEET A ha A AR
60H AT - IRFBEHEEHZ - A2 WA
e MEA AT o

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued)

The properties under development are located in the PRC under
medium-term leases and represent properties under development for
subsequent sale upon completion.

Included in the properties under development as at 31 December
2013 amounting to of approximately RMB5,203,606,000 (2012:
RMB9,436,331,000) which represent the properties expected to be
completed and available for sale after more than twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

The Group had pledged properties under development of
approximately RMB10,654,279,000 (2012: RMB9,986,700,000) at 31
December 2013 to secure bank and other borrowings of the Group.

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2012, E /&4 rE &8 % S € Tangshan Bay
Eco-city Administrative Committee issued a land resumption compensation letter to
Tangshan Xuhui Yiwen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a 80% owned subsidiary of
the Company, to carry out the land resumption for the properties under development
held by the Group in Tangshan. The land resumption was completed during the year
upon the fulfillment of the stipulated compensation conditions of deregistering the land
use right certificates and handover of land.

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties and rental
income. Considerations in respect of properties sold are paid
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
agreements, normally within 60 days from the date of agreement.
Rental income is paid by tenants within two months in accordance to
tenancy agreement.

—E-=F T —F
2013 2012
AR®BTRT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 REWGRIA (R EHE) Trade receivables, net of allowance 1,607,235 349,230
H b pE UG R I8 (AN B ) Other receivables, net of allowance 1,262,355 741,374
B RIIE Prepaid tax 239,300 234,457
& KA FOE Deposits and prepayments 261,117 71,137
3,370,007 1,396,198
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21. EWERA R EMEKRRE

EEeRBARE®
UTARREHREZH A HRENE
S EWGRIRRR IR 2T (SRR )

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, based on the

date of agreement and net of allowance, at the end of the reporting

period:

—E—=F —T——HF

2013 2012

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

H60H K Within 60 days 1,309,368 289,835
6121808 61-180 days 106,136 30,854
1812365H 181-365 days 171,242 28,541
18224 1-2 years 14,489 -
1,607,235 349,230

REMEMEEZTFH - AEEERR
MEEFEHEFHEERPHNERE
=

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 ' R#*
S HIR B 8 #3185 B 14 R Btk fE
BRENEZRRFEBEEREAENARKE
297,867,000 L (=T —Z—F : AR¥
59,395,0007T ) 5T A A& B A FE U BR 3R 84
H REAENEEERWES KTFIE
B - BSBEMESREANKE -

FEH B RE T U [ B 5 R MGRIR RS - NS
EEZEEZRUENEEERB NS
REEEE B RERE SRR EMA
e mNEAKREVEBENTFE
REBREA - BEERRETEEAR -

160

Before accepting any corporate customer, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment system to assess the potential customers' credit
quality.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are trade
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately RMB297,867,000
(2012: RMB59,395,000) at 31 December 2013 which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for allowance as there has not been a significant adverse change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the large
customer base unrelated to the Group.
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21. BRI A BRI

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

BERFENARE @ DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
B o RHAMENRERNRIREEEE N Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade and other
T receivables are as follows:

—E-=F —T—_%F

2013 2012

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FH &SR Balance at the beginning of the year (3,384) (2177)
B Increase in allowance (1,793) (1,207)
FRER Balance at the end of the year (5.177) (3,384)

R_E—=F+-_A=+—H st AR
EE B 5 EWGIER FRIE A FE U —
BN BRHEES AR ¥14,203,0000( ==
——F : AR¥14,271,0007T) (M 5E39
() - %A AR R —EARRRIE TER
RENEEHEEFIEIERERND
Ej o

RZBE-—=F+"HA=+—B " iAH
b ERURIERN A S RIE T ERBH
FIE A K ¥ 223,650,000T (ZF — =
F: ARMOTT) (KMIFE39(d) ° % HRIBR
B RENBIRBERER -

R_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H8B A&H
KB FRASZINAIERERES AR
269,620,000 L (=T —=F : AR¥
481,259,0007T) * AIEWEER AR B £
BREENTHEEEEZ c ERER
AR #269,620,000C(=ZZT——%F : A
R #243,703,0007T ) BB BIHEEITH
WInE - MBREARKIIAFIEBBA
W[l 5k o

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

Included in the Group’s trade receivables was rental receivable from
a related company of RMB14,203,000 (2012: RMB14,271,000) at 31
December 2013 (Note 39(c)). The related company represented a
company in which certain controlling shareholders and directors of the
Company have control or beneficial interests.

As at 31 December 2013, included in the other receivables were
amounts of RMB223,650,000 (2012: nil) due from certain joint
ventures (Note 39(d)). The amount are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2013, RMB269,620,000 (2012: RMB481,259,000)
refundable earnest money was paid by the Group for the acquisition of
ownership interest in land located in Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC by
auctions. RMB269,620,000 (2012: RMB243,703,000) of which were
paid in relation to auctions that are still in progress and the remaining
was receivable due to unsuccessful bid.
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22. FEWPEAFFIEIRERTRIR

JEUSEE R N IEAEET 2B K
TR EREE -

RZE—Z=ZF+-"A=+—H  BAEHK
4N R HE432,859,0007T (—Z B — — 4 -

AR #263,506,0007T ) B JE 1~ SE 452 ik
HRIEAEER - &8 &,,\&%iﬁéaa
N BREBAEIRIF  12594% (T ——
F 5.94%)%;?%%@%#%&&% E:

ZRHEBTER BEAR
{Tﬁ /ﬂ ll‘”%&iﬁﬁ
RoB—=F+-A=+-A0 #AR

BUBRRRBITEHERERNNZR
HIER 1T 7 34 B A R ¥ 457,491,000 7T
—T——F: AR#¥322,343,0007T) °
MZEFRETBRIEEFTEREIE
E o

ERMRITFS %a}fﬁ?ﬁﬂ%fﬁfﬂ’ﬁﬁ$‘i
BE R G HIRIT R B VR R 75K
MBRSRDEE °

BITHEBMRSBEAEBAMBERE X
FK?'JHH BA=MmMAzxA T EHE
o IRITAERRIRIRITMIG A EET R ©

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due from non-controlling interests were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Except for the amount due to a non-controlling interest of
approximately RMB432,859,000 (2012: RMB263,506,000) at 31
December 2013, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, the remaining balance is unsecured, interest bearing at fixed
rate at 5.94% (2012: 5.94%) per annum and repayable on demand.

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position are restricted bank deposits of approximately
RMB457,491,000 (2012: RMB322,343,000) at 31 December 2013,
which can only be applied in the designated property development
projects.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and are
therefore classified as current assets.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and demand
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry prevailing market interest rates.

—EB—=F —_T——F

2013 2012
AR®TR AR®BTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

REEAENIRITESR LIRS DM+ Analysis of bank balances and cash by currency:
—UAARKEHE — Denominated in RMB 4,981,099 3,547,053
— AR E — Denominated in Hong Kong dollars 959,075 943,577
—AZEITEHE — Denominated in United States dollars 1,120,574 100,103
7,060,748 4,590,733

RZFB—=F+ZA=1T—H  &x&H
KAR¥E21,768,0007C(—F—=F : A
£ #21,768,0007T ) KR IR HI SR 1T 17 FRIA
AR®EHE -

162

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's restricted bank deposit
of approximately RMB21,768,000 (2012: RMB21,768,000) is
denominated in RMB.
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24, ENERARETAX

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

—E-—=F —T——HF

2013 2012

ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

B O EMIRR Trade payables 2,005,975 1,754,063
H b RIE MY Other payables and accrued charges 4,324,295 1,227,962
6,330,270 2,982,025

BRARRNESRNFTARETHAXE
REREXAREMEBEBERX - %
ERBRDRBEAEEAENRBEEX
- BZRNRANFHEEHB60
B NREEE G MERREERR -
ARERFT B BN IR RMEE SR AE
it e

AT RRBERRREZAHNRENE
RN FIARRER DA

Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
construction costs and other project-related expenses which are
payable based on project progress measured by the Group. The
average credit period of trade payables is 60 days. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based on the
invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

—E-=F —ZE——-F

2013 2012

ARETR ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

P60H A Within 60 days 1,086,287 1,034,830
612180H 61-180 days 66,811 197,410
1812365 H 181-365 days 740,890 256,920
1524 1-2 years 41,495 241,501
223F 2-3 years 58,166 2,061
IFEM Over 3 years 12,326 21,341
2,005,975 1,754,063

R—_EBE——_FER_ZFT—=F+_A
=+—B  FARSEEMENRIER
FE T 5 XX M 5K I8 A e Uk — R R B 2 R
EiRe 4 ARY6,000,0007T © @B A
AERARRETERBRERESES
i ok B S S A0 A A (B RE39(c)) ©

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

Included in the Group’s other payables and accrued charges is
rental deposit received from a related company of approximately
RMB6,000,000 at 31 December 2012 and 2013. The related company
is a company in which certain controlling shareholders and directors of
the Company have control or beneficial interests (note 39(c)).

163



B3 4 1 85 W R W ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24, ENBRAREREX @)

RZFE—=—F+=—A=+—8 ' AR
CSEHEMENRIENRBRENAAT
—REZFIENARK2,871,0007T %
RIEAEER RERRFAEE -

R-ZE—=F+-"F=+—H " it AH
fhENFIENRBRENETEERE
(FI3E39(d) k& BB HFKED A AAR
#1,189,758,000L( =T —=F : &) &
AR #1,735,074,0007t ( — T — — 4 :
/) - ZRNEAEEF - R B RARENR
1

ik
Al

o

g

Hoh fE 5 R K B AT R e = B IR R
K#ITIE LA [ B AR W BT E
FMERERIZE -

25. BITREMER

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
CHARGES (Continued)

Included in the Group's other payables is amount due to a director of

the Company of approximately RMB2,871,000 at 31 December 2012

which was unsecured, interest-free and repaid during the year.

As at 31 December 2013, included in the other payables are an
amounts of RMB1,189,758,000 (2012: nil) and RMB1,735,074,000
(2012: nil) due to certain joint ventures (note 39(d)) and joint ventures'
partners respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Other payables and accrued charges mainly represent accrued loan
interest, various deposits received from contractors in relation to
tendering and execution of construction contracts.

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

—E—=F —E——fF

2013 2012

AR%STR ARBTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BERIRITER () Bank loans, secured (note (d)) 6,733,762 5,788,391
EEIRRTE R (FsE(d) Bank loans, unsecured (note (d)) - 31,500
BEETER(FizEe) Trust loans, secured (note (e)) 1,884,738 1,889,721
H AR st E R (MFE) Other trust loans, unsecured (note (f)) 446,780 246,300
H i m R E (M sE(Q)) Other loans, secured (note (g)) 157,985 909,496
IREEZ(MEEN) Syndicated loan (note (h)) 930,833 -
10,154,098 8,865,408

REREBHRNE FRITREMERTD
A4S EERE THE AR
AETHREER WEAARZESRMEE
R (FI3E39(b)) °
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Certain bank and other borrowings as at the end of each reporting
period were secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 34,
certain equity interest in certain subsidiaries and guaranteed by a
director of the Company (note 39(b)).
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25. RITREMER @ 25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

B 5E Notes:

(a) EREIRATER ¢ (@) The borrowings are repayable:
—E-=F —T——F
2013 2012
ARBT T AREBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
—FERIRER Within one year or on demand 2,934,643 3,372,220
—F L BTBBARFE More than one year, but not exceeding two years 1,883,615 3,356,287
ML - B RNBBR=F More than two years, but not exceeding three years 4,716,808 1,229,878
ZFAE BT BIBEME More than three years, but not exceeding four years - 262,000
POFLAE - B RNBARF More than four years, but not exceeding five years - 12,000
AFUE More than five years 619,032 633,023
10,154,098 8,865,408
B REBAEE TR FREEHEE Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities (2,934,643) (3,372,220)
—F1REHEE Amount due after one year 7,219,455 5,493,188
—E-—=F —ET——fF
2013 2012
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB000

BB D OERAIT Analysis of borrowings by currency:

—MAAR¥EHE — Denominated in RMB 9,223,265 8,489,568
—ABTTEHE — Denominated in HKD 469,911 375,840
—AETEHE — Denominated in USD 460,922 -
10,154,098 8,865,408

(b) RZEFE—=F+=-_A=+—"H a&ZHA b Fixed-rate borrowings amounted to approximately RMB2,479,135,000 (2012:

R#2,479135000 (=T —=F : ARK RMB2,785,670,000) carry interest ranging from 5.6% to 16.5% (2012: 2.8% to 19%)
2,785,670,000 7T ) K & B & Z LN F5.6% = per annum at 31 December 2013 and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
165% M FF KB (ZF——F : 28% = The remaining borrowings are arranged at variable rates with the effective interest rates
19%)  SAEEEEHAFLEFERR - 2T E ranging from 4.5% to 15.5% (2012: 6.15% to 24.2%) per annum at 31 December 2013,
FTIRZBFERY R=T—=F+=-A=+— and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

B BRFEMENT45%E166%(ZF—=
F :6.15%5242%) * RAEEEHUBEERF

KRR o
(c) REREHARNERNEHEMNT (c)  The range of effective interest rates at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
—E-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
AR¥T T AREBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
RITEN Bank loans 5.6%—12.5% 2.8%—13%
EFEEN Trust loans 10%-16.5% 10%—24.2%
HAER Other loans 9%-15.5% 12%-19%

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K 165
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25.
P

(e)

166

RITREAMBER )

(&)

R-ZB—=F+=-B=+—H8 ' st AKREHER
TERNE L ARE15,000,000T(=ZF—=
&+ AR ¥ 467,500,0007T ) J5 & & 5 A £ 5
& BEHRHARE15,000,000L( =T —=4F :
AR #218500,000L) R=—=F+=A
=t+—HHARREEEZEN B A RBEEER
BERAR ([TBEFE ) REER -

ZEER LT EREME R BAMETERH A AT
¥ o BRERERLEAASEEGTERED
RIRT MV E e o TSI A R SRR
YRR ER ISR ABERENRE AT
HESGHEREEE - R BEELHNEER
ARfEk - MEE ARNRERIAERRR TS
FEE o N_T——_FF+_A=1—H " 578X
PR T a KRR B R RETHNE TR
ERMEIAR MR EME A B (FE34) &
R AR SE ARG R (FTRE39(b))

ZEEFRBERAR - BEEMERERIER

NERE S A B RN BHR B SR A B B AR
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BEH R RIZEE R RN AE EREFTET BRI E
o AEERBREHREIRE R REE LFEA
BXERARE ESBRABEERRAR ([ LEHE
BB TRAEZ (N T10%E30%) ° KN&E
EREA A EH B A B (TREE P i BRI S RIGE
ARFFASEE AN IR ER - HER
BEIE TSR AN B TS A L EIEE AR
HIRR A He o {E A 1 1 (BS £ 34 ) S R B o8 o B8 4
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RZT—=F+ANB ' "ARAIEREZRT) R
RARIE TR =B AR (ERMFZERA)E—
HEI ISR (ER BRI REE;
BER]) - REERALEENETHRER
BhE - #8%E#49156,500,0003ETC © B AR ¢
(\F=TEH & ££75,000,000% 7T : R(i)BITBH
4 4£636,000,000/ 7T * HEBRPREREE
el B HAR At = 4F - WIRMBERITRIZENR
BEN R AIRTTE NS ENN5.65F M FF X5

5 o
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25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(9

Included in the Group's bank loans, amounts of approximately RMB15,000,000 (2012:
RMB467,500,000) as at 31 December 2013 are entrusted by an individual, of which
approximately RMB 15,000,000 (2012: RMB218,500,000) as at 31 December 2013
are guaranteed by CIFI Group Co., Limited (“CIFI (PRC)"), an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

These borrowings are mainly in the form of trust arrangement with trust financing
companies. The conventional loan trust arrangements are loan agreements entered into
by the Group and trust financing companies. The trust arrangements with obligation to
repurchase equity interest involve either capital increase in, or transfer of equity interest
in project companies with repurchase obligations at the maturity of the loans. The
substance of the latter type of trust arrangements is borrowing, with the equity interests
in the project companies legally transferred as collateral. The borrowings under trust
arrangements are secured by certain property development projects undertaken by the
relevant borrowing subsidiaries and shares of subsidiaries of the Company (note 34) or
was guaranteed by Mr. Lin Zhong (note 39(b)) as at 31 December 2012.

These loans were borrowed from trust companies without any security and guarantee.

These borrowings are entered into with investment companies and CURA Investment,
an investee of the Group. The Group entered into cooperation agreements with the
investee or investment companies to raise fund of approximately RMB909,496,000 in
aggregate as at 31 December 2012. Pursuant to the terms stipulated in the cooperation
agreements with the investee and the investment companies, the Group transferred
certain equity interests, varying from 10% to 30%, of Shanghai Xuwei Property Co.,
Ltd and Shanghai Xutong Property Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Xutong”), to the investee or
investment companies. The Group was then obliged to repurchase the entire equity
interests of respective project companies held by the CURA Investment and investment
companies at the maturity date. The borrowings under these arrangements are
secured by equity interests of these project companies held by the Group (note 34) and
guaranteed by CIFI (PRC).

On 8 July 2013, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore subsidiaries of the
Company as initial guarantors, entered into a syndicated loan agreement (“Syndicated
Loan") with a group of financial institutions as lenders. The Syndicated Loan is a dual-
currency term loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately US$156.5 million
divided into two tranches: (i) United States dollars tranche with an aggregate amount
of US$75 million; and (ii) Hong Kong dollars tranche with an aggregate amount of
HK$636 million, with final maturity of three years from the date of the Syndicated Loan
agreement and interest of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 5.65% per annum.
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26. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED
DERIVATIVES

The borrowings of Hefei Xubin included in the note 25(e) are in the
form of trust arrangement with trust financing companies involving
either capital increase in, or transfer of equity interest in project
companies with repurchase obligations. In addition, the borrowing of
Shanghai Xutong included in the note 25(g), the Group was obliged
to repurchase the entire equity interest of the project company held
by the investee of the Group. The repurchase prices of the equity
interests and loan principal of these trust arrangements reflect the
fixed returns and the floating premiums that the trust financing
companies and CURA Investment are entitled to and are linked to
the selling prices or valuation of equity interest of the relevant project
companies at the time as stipulated in the relevant agreements.

The proceeds received from the trust companies and the investee of
the Group have been split between the trust and other loans element
and financial derivatives component, representing the fair value of the
embedded derivatives in respect of the floating premiums.

These trust and other loans contain embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contract and are treated as separate
derivatives. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The classification
of these derivatives are determined based on the earliest repayment
dates that can be demanded by trust financing companies and the
investee.

The fair value of trust and other loans related financial derivative
instruments is calculated using the Monte Carlo simulation by
considering a number of parameters including volatility, credit spread,
risk free rate, property selling prices of the project, the property
development plan estimated by management and maturity dates
determined by the terms of the relevant agreements and the property
sale plan estimated by management.
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26. EEREMERMEBITET
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26. TRUST AND OTHER LOANS RELATED
DERIVATIVES (Continued)

The movements of the embedded derivatives are set out below:

—EB-—=F T4
2013 2012
AR%Tr ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
£ At the beginning of the year 85,000 132,000
RN EVLSER Initial recognition at fair value - 37,000
NEEZEEEHA MRS Gain arising on changes in fair value (3,000) (26,541)
REFSREEERERE Transfer to other payable upon finalisation of
E A e 58 floating premium = (57,459)
FR At the end of the year 82,000 85,000
AREMEA TNB AR - Carrying amount analysed into
RIVEREE 5 Current portion 82,000 -
JERNHRER 4> Non-current portion = 85,000
82,000 85,000
27. BRE 27. SENIOR NOTES

RZZE—=FWMA+HA ' AQARAA
REITHEEAFEE275,000,0005 7T (4
AER#1,717,593,0007C ) B IERE B8
EER(ZZT—=FRAEE]) =%
—=—FREZBUEF1225%FE S5 E
(B¥FEXN—REFHE)  WHR=
T \FHNA+TRAEEEE -

RZZTE—=FhLhA+NAH XA
AR EE4% M A RETHMELR
%8 3 225,000,000 % T (9 A R #&
1,393,470,0007T) B ERHE SEBAERE
(ZZ—=FFIEE])  =T—=
BINEBRATEF1225% B8 (F¥F
FRA—IREEFIL) - WERZZF—N
FA+HBZEERE -

168

On 15 April 2013, the Company issued guaranteed fixed rate
senior notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
US$275,000,000 (approximately RMB1,717,593,000) (the “2013
Original Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 12.25% per annum
(interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable
by 15 April 2018.

On 18 September 2013, the Company issued guaranteed fixed rate
senior notes to the public at premium of 4% with aggregate nominal
value of US$225,000,000 (approximately RMB1,393,470,000) (the
“2013 Additional Notes"”) which carry fixed interest of 12.25% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by 15 April 2018.
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Both the 2013 Original Notes and the 2013 Additional Notes are listed
on the Stock Exchange. They are unsecured, senior obligations of
the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s existing
subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of the PRC.
The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other secured
obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of assets
serving as security.

At any time prior to 15 April 2016, the Company may redeem up to
35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2013 Original Notes
and 2013 Additional Notes at a redemption price of 112.25% of the
principal amount of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional
Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including)
the redemption date, with the net cash proceeds from sales of its
common stock in an equity offering, subject to certain conditions.

At any time and from time to time on or after 15 April 2016, the
Company may redeem the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional
Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the
percentage of principal amount set forth below, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date, if
redeemed during the 12-month period commencing on 15 April of any
year set forth below:

fBoE
HAfE Period Redemption Price
—E-RF 2016 106.1250%
—E—+F 2017 103.0625%

FREOHENATHELTERK -

T =FREZFBR-FT—=FFEI
EENREFENNBRBITRIA R
10,442,000 % 7T ( 9 A E ¥ 65,022,000
TD)EYIR - BEEMNER13.10% ©

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

In the opinion of directors, the fair value of the early redemption
options is insignificant at initial recognition and the end of the reporting
period.

The net carrying amount of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013
Additional Notes are stated net of issue expenses totalling
US$10,442,000 (approximately RMB65,022,000) and the effective
interest rate of the rate is 13.10% per annum.
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27. BEEE s 27. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

HRNEEEEHIHZMT The movements of the Notes for the period are set out below:
ARETT

RMB'000

BEITEBNYLZ ATE Initial fair value on the date of issuance 3,174,326

B 5 e Exchange gain (69,542)

B R (KizEs) Interest expenses (note 8) 221,828

FRBAFIE Interest paid during the year (188,711)

RZE—=F+-A=+—HH

BETE(E Carrying amount as at 31 December 2013 3,137,901

REBZMIMABRME > —FT—=FIR The fair value of the 2013 Original Notes and 2013 Additional
EEBR_Z-=FBIEEN_ZE Notes at 31 December 2013 with reference to the quoted market
—ZF+ZA=+—HHWAFELXARA price available on the Stock Exchange amounted to approximately

R#43,499,524,0007T ° RMB3,499,524,000.
28. R 28. SHARE CAPITAL
2= ==&
2013 2012
AR®TT AR®TT
RMB'000 R\VB'000
AR Authorised:
10,000,000,000f% (= Z— =4 : 10,000,000,000 (2012: 10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of

10,000,000,000% ) =A% EI1E0.178 7T HK$0.1 each (2012: HK$0.1 each)
(ZZ2——F : BRAEIIEIT)W

LEAR 810,000 810,000
EEITRERRA Issued and fully paid:
6,026,579,000f% ( = =F——4F : 6,026,579,000 (2012: 5,770,000,000) ordinary shares of

5,770,000,000% ) &A% EI1E0. 1B 7T HK$0.1 each (2012: HK$0.1 each)
(Z=2——F : SKEEIIETL)N
T 487,896 467,370
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BETRERE  NRRESKE
BESBFNBARQRRMDRERA
##1438,600,000 7% 7T AY #E AR 5018
IR EE SN2 4,386,000,000A% #% 5
VAIZ L R 3R A AR R B 1T M B B AR
19 B GZERERITER o

() RETBEH  RNRR RGO FT
£ RRARWIRERAZ1.3375
TTHYBA82£771,255,000,000 0% &A%
EEC10B T LB - FIEKIR
“EEEA) 51,669,150,000/8 7T ©

) BEBRER-_Z—=F=ZA-1++t
BBBRNAZREEN T —=F1
R+ "BWREWHE  AARIEK
1528 LB R—RBIGFINALTE
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BB LAARRBREETRAZEIHNR S
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The movements in share capital are as follows:

(@) Pursuant to a resolution in writing of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 9 October 2012, subject to the share
premium account of the Company having sufficient balance being
credited as a result of the global offering, the directors of the
Company are authorised to capitalise a sum of HK$438,600,000
from the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in
full 4,386,000,000 shares at par for issue and allot to the existing
shareholders on a pro rata basis.

(b)  On the Listing Date, the Company's shares were listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Company issued 1,255,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.33 per share with gross
proceeds of approximately HK$1,669,150,000.

(c) Pursuant to a resolution of the shareholders passed on 27
March 2013 and the placing agreement on 16 October 2013, the
Company issued 256,579,000 shares to an outsider at a price
of HK$1.52. The net proceeds from the placing is approximately
HK$390 million.

A summary of the transactions with reference to the above-mentioned
movements in the Company's issued share capital is as follows:

BETHR LaER )
LRREE LRREE RHEE RBEZE RE3E 5t
Number Equivalent
of issued Nominal nominal
fully paid value of value of Fquivalent
ordinary ordinary Share ordinary share
shares shares premium shares premium Total

TR TEL ARETT ARETT ARETR
HKS'000 HKS'000 RIB'000 RIB'000 RIVB'000

RZZ-—%#-f—-H At 1 January 2012 129,000,000 12,900 291,903 10,449 236,442 246,891
BR BRI (i) Capitalisation issue of shares (note (a) 4,386,000,000 138,600 (438,600] 355,266 (355,266) -
8 FABERRHET Issue of shares in connection with

(M3 the Listing (note (b] 1,255,000,000 125500 1543650 0165% 1250357 1352012
RIETHRY Share issue expenses - - (92,343) - (74.798) (74.798)
RZZ—-F+=F=+—H  At31 December 2012 5,770,000,000 577000 1304610 167310 1056735 1,524,105
RERR (M) Placing shares (note (c) 256,579,000 25,658 364,342 20,52 287377 307,903

R-B-=#+-H=+—H At31December2013

6,026,579,000 602,658 1,668,952 487,396 1344112 1,632,008

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K
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29. ELEFIIE

AT RRFABBNERRERAEE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred taxation assets (liabilities)

(BB RETE recognised and movements thereon during the years:
AR S
RERME T ER
(BR)M  RENE BHBMIGES
BEES NHE  HBEE =B @;
Temporary
difference on
unrealised
gain (loss) Fair Temporary
arising from value of differences
inercompany  investment Tax on LAT
transactions properties losses provision Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
nZE-—%-A—H At1 January 2012 (6,202) (377,504) 3468 61,791 (318,447)
REaBaREMZERER Credit (charge) to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
SA(HIR) other comprehensive income 17,621 (359,843) 22,693 (5,.299) (324.828)
RZE-—%+-f=1—H At 31 December 2012 11.419 (737,347) 26,161 56,492 (643,275)
RraBakEt2Elax Credit (charge] to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
SAR) other comprehensive income (999) (188,384) 3685 15,147 (170551)
RZE-=F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2013 10420 (925,731) 29,846 71,639 (813,326)

REBFAFHNRE - HETELERRA
BE(RBE)DHEE - AT RRMBHRS
1R BB IER IR AR DA -

For the presentation purposes on the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances
for financial reporting purposes:

—E-=F —E——fF
2013 2012
AR%TR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ELEFIEE E Deferred taxation assets 147,186 114,073
EERIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities (961,012) (757,348)
(813,826) (643,275)
172
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB192,165,000 (2012: RMB305,404,000)
available to offset against future profits. Deferred taxation assets
have been recognised in respect of such losses of approximately
RMB119,384,000 (2012: RMB104,644,000) at 31 December
2013. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining losses of approximately RMB72,781,000 (2012:
RMB200,760,000) at 31 December 2013 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
following years:

—E—=F —T——F

2013 2012

AR®TR ARBTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

:2—E$ 2013 - 435
— PO 2014 1,448 4,870
:i—£$ 2015 2,607 10,330
—EB—RF 2016 26,825 88,125
—+4F 2017 17,349 97,000
—N\F 2018 24,552 -
72,781 200,760
RZZF—=F+=ZA=+—H  A%E At 31 December 2013, the Group had deductible temporary
KEEMEREMENARIERXZHIAH  differences arising from inter-company transactions in relation to

RERR =24 B AK74,069,0007T( =
T — 4% : ARK¥100,493,0007T) °
TS K B] g8 75 JE SR 5 ) AT 4K 8 AT 40
FiER R 2 B8+ B0 4B ph A% A 0BG B
ERERREERHIEEE

BE(PFBRSEMSEZE) BZTEN
F—A—A  HPEMNBELQFRRD
FIEAE IR EEABWTBRAEH o 45
EUBBRRPRBERIR =T —=F+=
A=+—HMHT KB LR R FHE
IHERRF = R84 A R #4,397,195,0007T (=

——%F : AR¥2,908,583,0007T)EH
BEBIBRE - DRSBTS R
B =R EOEN BZSHREE8ER
RAS R AR g o

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

construction of properties of approximately RMB74,069,000 (2012:
RMB100,493,000). No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC enterprise income law, withholding income tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB4,397,195,000
(2012: RMB2,908,583,000) as at 31 December 2013, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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30.

(a)

ZEiRBWE— BB QR KR
EEREE
RZZE—=FA++tH  ~x5£H
BBV E =SB AR ERE
BRARIINEERYE - Bt - K
EEWE A EREREREER
ARI(HEEE]) F80% e - X
84 AR¥28,000,0007T °

30. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a)

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 17 June 2013, the Group entered into a cooperation
arrangement with AR BEE#ERZ AR A7 (Hunan Kehui
Properties Development Co., Ltd.), an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group acquired 80% interest in S5 gl E
EiHERZEAER A A (Hunan Ronghui Properties Development
Co., Ltd. “Hunan Ronghui"”) for consideration of RMB28,000,000.

HERETIRY TBIE o M ERIA
BAR - HERENEREEERN
R E L -

B EEFERRATEERA

&

Hunan Ronghui is the project company for Hunan CIFI

Comfortable Joyous Bay (£ fBE ek 1 &

). The major asset of

Hunan Ronghui is the land parcel situated at Changsha, Hunan.

The acquired net assets comprised the following assets and

liabilities:

—E-=fF
2013
AR¥T T
RMB'000
BAFERENEEFE Net assets acquired at fair value:
S E YN Property, plant and equipment 181
MY Properties for development 405,760
RITEHBEIRE Bank balances and cash 63,388
H b 5IA Other payables (434,329)
35,000
AR R RN E R B EFE Identified net assets shared by non-controlling interests (7,000)
NIRE T RBRE Total consideration satisfied by cash 28,000
WIEEEMNRESRAFEE - Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
ENERE Cash paid 28,000
ERNIRTESR LIRS Bank balances and cash acquired (63,388)
(35,388)
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BREERRAF RKERERH
ERZEERAFRRREFRREH
ERZEERAFGILEERZH -
Bt "EBR-_ZT——F+ A
FERMRXEHLEEHMERESR
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31,224,500 7T + W g KOE 42 B
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383,0007T °
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30. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(b)

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

On 15 September 2012, the Group entered into a cooperation
arrangement with XEZFAEESBEFXEREBER A A (Tianjin
Economic Zone Wantong Industries Development Group Co.,
Ltd), K)ZRERMERZEAR A A (Tianjin Shengda Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd) and XEFEREHERZEGR QA
(Tianjin Xinshidai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd), all are
independent third parties, pursuant to which the Group acquired
51% interest in K)EH 4L EFEHERMZE AR QA (Tianjin Shijixing
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., “Tianjin Shijixing”) in October
2012 by capital injection of RMB31,224,500 in Tianjin Shijixing.
Before the completion of the acquisition, Tianjin Shijixing did
not earn any revenue and incurred administrative expenses of
approximately RMB383,000 since its establishment.

Tianjin Shijixing is the project company for Tianjin CIFI Century
Waterside (K;ZfBiEett 427K =). The major asset of Tianjin
Shijixing is the land parcel situated at Hangu district (Zh[&),
Tianjin.

The acquired net assets comprised the following assets and
liabilities:

—EF—_4F
2012
ARETT
RMB'000
ZATFERENEEFE Net assets acquired at fair value:
M - BB R Property, plant and equipment 110
H b e KRIA Other receivables 21
MY Properties for development 178,196
RITESR LIRS Bank balances and cash 3,707
H b e 708 Other payables (151,000)
NIRSENERE Total consideration satisfied by cash 31,224
WIEEERR ML - Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
BEfEe Cash paid 31,224
ERRRITEBR IR Bank balances and cash acquired (3,707)
27,517
BB (SE)ERAR | —E—=FFF 175
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31. WE—ERB A NEEIIME
HE-_T—=—F+=-A=+—81L
FE AEENUNRSREHARE
57,256,000 7T B FF 1% A% #E &= W B8 B 02
¢lm2%%k$%\°EH&EA
WEEREREBIIMERE B RIEZER
T B IR A ZFﬁm#aﬁiﬁ/\Eﬁ%
23,765,000 T A IR AR PR - W&
BRARRBIHEEA °

BHE_Z—=F+_A=+—HLHF
£ - T B AR & K E AKRK900,000
EE#?&%\%ﬁiimﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
NAINIS% R AR - ETREEKEE
BIEHEBEXBRAREIIMERE BRIE
TRESOBR AR HNEEARKE
374,000TC IR AR 1ERR - WERB AR
2PN

32. HE—RBHNBAR

FA AEEUAREREBEARY
10,500,000 TR — BB E=HFHER
SEMB AR LEEENE IR AR -

MEARNHEAHNEEFEN T

31. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 2.05% equity interest
in CIFI (PRC) was acquired by the Group at a cash consideration of
approximately RMB57,256,000 from a non-controlling interest. A
difference between the consideration paid and the equity interest
of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of additional
interest in CIFI (PRC) amounting to approximately RMB23,765,000
was recognised in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, CIFI (PRC) acquired
3% equity interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. from a
non-controlling interest at a cash consideration of RMB900,000.
A difference between the consideration paid and the equity
interest of the non-controlling interest at the date of acquisition of
additional interest in Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. amounted to
RMB374,000 was recognised in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in its
subsidiary, Shanghai Xujia, at a cash consideration of RMB10,500,000
to an independent third party.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal are as follows:

—B—=f

2013

ARET T

RMB'000

BB Investment properties 127,500
H b IE MY Other payable and accrued charges (117,000)

RB Consideration 10,500

HERELANRSRAFE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:

BEUERERE Cash consideration received 10,500
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RIFHBERBERLER - ARBHH
[0 Pt B8 % B 7R 2 B 4 75 T BURT HEFT ) SR
GRS - AEEWTEMNEA
AR T MERFATREFHREF T H
ETADLLRF SR - UsEE R
RENENES - AEEHBBEKER
AEMEREEAREAEELAATHE

=
N

AEBNABTEMERERERERER
HMEREEETE - LTSN EERAK
SEEEDH  FRRXFAABTENE
& AERERZTEFELNEAISER
HERARNE% -+ MiE 8 IFAEL RSt

e
oA °

34, EHEE
THEERBRE AT LKA RA
EEEEETRTREMBME -

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administrated by the local municipal
government. The Group’'s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which
are calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary
as required by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the
retirement benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and
other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the reporting period:

—EBE-—=F T4

2013 2012

ARETRT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

LEME Investment properties 4,570,000 974,000
FENHEERE Prepaid lease payments - 21,772
Y Properties under development 10,654,279 9,986,700
RIEHEME Properties held for sale 2,912,549 1,275,879
B IRIRITER Pledged bank deposits 100,000 -
18,236,828 12,258,351

ETHBARMEEFE M) Net assets of certain subsidiaries (note) 132,847 2,087,354

MiEE : ATEEMREYR  BEEEHIA  BERY
X FHEREMERRTER (LR EFTA
ETHBERRAMNEESRE -

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

Note: Certain pledged investment properties, prepaid lease payments, properties under
development, properties held for sale and bank deposits as stated above, were included
in the net assets of certain subsidiaries.
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35. MERH

FEEERHBAA
REEER - AEERABSTHNHR
RBREEERHT -

35. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments as follows:

—EB—=F —_T——F

2013 2012

ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—F R Within one year 65,518 58,475
FE_FEFRAF(BHEERME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 180,288 195,913
hF% After five years 285,367 297,922
531,173 552,310

AEERFEHERENREVEHEHA
PN F—E_+FHNEANEP - K&
MENHOHARAE SRR - MR
HeEAHEMRINEXEETAOL

i -

AREBER/EBEA

RBEHR - AEERE A BEELE
HAOMBAREENE NN RKKER
ST

The investment properties held by the Group for rental purpose have
committed tenants from one to twenty years. Lease of an investment
property has clauses of contingent rentals determined by a certain
percentage of turnover earned by the tenant.

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leased properties as follows:

—E—=F —_T——F

2013 2012

AR®BTRT AR®TT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—F R Within one year 4,508 6,732
E_FEFRF(RIEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,576 5,460
hFi& After five years 59 67
6,143 12,259

REHENFTEARERETHAE
EEMNNEE - €HENELFHIHR
AR—ETF HeRREHEBZBH
FEE °
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one to ten years and rentals are fixed at the date of signing of
lease agreements.
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36. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

—B-=F —FT——F
2013 2012
AR®TR AREKTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BB RNGRE SRR A Expenditure in respect of acquisition of land use rights
A RN EE T i AR contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 3,360,470 1,501,686

37. AREE
AEER—_ZE—=F+"_HA=+—8B#%
BETAEEEARYEERNIZBIRT
EFRHEHARKIT7,717,000L (=
——%F : AR¥1,667,296,0007T) K&
R ARRREERE  AEEZEYH
ERENHAFERVISBRAKIIESE
R BARRRIEERBBEBITNFEY
B P] RS 1 RR /)N - B RT SLIEIR & KV %
R_E—=ZF+-_A=1+—BHHREH
AR R AR EE o

AEEEES TR HELABEEA
BHYERAUS R -_TE——FMWA - &%
EEAPEE—BEPREHMNOEME
FBEEEMAQRE THEATRLEL
A R % 40,600,000 TR L E HF 5
HE BERERHMAXNEEZEARE
WIRFES  MBBMAINEEERD
SIHARBHRBESRMAITIEES
RAEFE - AEBMBRITEHROARE
21,768,000t E =T —FF + - A%
FEESEBEARERIIR - ANEE
EFEREREAERZER  RABER
ERFANRRERTEHAERMNE
EARRBRR EATFI R 2L o

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB977,717,000 (2012: RMB1,667,296,000) as at 31 December
2013 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of
the Group’s developed properties. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts
of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors
of the Company consider that the possibility of the default of the
parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised
at the inception of the guarantee contracts and on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013.

The Group was involved in a legal dispute with a construction
contractor. In April 2011, a construction fee dispute claim of
approximately RMB40.6 million, which included amounts of
outstanding construction fee and performance bond, plus penalty
in respect of outstanding construction fee and interest in respect of
performance bond and outstanding construction fee, was brought
by the construction contractor against certain subsidiaries of the
Company in relation to a property development project in Suzhou, the
PRC. The Group's bank balance of approximately RMB21,768,000
was held in custody of the People’'s Court of the Qingpu district in
Shanghai, the PRC since December 2010. The Group has assessed
the claim and obtained legal advice, and considered that the ultimate
outcome of this legal proceeding will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Group.
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38. IR XNHRS

(a) BERAMBEAIRDEBTE
AEBH HIR DR ERD ZE)F 8
(RBERBERZF EmHEZZEELERT)
(Tt BEETE D) IR —F—TF+ =
ARRABMRRARER —_TTLFR
AT BEBBERRZRENH XA
T R S2RET &) o RIRRX D BER) AT
2 AAREBRBCRRESMH LR
WA AR R B (TR A ]) 3
AEBETREERER - Bip R
FNEMARBAKESE TREREMEL
F BRI 45 T 28R -

RO BEEFE > R —TF+—
A=t —BREWERRO Y RRA
BEAED LA EXBARRE BITRAN
3.25% * ARAMRAE RN AT £
R AR o SRENA D X R B AR
BHEARRARARS - BEHATF
(BEEDBFHE)  R&EBMEAR - BT
1 B 1y 2B A {0 P 25 % 5 #2485 L Il 7t
EEREENSRABEFRE @RS
BRARRIREBERBHERSMAERDTA
R LR EEN—A—R -

R-E—ZFF+-_HA=+—8  BEK
MR ERENRBROO A FEER
AR #58,000,0007T * A A F(ETHEF
REEERMIGEEE - ZEXANEE
2EERMABL APNEFATER
BETTER - MERDN2ELHREKSE
FEiERE WK EMAI Rl B L&
ANRIWELERT ©

RERORRL BEBBR - WERA
BEEGAI T LAGESY - WARARRRMNE
BRI LT B B IR (R 2 B R
HAREEMNFERBATEAREAAE
BE-HE_ZT—=F+-HA=+—H1t
FE  AEERETAEEETEED
RENR GO HERL A KRK7,724,0007T (=
T —_F : AR¥25307,0007T)
§ o
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(a) Pre-IPO share award scheme

The Group's Pre-IPO share award scheme, as amended in accordance
with the proposed listing on the Stock Exchange, (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted in December 2010 and then replaced the Pre-
IPO share award scheme originally adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 19 May 2007. Under the Share Award Scheme, Mr Lin
Zhong, a controlling shareholder and director of the Company, awards
the Company's shares (the “Awarded Shares”) held by him to certain
employees of the Group. The objective of the Share Award Scheme is
to recognise the contributions of certain employees of the Group and
to incentivise them.

Under the Share Award Scheme, the total percentage of equity
interest in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on 31
December 2010 was 3.25% of the issued capital of the Company to
be incorporated in connection with the proposed listing on the Stock
Exchange. The Awarded Shares, subject to a vesting period, are being
held by the trust on behalf of the grantees. The vesting period is four
years, from the beginning of each instalment, during which 25% of
the Award Shares granted to employee will vest on each anniversary
of the first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date is 1
January of the year following the Company to be successfully listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme at 31 December 2010 was RMB58,000,000, and was
determined by using a mix of asset-based and market approach. The
significant inputs into the model were estimated fair value of shares
at the grant date and estimated price-to-book ratio. The price-to-book
ratio is estimated by reference to comparable listed companies on the
Stock Exchange engaged in property development in the PRC.

The Awarded Shares are contingent at grant date and are subject to
the cancellation in the event of resignation of the grantees; and the
vesting conditions of successful listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange and satisfactory performance of such employee
based on his or her annual performance appraisal. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Group recognised an expense in
relation to the Awarded Shares granted to certain employees of
the Group amounting to approximately RMB7,724,000 (2012:
RMB25,307,000).
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(a) BRARMBEARMDEETE ()
FAFER LR RIEFDT

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)
(a) Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year are
as follows:

3
g R
Number of 538 {5 /5
share awards Vesting Conditions

T & B ey SR
—-RZE-ZEF+-_A=1—H

Share Award granted to employees:
—on 31 December 2010

136,500,000 25% E—E—=F—A—AE-_T—F+-A=+—HLt
25% from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2016
25%BE _F-—NF-A—-—BRE_T—+F+_A=+—HL
25% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2017
B%E_T—HF—A—BRE-ZT—/\F+=-A=+—HLt
25% from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2018
25%BE_T—R"F-A-BRE_T-AF+_A=+—HL
25% from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2019

BERFABEARREBRMDNES) :

The movements of the Company’s share awards held by employees
during the year:

RENRH 2B
Number of share awards

RZE—=%F

RZT—=%F +-A=1+—8

—A—H LTSN

BTSN REN B Outstanding

Outstanding Vested as at

B B as at during 31 December

Grant date 1 January 2013 the year 2013

RERD —E-EF+-A=+—H 136,500,000 (34,125,000) 102,375,000

Share awards 31 December 2010

EEER(RBDBR AR | ZT—=FFH 181
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38. LURHBININRZ @)

(a) EHRAMBENRA LD B ()
EEBRERBAERA LD E
B ()

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)

The movements of the Company's share awards held by employees

during the year: (Continued)

RERH 2B

Number of share awards
R-T—_F
RZB—_F +ZA=+—8
—H—H BATHSN
BTSN RENEFB Outstanding
Outstanding Vested as at
& BER as at during 31 December
Grant date 1 January 2012 the year 2012
R —E-TFEF-A=1t—H 136,500,000 - 136,500,000

Share awards

31 December 2010

(b) FEARMESHE
BERRFIR_ZE—_F+ANBERA
MR8 ([ B AERTE ) - EFA
BELRERESQBTNERESE
Pt - EZERAZLR/RAT=ZENR
2 @QRARBRAARAREEZNE
B(ZBEAREXER ' [2HNBEH MR
FTEMRIANROUETE : (b)BERE
#) B AR B E & 5 B B S AT B R P51 A
ARRBD B FHRHE(EEEEER
tEAR DB R LT AT AR ERZE B
WHE  MARBEREZX A M AE
EEBALM) : ROARBBDHE
(=0

IR IR B AR RE AT 8 S AN 2 B A1) B b g AR
REEIR TEREANMEBREETER
A FEITHRMDAE - BRIEARFIME
ARERFTBOEAE T LR - BRITSHBA
& $#£577,000,000& &0 (ZF — 4 :
577,000,000 f& 7 ) + HERARNFEHKHE
HIE BT (D AR EHI10% o

182

(b) Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012, the directors may invite
participants to take up options at a price determined by the board of
directors provided that it shall be at least the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the
grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date (provided that
the offer price shall be used as the closing price for any business day
falling within the period before listing of the shares of the Company
where the Company has been listed for less than five business days
as at the Offer Date); and (c) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 (2012: 577,000,000) shares, representing 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of this annual report
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the shareholders to
refresh the limit.
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(b) BB #ESTEI(E)

BRERERARRIRERE EBITHE
SN REMI2E A BER - §A28EE
EITE R BB SRR E (R
BEITERMARITEERAE) MERITR
15 FEITHRMDEE LR - TSHBALR
BITIRDBEA% °

ARATEEZENREZENEEE R
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BN EERRE AR 10FAER °

MALBRECEFERNRE - ZSHEIRE
WAFENMERA -—BEAERTE - E#X
AT :

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total
number of the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a general meeting
of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may
be determined and notified by the board of directors to the grantee at
the time of making an offer which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the grant date.

Two tranches of share options have been granted during the year.
Fair Value of these share options were calculated using the binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

AT B A AV B IR
Share options granted on
—g—=F —ZT—=F
+A=+hA

—A=+7xH

26 February 29 October

2013 2012

B B ERRE Grant date share price HK$1.5835 7  HK$1.5138 7T
TEE Exercise price HK$1.684;8 T  HK$1.55/87C
FEHAGFHA Expected life Note ffizE Note [ffzE
FEERR b8 Expected volatility 60% 57%
A% B 2 5 Dividend yield 2.53% 253%
1R P ) Risk-free interest rate 0.624% 0.830%

Bt PR T IR SR (SRR AR+ TR ERD) 2
SE

TBEK IR TR BB E16E AR R B AR
RITARER EHREAME] E L ERAF
MRENELRREE HEEEERE
HET  BEXAPNAHFHEREBK
BN TATEEN  TERSRITREE
MEENTZEMBTAE -

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

Note: Expected life of the option is calculated by the formula of (vesting period + exercise
period)/2.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company's share price over the past 15 months and other
comparable within the industry and listed in Hong Kong. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.
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(b) MEMRRFESTEI(H)
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H0 ' REE
MRREET &I B M AR IT R 60 B AR M P
R I 8 B A&302,400,0008% © 1574
ARER_E—=F+_A=+—HHK
MEE#I5% °

RZZE—=F-_A=+"HEZZT—=
FHAZTNBRLENBRENGEA
FED R A ARKT8,388000TRkAR
#71,393,0007C °

BRENITERREL T

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 was 302,400,000, representing 5% of the shares of

the Company as at 31 December 2013.

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 26 February
2013 and 29 October 2013 are RMB78,388,000 and RMB71,393,000

respectively.

The exercisable period of the share options is as follows:

N-B—=%F— A=+ xAFHHERE

Share options granted on 26 February 2013

%% RZZE—NF+A—HBEE VBT —NFtHA—HRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
—E-)\FAA=THATE 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

5% N_E—AFtHA—BHEE YB_FT—HFtH—HRBRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
—E-N\EXA=THATE 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018

2% : RZE—R"FtHA—BRE YB-T-— "FtH—HEE 25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
—E-\FA=ZFTHATE 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018

2% RZZE—+tF+tA—HBEE VBT —+tFtA—HREE 25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
—E-)\FAA=THATE 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

RZZE—=FTAZ+hBREMOERE Share options granted on 29 October 2013

2% R—ZE—NF+A—HEBE BT —NFtHA—HRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
—E-\FRA=TRHATE 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

%% N_ZE—RAFtA—BHEE YB_T—HFtHA—ARBRE 25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from

—E-)\FA=THATE
2% RZZE—~FtH—
—E-N\EXA=THATE
%% R_ZE—+F+tA-BRE TE_-F
—E-\FA=THATE

AGRE LA=F

—R"EFLtA-BHEE

—tFLA-BER

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018

25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018

25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB36,581,000 (2012:
Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

RS
Number of
Options

SR IRMT

Vesting Conditions

HBARE
HESE=1
Contractual life
of options

FREL
Granted during the year:
F%%%m%&%
T_ — ﬂE )E] +/ \ E
Share Opt|ons granted to directors:
—on 26 February 2013

_E/\ FT__ =

AZE—=F+HA=+AIH
— on 29 October 2013

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

2,400,000

5,100,000

R-ZZE-HF+A—REE WBE_T—WF
+A—HBRE_E-N\FA=THAUTE

25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018

RZZE-—HFEtA—HABE TE-_T—1F
+A—HBREZE-N\FA=THUTE

25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018

RZE—XRFtA—HEB YE-_Z—X~F
+tA—BRE-_E-N\FAA= +E|—Jﬁ1§

25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from

1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018

R_Z—+FtA-—HBEE YE_T—+F
+A—HREZE-N\FA=THAUTE

25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from

1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

25% :

25% :

25% :

25% :

R-ZZE-HE+A—REE WE_T—WF
+A—HREZE-N\FAA=THUTE
25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
5% R_E—RF+tA—HRE YE_T—h#F
JC)E] BRE-E—N\EXNAZFTRHAIE
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
RZE—XRFtA—HEE WBE-Z—X~F
tA-AREZZT-/\FRA= JrEI—HﬂE
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
RZZ—+FtA-—HBE TE_T—+F
+A—HBREZE-N\FA=THUTE
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

25% :

25% :

25% :

kS

4 years

o4

4 years

I

4 years

kS

4 years

o4

4 years

P4

4 years

P

4 years

M &

4 years
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38. URM MRS @) 38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)
(b) EERESHEI(®) (b) Share option scheme (Continued)
BEE
BIREHE BB HEOE:
Number of Contractual life
Options  Vesting Conditions of options
BTRENBRE :
Share options granted to employees:
~-RZE-—=F-A=+H 150,000,000 25% : R_E—F+HA—HEE - YBE-_T—NF EF
— on 26 February 2013 +A—BREZZ—N\FA=+HAITE 4years

25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
25% R_Z-—hFtHA—-BRE YB_T—1F NF
TtA—HREZZT-N\FXA=THATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
5% RZEBE—RNELA—HEE TE_Z—XF NF
+tA-ARBRE-_Z-\F~ A= "HEI—HTE 4 years
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
25% : R_E—tF+LA—BHRBE TBE_T—+F HF
+A—BREEZ_Z-N\FA=THHTE 4 years
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

“R-E—=Ft+HA-1+NH 144900000 25% : R_Z—ME+A—BRE YE_T—NF NEF
—on 29 October 2013 +tA—BBREZE-N\FAA=+HATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2014 and exercisable from
1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018
2% PR_T-AF+A-BARE YA_T-HF NF
+tA—RABEZZ-N\FA=THATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2015 and exercisable from
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2018
25% : RZEBE—RNEFE+A—HREE TE-_ZT—XF NF
+tA—BREE-Z—-\F A= ‘T'H—Jﬁﬁ 4 years
25%: vested on 1 July 2016 and exercisable from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2018
25% : R_ZE—tFLtA—BBRBE TBE-T—tF WF
+tA—BBREZZE-N\FA=+HATE 4years
25%: vested on 1 July 2017 and exercisable from
1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

—=HF+Z A=+ —HHEREES 302,400,000
Total share options at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+-A=+—Ba 11t -

Exercisable at 31 December 2013
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39. BBA RS REe

BB E21 R 24 Frat BERE 7 A EROD - K&
BN FERNRERBBIETATEARS

(a) B—EEEQTHEWE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

Apart from the balances with related parties set out in notes 21 and

24, the Group entered into the following significant transactions with

its related parties during the year:

(a) Sales of properties to a related company

—EB—=F —_T——F
2013 2012

AR®TRT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000

PRI EEERRAR FERIREEEBRAF
(AMAFEE - HMEXLER (company controlled by Mr. LIN Zhong,
FRIE S A 32 %Il B9 A 7)) Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng) 33,331 -

(b) RRAF-—BEBRZFLRRMRBT
R B ERARANHBERER

(b) Financial guarantees provided by a director of the Company
and the ultimate shareholder for bank and other borrowings:

—EBE-—=F —E——fF
2013 2012
AR®Tr ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000

RITREMMERBIATALTIER © Bankand other borrowings guaranteed by:
Mt Mr. LIN Zhong - 300,000

(c) RUWR(ERM)RNRENERBRGES
MR R AR HIREA B AR 5=
BFBF SRIBFHS

(c) Particulars of the amounts due from (to) Jiaxing Xucai, a related
company in which Mr. Lin Zhong, a controlling shareholder and
director of the Company, has control:

—E—=F —T——F
2013 2012
AR¥TRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

e E B RS Rental receivable from Jiaxing Xucai 14,203 14,271
DWW E BT OEERS Rental deposit received from Jiaxing Xucai (6,000) (6,000)

fizx : R=Z——F XA AEERFEEHE B
EYEIVHERZ - BH+RE - UARIR=
T——F+=-A=+—HR=Z—=%+=A
=+—HmEEBEZKEA RE6,000,0007T1E
AEERE - IWEREFBY T MEEHRER
BHELWAARKE19,620,0007T (=T ——4F :
AR#14,271,0007T) © ThiR BRI EHEF A
HERENBE—_T—=F+-_A=1+—HIEE
iR AR R M2 ERESR P RER ©

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

Note: The Group entered into a lease agreement with Jiaxing Xucai for a term of fifteen years
in respect of an investment property in June 2011, RMB6,000,000 was received from
Jiaxing Xucai as the deposit of the lease at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013
respectively. Rental income, calculated on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease agreement, from this operating lease with Jiaxing Xucai of RMB19,620,000 (2012:
RMB14,271,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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39. BEARE REEE 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(d) W ENeELERE (d) Amounts due from/to joint ventures

—EB-—=F T4
2013 2012
AR®TRT AR®TTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

FEW EBER BB ¥ AR A RIFIA Amounts due from Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. 93,833 -
W E B2 E E A R A RFIE Amounts due from Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. 12 -
JEUN RSB )2 b EE A B Amounts due from Tianjin Xujin Real Estate
BRAFIFIE Development Co., Ltd. 129,805 -
223,650 -
EREEBIREEZ AR AFIFIE Amounts due to Wuhan Xucheng Property Co., Ltd. 148,078 -
B B4R E AR A RFIE Amounts due to Shanghai Luxu Property Co., Ltd. 506,100 -
FERERMN B B EEIR AR KIE Amounts due to Suzhou Xuyang Property Co., Ltd. 512,850 -
BN EBEREEEERAFIKIE Amounts due to Shanghai Xukang Property Co., Ltd. 22,730 -
1,189,758 -
FElR TERTE FTAXDERIBLE The amounts due from/to certain joint ventures were unsecured,
IR o B R EIREEE o interest-free and repayable on demand.

(e) REANENERENZEIAATES (e) The remuneration paid and payable to the key management
HAREBTESIE A BHNEFEEN personnel of the Group who are also the directors of the
BfEE11 o Company for the year is set out in note 11.
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40. EXEREE
AEFBEREEAUABRRAEEBETNE
BEAHELE  AREENEEEE
PRA R AR RBUIR T R A 3R

AEBNEAZERBEFEE  MER
EBIEM 26 PT R (8 X (FIRR IR & B3R
T FHFEY) RARRHEE AR AERS
(BEEETRAE - BERERENE) -

ARBIEFTEHRAEARRE - FR/Z
Hign HP—R - ARAREFEZEER
AR B FREARBRAMER - RE
BEETHTEEBEANRRE -

41. €T HE

(a) EASHBE

ERRELRMEE SRMABRBRAT
BFTRANEASHBE (BIEERN K
%) FrENEERIKA KA ERHOE
HEEEE W BENEES

(b) &I AMESH

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 25 net of cash and cash equivalents,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies adopted, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments are
disclosed in note 3.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

—EB-=F —T—=—F
2013 2012
ARETRT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE Financial assets
A HERE Available-for-sale investment 54,023 9,463
BERMEWFAE(BIERE & Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
REFEW) 10,116,810 5,825,659
SEas Financial liabilities
BEIERCAR Amortised cost 19,860,000 11,846,493
HEPTET A Embedded derivatives 82,000 85,000
BRI (EEB)AR AR | —E—=FFR 189
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41. €I B

(c) BIBEMETEEERIEE
AEBNTESHIABEAHEER
Z BHRKTE  EibEWEE %
RERE  BEMIBTER  BOTER
REE - U IR R KA
BHRENZKIE HREMNZE  R1TR
HApfEsR - SR EmEREEITET
ARBEAER - ZZLRMTANFEH
REGEHE - B EemTAEBENE
B R 40 fa] S8 1S 3% 5 R B Y I 5K 8 71 40
T-EREEERELZSAR - BER
R B RO AR EGE S

(d) mWiEEE

AEENEHFET BN R - HMEE R
gEPMmisERLREMERER(2ET
X) e

A E R E S G IEE RN A TR
RERARNST A HEEAEE) -

FE iz B HE

R ERITF R ERRTT R E M AR (RIRE
FEARRITA MM R EHZBF X
HEESNE RS ) HIRITHISH KNS -
R A EE LR SR A KRR o

AEBH R FENRER T2 EIREE
A RET BN IR REFR - RITR
HBRAREBEREER - NEER
B I S A B AR OT &£ T A& Q% HmE
BN EER - AT EEEREFE
e E B E AN EER

AEERHESRAEAR BN XE
B FREHERAHERDESRARERE

—f5 -

190

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investment, trade receivables, other receivables, restricted cash,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from/
to non-controlling interests, trade payables, other payables, bank and
other borrowings, trust and other loans related derivatives and senior
notes. Details of these financial instruments are set out in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(d) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks of changes
in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and other price risk
(see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group's exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk
over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits and
bank and other borrowings which carry at variable rates based on the
interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China plus a premium.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed rate
amounts due to non-controlling interests, bank and other borrowings
and senior notes. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
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(d) TiZEbS (%)

FI =R & FE (4)

A TSRE DT IREIESTE T A (BRTT
HEARRIBITREMET)FERARESR -
DM HBRNBREHARREPEHT A
REFANGRINEMERE - AEZEE
A B 1A B B R ) 2R [ B R = LA FH K 1 001
B2 (BRTT R EAMAE RS ) KA RS0
EEZ(RBAERME ) BEE - IE
BABDRIHIRIT R EMERRIBITE
) E AT RE B B A FTAY o

RIBERR - WHAEEFH TRE100K%
SOMEE 2 (7 RIBLIRTT R E AR R IRTT
BRmME)  r MABEMESERHTE -
BAEBHEE " T—=F+_/F=+—
BIEFEMFMBEEM HRINOAR
7614000 (=ZFTE—=F : AR%
8,114,0007T) °

I R B
REBUAREKEREMBERA - X
HozH(BEMEHEEENTEH AR
BARRZ)MUAAREHE -

AEBETETAINETFHENR S -
A T EL R E R REER - AEE
B B mINEERER o A BEE
SESIINERBAXEERNESER
ZREPREAMINE R o

R_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H A&EH
BN EMRITEH KB © BT
ERREBEEE (D RIENHTEE23 - 25K
27)  (EAREEATINERES

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (bank
balances and bank and other borrowings). The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point increase or decrease for bank and other borrowings and a 50
basis point increase or decrease for bank deposits are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the possible change
in interest rate in respect of bank and other borrowings and bank
deposits respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 and 50 basis points in respect of bank and other
borrowings and bank deposits respectively and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB7,614,000 (2012: RMB8,114,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as well
as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank balances and cash,
bank borrowings and senior notes denominated in foreign currencies as
set out in notes 23, 25 and 27, respectively, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk.
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41. €I B

(d) TEEE @)

SRR ETE ()

S e i 10
TREFIAREEARK S IBEINEG 8]
RERFHERIES% - 5% BALTEE
I A B PR R 45 SN R\ B BT 16 R MY R
B lEER BT GINEERNTEA R
BE) o GURE D ITIEBIFEUINESHER
REHERIAR - BN E B RFIMNE
PE R H)5% B BT EIRE o E ARKIE
U A S FHEE%E - TEPHER
FORAMERE I - BAREEENERE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency rate sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in Renminbi against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjust their translation at
the end of reporting period of 5% changes in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit where Renminbi

BB EB %R - @Y FEELS —@EMZEY  strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening
HROFE  NTESBEENEE - of Renminbi against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the balances below would be
negative.

—E—= —E——4F

2013 2012

AR¥TRT AR¥KTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BT Hong Kong Dollars 14,538 28,387

eV United States Dollars 143,285 5,005

(e) FERERERE
RBERAR - REBERAZLRHEFT7
REBITEERAKEME DM BER
MERAEBERIUBBEENRKEER
Rk - TDELBERA M BRRKAMT
EEEERATREENREE - A RHK
AV BBERABELSRE - AREER
REERE  DRITEEREFARREK
H)ZEELGEMZE&@EIHE%% gESN - A&
%i&%ﬁﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ{lﬂlﬁf%&
H Al AR - e WK A EE 1 B 5RIR K R
WEEFIE A YOS5 - EE%MTT
W EEBRELTSHRERSE - 2511
FAEMBARRP ORI LR RE
REE YAAKRBEEEBEANLAE
S H IR OB IRIR R RS (R b ET -
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(e) Credit risk management

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the amount of
contingent liabilities disclosed in note 37. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and amounts due from directors at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and
their assessment of the current economic environment.
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(e) EERKBEREH)

MR FE T AR AREBRTESEE
MR THPRNBEERT  HORD
B EERBBER o

BREREZRBEETARTHORDES
BEERBRETHOERN  AEENE
ERRYERZET  BAROMNEZE
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FBRBMRITA BRAEEEERE
BEERREMBBENE - EULFT
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Credit risk management (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk, which exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers.

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 80% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee, the bank
holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances,
the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received and re-sell
the repossessed properties. Therefore, the management considers
it would likely recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantee
by the Group. The management considers the credit risk exposure
to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited
because the facilities are secured by the properties and the market
prices of the properties are higher than the guaranteed amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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AEENEEREBERBRELEE
BSESHFEERETEE 2 MRE
Tl ARREEREEERDE SN
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f) Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding generated from operating activities and the flexibility through
the use of borrowings. The directors of the Company closely monitor
the liquidity position and expect to have adequate sources of funding
to finance the Group's projects and operations.

The following table details the Group's expected remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The analysis for the Group's
derivative financial instruments are prepared based on the maturities
estimated by the management with reference to the progress of
property development projects.

R=B-=%
tZR=t-A FHARER
HEEE ]
Carrying amount Total
pik3 at 31 December 02607 6121808 18123658 1225 1235 3EH L undiscounted
Interest rate 013 0-60days  61to180days  181to 365 days 1-2years 2-3years Over 3 years cash flows
NG ARBT T ARET T ARET T ARETT ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTESREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
Titg Non-interest bearing - 6,567,658 6,567,658 - - - - - 6,567,658
FESIE Fived interest rate instruments 56%-16.5% 5,617,319 89,795 153,844 1,603,753 1213598 902,414 3,137,900 7,101,304
2EIE Variable interest rate instruments 42%-15 5% 1,674,963 133,930 309,076 1,171,968 2,086,513 361,219 1,836,872 9,159,978
BIBER Financial guarantees - - 71917 - - - - - Lukiv
fETA-EEFE Derivative - net settlement
EEREMETRBEHTAETE Trustand other loans related derivatives (Note)
i3] - 82000 - - 97299 - - - 91299

(KfaE) : EEREMET *HE’?@TEI,E:K‘JHJ?ETE@TEHJ?A
RRESRHATREEE - EERIAE A RRARE
s EESAERS
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(Note): The expected contractual cash outflow upon the maturity of the trust and other loans
related derivatives are subject to change which are linked to the selling prices or
valuation of equity interest of the relevant project companies.
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41. ﬁpﬂ\l L (48) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(f) REBESRRRG (f) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RZF-=F
+=A=1-A RUBRETR
il &%
Carrying amount IEN £ Total
Hi at 31 December 02607 B1Z180R 18123658 1205 1E3F O undiscounted
Interest rate 2012 (-60days  61to180days  181to 365 days 1-2 years 2-3 years 3years cash flows
ARETFT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Fitemas Non-derivative financial liabilities
Tit& Non-interest bearing - 3,003,265 3,003,265 - - - - - 3,003,265
EEIA Fixed interest rate instruments 28%-19% 2,785,670 57,047 922,719 8814% 1093805 - - 2955147
2EIE Variable interest rate instruments 6.15%-24.2% 6,079,738 90676 11913 1,576,684 2,936,103 1,531,066 1,353,081 7,705,523
BIBER Financial guarantees - - - - 1,667,29 - - - 166729
fETA-EEFE Derivatives - net settlement
EEREBETRBITETE Tustand other loans related derivatives (note)
(Hizt) - 85,000 - - - 126,960 - - 126960

(BfaE) : EEREMEFAERITE TARIMENTAEE

RBSmL A AL - HERER A RRARE
ISR ERS

PR BERENBENEEREER
BFTRERBRAT » AEERBELZHA]
“%E%%ﬁi%(%ifﬁi%ﬁﬂ’]ﬂ—mﬁgﬁ o 1R
EEMEHRNEAY  AEERREAR
T)%Z?T?FHME’M%%@@%& TR A
AR T 5 F T IRBERIE W RIER AT RE
EMAMRE - MiEHRER R BRI
HURTA S 3 77 P 5 JE 42 (R B 755 & W kIR
HIREEEBAR LN -

B (RE)BERAR | —T—=FFH

(Note): The expected contractual cash outflow upon the maturity of the trust and other loans
related derivatives are subject to change which are linked to the selling prices or
valuation of equity interest of the relevant project companies.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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(g) BREEMEEDAFENBOHLE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(g) Fair value of the Group's financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial liabilities are measured at fair value at

the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair values of these financial liabilities are determined (in

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

R-B-zf£
t=B=t-A BEEREA
HATE fEERER BRENTEZ
Fair value IEBEATER BERAER Bz
asat  ATEMR  Valuation BAZE Relationship of
SRER 31 December  Fairvalue technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs HRE
Financial liabilties 213 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs fo fair value Sensitivity
ARBTR
RMB'000
WETETARGRRR IR 8200 £=4 Monte Carlo RHEEBEARALE REAERERS HRERINEREEERL
AERERRAETRBITET NEEERERDER LYERR 7t/ Ths% - MAELA
A IZHNMEAEE  WEeE- 4 SRl
BEEMH ERR fIETANATERDA
% KB SEINAR 49,800 0007
A ARHT3000007 °
Embedded derivatives classified as trust Level 3 Monte Carlo. The underlying asset value consisted  The higher the underlying ~ If the underling asset value to the
and other loans related derivatives in the of the value of unsold properties asset value, the higher  valuation model is 5% higher/
condensed consolidated statement of The key inputs are: and the total realised revenue of ~ the fair value. lower, while all the other
financial position underlying asset the project. variables were held constant, the
value, risk free rate, fair value of embedded derivatives
volatility discount rate would increase by RMBS,800,000
and decrease by RMB7,300,000,
respectively.

REABREEERERE RRAR ATE  WRELA/ TR WHE

oo} ¢y

BAXBRORENERE A5« 2R g ANE
EERRE NT TETAMATERAS
3067%ZM4.17% SEMARE3 500000
D ARE21000007T °
Volatility is the adjusted annualised  The higher the volatility, ~ If the volatility is 5% higher/lowr,
standard deviation of the the higher the fair while all the other variables were
continuously compounded rates of  value. held constant, the fair value of
daily return on the daily adjusted embedded derivatives would
share price, ranging from 39.67% increase by AMB3,500,000 and
t044.17% decrease by RMBZ,100,000,
respectively.

196

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013



41. €@ I ) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(g) BREBEEHEEDAFEEFENAE (g) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are

Es@mEENAFE®E) measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)
R=Z-=f
tZh=1-A BEEZHA
WATE EERER BEENTEL
Fair value IEBEATE BERABE Bz
asat  ATERF Valuation BALE Relationship of
SRER 31 December  Fairvalue technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs HRE
Financial liabilities 013 higrarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs o fair value Sensitivity
ARETT
RMB'000

PERUNEITRRRE  AERZTARBN MERELA/THS
EraBmzmongten  ORRZAR.  ARLBRERTE AN

BT - NF1980% NHERE - T TRHDFERD
ENT5% A AR 102000007 K

SEMAR K1 5000007 «

Discount rate for lack of The higher the discount I the discount rate is 5% higher/

marketabilty, determined by rate for fack of lower, while all the other variables
reference to the share price of marketability, the were held constant, the fair value
listed entities in similar industries,  lower the fair value. of embedded derivatives would
ranging from 19.84% to 22.75%. decrease by AMB10,200,000

and increase by RMB11,500,000,

respectively.

BER-ZZT—=F+"-A=+—HB&™ Based on the market data as at 31 December 2013, the directors of
SHIE  ARAEETRANPFHREKIEL  the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
BIERATERENSREENSHAMEBA  and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial

FREEFEIEATE - statements approximate their fair values.
F=FeHBEATETENYIER Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
liabilities

EREREMER

HEETET A

Trust and

other loans

related derivatives

AR¥T T

RMB’000

R-ZE—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 (85,000)

Bz Gain in profit or loss 3,000
R-_E—=F+-"A=+—H At 31 December 2013 (82,000)
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41. TRT REuw)
F=MERMEELAFEFENEER®)

ABRREBENFRAKRZAES - AR
3,000,000 CE2 A B AR & HA R B AT 512
AREMERBEITETESR -

42, AATHHBER
(a) ARFAMBRRNABER :

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or loss, RMB3,000,000
relates to trust and other loans related derivatives held at the end of
the current reporting period.

42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Financial information of the financial position of the

Company
—BE-—=F —E—_F
2013 2012
ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Yz - B K EE Property, plant and equipment 445 1,080
NGO = Investments in subsidiaries 610,247 166,099
FEUS B B A Bk I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,813,350 1,310,116
5,424,042 1,477,295
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JRE M B ok % ELAth FE MR IR Accounts and other receivables, deposits
e MBI RIE and prepayments 3,034 2,864
IRTTER IR Bank balances and cash 1,241,590 394,499
1,244,624 397,363
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERTBR RN N BRI 2 Accounts payable and accrued charges 25 34,724
FEREB R RFE Amount due to subsidiaries 1,032,287 -
IRITER——FAZH Bank borrowings — due within one year = 375,840
1,032,312 410,564
REBEE(RE)FE NET CURRENT ASSET (LIABILITY) 212,312 (13,201)
BEERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,636,354 1,464,094
BARRGEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&N Share capital 487,896 467,370
G Reserves 1,079,726 996,724
PR TOTAL EQUITY 1,567,622 1,464,094
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BREE Senior notes 3,137,901 -
RITER — —F1& 5 H Bank borrowings — due after one year 930,831 -
4,068,732 1,464,094
5,636,354 1,464,094
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(Continued)

42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(b) ARQREXRZERE : (b) Movement of capital and reserves of the Company
HERE
BA RiDEE BRERE Capital ~ ZFTE#E
Share Share  Shareoption  contribution  Accumulated ekl
capital premium reserve reserve osses Total
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBT:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-——%—-F—H At1 January 2012 10,449 236,442 - - (29.971) 216,920
FABEREERTER Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (55,347) (55,347)
R BAIET Capitalisation issue of shares 355,266 355,266) - - - -
BELTHRGOET Issue of shares in connection with the Listing 101,655 1,250,357 - - - 1352,012
R8T Share issue expenses - (74,798) - - - (74,798)
FERARR AR S E S SARR A 128 Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments - - - 25,307 - 25,307
RZE——F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2012 467,310 1,056,735 - 25,307 (85,318) 1,464,094
FNEERZERY S Loss and total comprehensive expense for the
year - - - - (64,040) (64,040)
RnET Issue of shares 20,526 281377 - - - 307,903
BB AR EE W ARMTE  Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments - - 36,581 1124 - 44,305
BARE Dividend paid - (184,640 - - - (184,640)
R=8-=f+=f=+-A At31 December 2013 4789 1159472 36,581 B (149358) 1567622
(c) RHBATIKRE (¢) Investments in subsidiaries
—B-=F —T——F
2013 2012
AR®TR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
JE ETIE D (IRHEE R AN) Unlisted share, at deemed cost 610,247 166,099

(d) PEU(FESS) BB D RIFIE (d) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries
FEUW(FER) B ATIZIE A& - £ The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
B RERFEENRE - and no fixed repayment term.

interest-free
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42, KD RINEEER @)

(e) iﬁ fElTA

RZT——F  ARa—HERITEA
—EEE fﬁ*”)\ﬁmew 800,0007T * 1
ZEAIFAE12(EA - 132188 A X 19%24
flﬂaﬁifruf"ﬁuﬂ%r 10E K128 -
ENBEERRER Tz&ﬁmﬂmzsooo
BRARBROER  WHKKRRRE
HERIRR A RER -

ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁ?&ﬁ o RITE
RER T =FXHEE -
R-Z—=F+tANB  ARR({ERE
%KH)&$ AETEREHBRR(ER
P ERA) B—EY B EE(ERER
T)TERTT DRIRE &K o

iE@%fmﬁ%WEmlmﬁwﬁg &l
& 4A%849156,500,0003% T © 2 A6

: (.)%rz F& $#£75,000,000% 7T : &
(|| )BT ER D A 636,000,000 7T © &4
BRHASREERBZET LA B®EE
=F  WIRBBRITREFRBRLES
RITRIZEIT B EING.65FB M FFIEETE -
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42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(e) Bank borrowing

In 2011, the Company borrowed from a bank for a fixed-rate
borrowing of RMB469,800,000 at 8%, 10% and 12% per annum
for first 12 months, 13 to 18 months and 19 to 24 months,
respectively as stipulated in the agreement. The loan was secured
by 115,128,000 shares of the Company beneficially owned by the
Ultimate Shareholders and guaranteed by the shareholder companies
beneficially owned by the Ultimate Shareholders.

Such security and guarantee were released upon the Listing. The bank
borrowing was fully repaid in 2013.

On 8 July 2013, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as initial guarantors, entered into the
Syndicated Loan Agreement with a group of financial institutions as
lenders (the “Lenders”).

The Syndicated Loan is a dual-currency term loan facility with an
aggregate amount of approximately US$156.5 million divided into two
tranches: (i) United States dollars tranche with an aggregate amount
of US$75 million; and (ii) Hong Kong dollars tranche with an aggregate
amount of HK$636 million, with final maturity of three years from
the date of the Syndicated Loan Agreement and interest of LIBOR or
HIBOR plus 5.65% per annum.
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43. TEMBATFE

—E-_F+A=1+—HANFBEET

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AAFINEERBARTNR-_Z—=F% Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013
and 2012 are set out below:

LU
r5E
W+ZR=+-H
BAUTZAYE:LE ) FElbkiE
=p: Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE S2HE
HENBARLHE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of direct subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activity
—E-=F T _F
2013 2012
% %
ERARAT] BRAHE 100 100 HMER BB RERR
Xu Sheng Limited “E-—FRANAB 50000%7  Hong Kong Investment holding
BVI ERENEL
9May 2012 Registered USD50,000
paid up capital USD1
T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BauiZAvE:LE )4 Felb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BETREERA  REHE
G YNTE Place and date of the Group at Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TEEH
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=fF “T——F
2013 2012
% %
HRZRERARNAMTE) E 100 100 HMER  E FiERE
Beijing Wangxin Property Co. Ltd. ~ —ZTF=4 AR100000007c  PRC Property development
(note TZANB EHER
PRC AR 10,0000007C
8 December 2003 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFHB @

(Continued)

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
“+ZA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )4 FElb g
=z Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—2-=F —F--F
2013 2012
% %
ERERNEERARRAE  HE 100 100 AMER  E MEER
Beijing Xudong Property I 3 AR30000007  PRC Property management
Management Co., Ltd. (note) TRA=1—H BHER
PRC AR 3,000,007
31 May 2002 Registered
RMB3,000,000
paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
TRBERREXARAR  HE 100 100 AMER  hE FHERE
(FfsE) —E-CF ARE10000000T  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shuntai Property +-A+-H EHER
Co. Ltd. note) PRC ARE10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
FTREBEMEXERAR  H 100 100 afiEgR FHERE
(PizE) —T——f AR™1000000007c  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Shunxin Property +-A+=H EHER
Co., Ltd. (note] PRC AR 100,000,007
12 December 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
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(Continued)

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )4 FElb g
=z Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-=fF —T——F
2013 2012
% %
FTREEGAEXERAR HE 80 80 afigx  HE FiERE
Ci9) —T——F AEH1000000000C  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Sunshine Property —-A+=H ERAR
Co., Ltd. (note] PRC A %60,000,0007C
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB80,000,000
TREERNEXARAE  PE 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(M) “TTNE ARE1000000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingke Property NATZH FHEKR
Co., Ltd. [note] PRC A 100,000,007
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
TRIBERBESAERAR  TE 100 100 FMER  E FHERE
(K3E) —E——F ARH10000000  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingsheng Property ~ATAE BHER
Co. Ltd. note) PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
16 June 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFE @) 43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
W+ZRA=t-H
TR R FElb kg
HE Equity interest attributable to ERTRERRAE S5
RENBARAHE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
ZE-=fF —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
TrEERREXARAE  PE 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
(K3E) ZEENEF ARH1000000007c  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuhui Xingteng Property NA+ZH FHER
Co., Ltd. (note PRC ARE100,000,0007T
12 August 2009 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
FTRBREXRERAR (M) 100 - SfiER FEiERE
Beijing Xuke Property Co., Ltd [note) —F—=4% ARE200000000  PRC Property development
=AthA EHER
PRC ARE20,000,0007T
19 March 2013 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
R BENE SRR AT " 100 100 AR BE FHERE
(K3E) “T——F AEH100000007c  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxingcheng Property —A+=H BHEXR
Co., Ltd. note) PRC A #£10,000,0007T
13 January 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F£E
W+=ZR=t-H
TR R FelbRiE
HE Equity interest attributable to BREIRARRE S2u%
B ARBE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
ZE-=f —FT-——fF
2013 2012
% %
tRBEEEEER AT " 100 100 HMER  BE FHERE
(K3E) “TCF AR#100000007c  PRC Property development
Beijing Xuxinglong Property Co. Ltd. ~ +=F+—H EHER
(note) PRC A #10,000,0007T
11 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
ERKBEXARAR (M) +E 100 100 #fER  HE FEiERE
Beijing Yongxu Property Co,, Ltd. ~ —ZZM4E AR®200000007c  PRC Property development
(note) MARA BEHAR
PRC AR E20,000,0007T
5 April 2004 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
Y SERUEREERAR + 100 100 ZfiEAR FiERE
(og3) “TCF ARE100000000  PRC Property development
Changsha Dingzun Real Estate +-A~E BEHEXR
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC AE#10,000,0007T
6 December 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFE @) 43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

3L
RTZA=1—H
BajAvE Y JEfGRIE
R Equity interest attributable to ERTREGERA  EEHI
Gl ENTEL Place and date of the Group at Issuedand fully paid ~ Place of TRER
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
8-z “T--F
2013 2012
% %
OFEERNERE Bl 100 100 #fER  HE FEiERE
BRAR(H) —T——F ARE100000007T  PRC Property development
Changsha Lilongchang Real Estate LA 7SA BEHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
6 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
ROUBEHEREERAR + 100 100 AftEx FiERE
(Fi3zE) —T——F AEH1000000007  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuhai Real Estate ~ATH EHEX
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AE100,000,0007T
10 June 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
ERENEHEREERLR HE 100 100 SfEx  PE FHERE
(K3) —T—F AR#80000007T  PRC Property development
Chongging Xuhe Real Estate +=A=1+=A BEHER
Development Co. Limited (note) ~ PRC AR 8,000,007
22 December 2012 Registered
RMB8,000,000
paid up capital
RMBS,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
F£E
W+=ZR=t-H
TR R JEfGARIE
HE Equity interest attributable to BREIRARRE S2u%
B ARBE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid  Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F T _-F
2013 2012
% %
ROEREHEREBRAR P 100 100 HMER  BE FHERE
(FizE) “TTLE AEH500000007  PRC Property development
Changsha Xuxiang Real Estate NB=+H BHER
Development Co., Ltd. note PRC AR E50,000,0007T
20 August 2007 Registered
RMBS50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA0,000,000
EEMERNEREERAR +E 100 100 afigx  HE FHERE
Ci9) “F—F AR®200000007c  PRC Property development
Chongging Xuchang Real Estate =A+A BERAR
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC ARE20,000,0007T
10 March 2011 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
EERBEHEREERAR + 100 100 ZfiEAR FiERE
(K3E) “STHE ARH800000007T  PRC Property development
Chongging Xupeng Real Estate +AmA BEHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR £80,000,0007T
4 July 2005 Registered
RMBB0,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFHB @

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
W+ZRA=+—-H
BRIAEEDY FElbkiE
=p:t Equity interest attributable to BRIRARRE S2uE
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=fF —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
EEMYEHEREERAR TE 100 - AMER  E FEiERE
Cif9) “E-=F 290000000570 PRC Property development
Chongging Xuzhong Real Estate NATAE BERAR
Development Co., Ltd (note) PRC 168,539,9805% 7
19 August 2013 Registered
USD290,000,000
paid up capital
USD168,539,980
BELEBRAR BA 100 100 ETER  BR REER
(RIT&CIFI {Holdings) Group “E——F 1000077 Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited)) TA+ZH ERERIBTL
CIFI Enterprises Co. Limited Hong Kong Authorised
(formerly known as 12 May 2011 HK$10,000
CIFI (Holdings) Group paid up capital HK$1
Company Limited)
JEEEERHBRAR(ME) HE 100 100 FfER  FE REAR
CIFI Group Co., Ltd. (note} “TTTF AE#600,000000T  PRC Investment holding
NA+RA EHER
PRC A 600,000,007
15 August 2000 Registered
RMBG600,000,000
paid up capital
RMBG600,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

AEHE
W+ZRA=+—-H
BaAvE Y TEfGHRIE
=p: Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S2uE
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
BNBARHEREERAR HE 100 100 afigx  HE FHERE
Ci) e Sl AR®100000007c  PRC Property development
Fuzhou Wancheng Real Estate +A+mA EHER
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC ARE10,000,0007T
14 July 2004 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
MMBEEZERAR (M) + 100 - afiEAR FiERE
Hangzhou Xuguang Property —Z-=F ARE10000000T  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd (note) ~NAZTH EHER
PRC AR E10,000,0007T
20 June 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
AERERHEREERAR + 100 100 FfiER FEHERE
i) —F——F ARH2000000007T PR Property development
Hefei Xubin Real Estate —A+hA EHER
Development Co., Ltd. (note PRC AR E200,000,0007T
19 January 2011 Registered
RMB200,000,000
paid up capital
RMB200,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFHB @

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

3L
W+ZRA=+—H
BaAvE =Y FEfGHRIE
=p:t Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S20E
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
BREBEHEREBRAR + 100 100 afigR FHERE
Ci) S AR®500000007c  PRC Property development
Hefei Xuhai Real Estate +—A+=-8 ERAR
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC ARE50,000,0007T
12 November 2007 Registered
RMB50,000,000
paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
SEERFEHEREERAR HE 100 - afEx  HE FiERE
(FitzE) —T-=F AEH100000007  PRC Property development
Hefei Xuwan Real Estate ~AtH EHEK
Development Co., Ltd note) PRC AZ 10,000,007
7 June 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
HERREXEEARAF  HE 100 100 iftER  hE FHER%
(K3E) “EERE ARH500000007T  PRC Property development
Hunan Longsheng Property iz I = BHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. note) PRC A 50,000,007
29 May 2006 Registered
RMBS50,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA50,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

r5E
W+ZRA=+—-H
BRIAEEDY Felb kg
=p: Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S2uE
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—g-=F —F-_-F
2013 2012
% %
HEREEHEREERAR TE 80 - AMER  HE FHERE
Ci) “E—-F ARH350000000C  PRC Property development
Hunan Ronghui Real Estate +=-A+/N\R BHEAR
Development Co., Ltd note) PRC AR E28,000,0007T
18 December 2012 Registered
RMB35,000,000
paid up capital
RIVIB28,000,000
REMAEFARRA(ME) PE 100 - AR BE FHERE
Jiaxing Xucheng Property Co., Ltd ~ —ZE—=% 60,000000%7c  PRC Property development
(note) +—H—H BHEAR
PRC -
1 November 2013 Registered
USD60,000,000
paid up capital -
REMAEEERARA(WE) & 100 - AMER FHERME
Jiaxing Xuling Property Co., Ltd (note) —F—=4 250000007  PRC Property development
=ARA E&ER
PRC 25,000,000 7
6 March 2013 Registered
USD25,000,000
paid up capital
USD25,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFE @) 43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

AEE
Rt=A=1-F
BRIAEEDY Felb kg
=p: Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S2uE
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
ERBEHLEERARAT o 100 100 AMER MEERE
Ci) —F—F AR®50000000c  PRC Property management
Jiaxing Xumei Business —-A-tH ERAR
Management Co., Ltd. [note) PRC AR 5,000,007
20 January 2011 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
DBEMEXERARME) + 100 - AfMER & BHEMRE
Shanghai Fengxu Property Co., Ltd ~ —FE—=% ARH9000,0007  PRC Property development
(note) +ZA=1+®H EHER
PRC AR 9,000,0007C
25 December 2013 Registered
RMB3,000,000
paid up capital
RMB9,000,000
LEEREMERRLT  HE 5 5 wfian  +E RHERS
(K3E) “TTHE AR#1700000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Haiji Real Estate Co, Ltd. = A+—A BHEAR
(note) PRC AZ90,100,0007C
11 March 2005 Registered
RMB170,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,100,000
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(Continued)

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

AEHE
W+ZRA=+—-H
BaAvE Y TEfGHRIE
=p: Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S2uE
NG ES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
DEEERAEXERERAR HE 100 100 AMER  HE REAR
Ci) —F—F 10000,000%7c  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Hanpuka Commercial NAT+H EHER
Management Co., Ltd. [note) PRC 10,000,000 7T
17 August 2011 Registered
USD10,000,000
paid up capital
USD10,000,000
LERBEHERRERAR PE 755 755 AMER  hE FHERE
(K3E) —TTRF ARE10000000T PR Property development
Shanghai Tongshuo Real Estate —A-AH BHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR T 50,0007
1 February 2005 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB7,550,000
LEMBEHERRAR i 100 100 FfiER FEiERE
(K3E) “TE=F ARH800000007C  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinbo Real Estate Co., Ltd = A+=H EHER
(note) PRC AR E80,000,0007T
13 March 2003 Registered
RMBB80,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB80,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFE @) 43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

F5E
W+ZRA=+—-H
BaAvE Y TEfGHRIE
=p: Equity interest attributable to BERIRARRE S2uE
kNGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
TEBREXERARAR 100 100 afigR FHERE
Ci) —ANE AR®300000000c  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xinchen Property MA+HA EHEXR
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC ARE30,000,0007T
14 April 1998 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
PENERETIRARAE  HE 100 100 AR BE MERR
(K3) “TTHE AKH600000007c  PRC Property construction
Shanghai Xinzhi Construction tA=+H BHEAR
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AZ 60,000,007
20 July 2005 Registered
RMBG0,000,000
paid up capital
RMBG0,000,000
LEEREXARARA(NE) HE 100 - FfER  FE FEERE
Shanghai Xubai Property Co, Ltd ~ —Z—=% AR5,0000007T  PRC Property development
(note) —AAA BEHAR
PRC AR 5,000,007
5 January 2013 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 FElb g
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E-=F —F-_&
2013 2012
% %
LERAEXARARA () + 100 100 AftEx H FHERE
Shanghai Xubang Property Co., Ltd. —F——% AR300000007  PRC Property development
(note) mA+mE BHER
PRC AR #30,000,0007C
14 April 2011 Registered
RIMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
PRREEXARAR(MEE) +E 100 100 AMER  HE FHERE
Shanghai Xubo Property —T-EF ARE100000000  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note) HATMEA BEHER
PRC A 100,000,007
14 May 2010 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
LRRRIEXARAR(MEE) +E 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
Shanghai Xuchuang Property —TEtF AE®60,0000007T,  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note NA+—H BHER
PRC AZ%60,000,0007C
11 September 2007 Registered
RMBG0,000,000
paid up capital
RIVB60,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFHB @

(Continued)

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 Felb kg
=) Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=fF —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
HERERHEREERAR HE 100 100 afiEAx  HE FiERE
Ci9) “ZTHE AK800000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xufeng Real Estate —A-+HA BEHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. [note] PRC AR E80,000,0007T
25 January 2005 Registered
RIVIB80,000,000
paid up capital
RMBB0,000,000
FPRREEXARARA(MEE) +E 100 - AMER  E FHERE
Shanghai Xugen Enterprise Co, L4~ —F—=% ARH10000007c  PRC Property development
(note) +—A%H BEHER
PRC AR H1,000,0007C
5 November 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
LERNEXBRAR(ME) HE 100 100 HftER HE FHERE
Shanghai Xuhe Property Co., td. ~ —ZF——4% AK#10000,000T  PRC Property development
(note) +RA=+mA BHENR
PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
24 October 2012 Registered
R\MB10,000,000
paid up capital
RB10,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 FElb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
LBRBRESHABRAR  FE 100 100 afigx  HE REER
Ci9) ZETRE ARH1600000007t  PRC Investment holding
Shanghai Xuhui Investment Advisory ~ +— AAB EHER
Co., Ltd. note] PRC A 160,000,007
9 November 2006 Registered
RMB160,000,000
paid up capital
RMB160,000,000
TRREEXARAA(MGE) +E 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
Shanghai Xuhui Property ZEENEF AR350000000c  PRC Property development
Co. Ltd. (note) TA+HEH EHER
PRC AE 35,000,007
14 October 2009 Registered
RMB35,000,000
paid up capital
RMB35,000,000
DEREERERARA(NEH) + - 100 AR F FHERS
Shanghai Xujia Property Co., Ltd. ~ —ZF——4 AE#10,0000007,  PRC Property development
(note) ~EZt=H EHENR
PRC AR 10,0000007C
23 June 2011 Registered
RIMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
“+ZA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 TEfGHRIE
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
TEBREBERAER G 100 100 AMER  hE MEEE
BRNE () “2-TF AEE200000007  PRC Property management
Shanghai Xumei Business ~ANB EHER
Investment Management PRC ARE20,000,0007T
Co., Ltd. (note) 8June 2010 Registered
RIMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
LBRAEXARARA(MEE) +E 100 100 HMER  E FHERE
Shanghai Xuming Property —T-%F ARE1000000007  PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (note) +-A=1+NH BHEKR
PRC A 100,000,007
28 December 2010 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
DBEBERARAR(MEE) + 100 g AR FHERE
Shanghai Xupu Property Co., Ltd. ~ —ZFZ= AK#£30000,000T  PRC Property development
(note) +—AEH BEHAR
PRC AZ 30,000,007
5 November 2003 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaAYE =Y JE(h AE
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
LERREXARAR(FE) + 100 100 AftEx H FHERE
Shanghai Xugiang Property Co, Ltd. —F——% AR®100000007c  PRC Property development
(note) NATNE BHER
PRC ARE10,000,0007T
19 September 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
DBRREHELLERAR + 100 100 afiEAR REEHERERS
(op3) “ETRE AR10000007c  PRC Provision of property agency
Shanghai Xusheng Real Estate +—-A=-t+tH BEER service
Agency Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 1,000,007
27 November 2006 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
LBEREXBRAR(NE) HE 100 - FfER  PE FHERE
Shanghai Xusuo Enterprise Co., Ltd  —Z—=% ARKE1,0000007T  PRC Property development
note) +—AEH BERAR
PRC ARE1,000,0007C
5 November 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 FElb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
LEEREHEERAR HE 100 100 AftER HE FHERE
Ci9) “Z-%F AR®590000000T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Xutai Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ +—AHE EHER
(note] PRC AR #59,000,0007C
5 November 2010 Registered
RIMB59,000,000
paid up capital
RMB59,000,000
PRRBREXARAR(MEE) & 100 100 HMER & FHERE
Shanghai Xutong Property Co., Ltd.  —F—Zf ARE10,000000c  PRC Property development
(note) NANB ERER
PRC A 10,000,007
8 August 2012 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
LERAEXARAR(NE) HE 100 100 HfER  HE FHERE
Shanghai Xuwei Property Co. Ltd. ~ —F——4% ARE5,0000007T  PRC Property development
(note) +-A+8 BHENR
PRC AR 5,000,007
10 December 2012 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
W+ZR=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 TEfGHRAE
=) Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—B-=f 2%
2013 2012
% %
HBBHERARAR(MEE) 100 100 AftEx H FHERE
Shanghai Xuxiang Property Co.Ltd. —Z——% AR#50000000  PRC Property development
(note) +ZATH EHER
PRC AR 5,000,007
10 December 2012 Registered
RMB5,000,000
paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
LERREXERARA (M) HE 100 - FMER  HE EiERE
Shanghai Xuxie Enterprise Co, Ltd ~ —E—=% ARE10000000c  PRC Property development
note) HA=H BHEAR
PRC AR 1,000,007
3 May 2013 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
LBREEXERARE) + 100 100 AftEx A FHERE
Shanghai Xuyu Property Co. Ltd. “E——fF AR®440000007c  PRC Property development
(note —RA+Z=H EHER
PRC AR 44,000,000 7T
12 January 2011 Registered
RMB44,000,000
paid up capital
RMBA44,000,000
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43. FEMBATAFHB @

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

AEHE
W+ZRA=+-H
BaAYE U= JE(hAE
= Equity interest attributable to BETRBRRA A2
NGRS Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
—E2-=F —F--F
2013 2012
% %
LBERRERER il 100 100 AftEx H R AR
AR (FE) “RTCF ARE1,0000000  PRC Provision of
Shanghai Yijian Architectural NA+ZH EHER consultancy services
Design & Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC ARE1,000,0007C
(note) 12 August 2002 Registered
RMB1,000,000
paid up capital
RMB1,000,000
DEKERHEREERAR HE 100 100 AftER HE FiERE
(K3E) “TT-F AK#80000007T  PRC Property development
Shanghai Yonghui Real Estate MA+AR BEHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR 8,000,0007T
18 April 2001 Registered
RMB8,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
FEIEERERRE  HE 100 100 AMER  E MEER
(FiizE) “TECF AEE100000007  PRC Property management
Shanghai Yongsheng Property TA=+-H EHER
Management Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AZ%10,000,0007C
31 May 2002 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
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T5E
“+ZA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 TEfGHRIE
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
AERZEXAERAR(ME) +E 100 - AftER HE FHERE
Shenyang Xuquan Property Co, Ltd =T —=% AR®100000007c  PRC Property development
(note) +A=1+-A EYER
PRC ARE10,000,0007T
21 October 2013 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
FMNBREXERAR(MEE) +E 100 100 FMER  HE FHERE
Suzhou Xu Ming Property —E--F ARH560,0000000  PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (note) TA-tAR BHER
PRC AR 560,000,0007T
29 May 2012 Registered
RMB560,000,000
paid up capital
RMB560,000,000
HNBAEEERAR () + 100 - afigx FiERE
Suzhou Xubang Property Co, Ltd ~~ —FE—=% ARE20,000000c  PRC Property development
(note) NA+TZH EHEX
PRC AR 20,000,007
12 September 2013 Registered
RIMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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(Continued)

43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 FElb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
FNBEEEXBRAR (W) & 100 - AfER FiERE
Suzhou Xufeng Property Co., Ltd “E-=F ARE20,000000c  PRC Property development
(note) —R=-+=H BHER
PRC A 20,000,007
22 February 2013 Registered
RIMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
HNBESHESAERAR B 100 100 FMER  HE FHERE
(K3E) ZEENEF AEH649000000T  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui High-Tech Property +-R=H EHER
Co., Ltd. (note) PRC AR #649,000,0007T
3 December 2009 Registered
RIMB649,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB649,000,000
HFMEEERARLAMTE) & 100 100 HMER  E FiERE
Suzhou Xuhui Property Co. Ltd. (note) —FT+4 AEH1400000000c  PRC Property development
=A+=H EHER
PRC AR H140,000,0007C
13 March 2007 Registered
RMB140,000,000
paid up capital
RMB140,000,000
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T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaAYE =Y TEfGHRIE
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
FNEBREEXERAR HE 100 100 afigx  HE FHERE
Ci9) “ETNE AR®1910000000c  PRC Property development
Suzhou Xuhui Xingteng Property +-A=E EHER
Co., Ltd. [note) PRC AR #191,000,0007C
3 December 2009 Registered
RMB191,000,000
paid up capital
RMB191,000,000
FNBRREZABRAR  H 100 - HfER Rt ARE
GES) —Z-=F ARHE500000T  PRC Provision of consultancy
Suzhou Xuying Investment Advisoy ~ +A+H EHER services
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AE 5000007
10 October 2013 Registered
RMB500,000
paid up capital
RMB500,000
ELERE EHERE i 80 80 AftEx A FHERE
BRAE() “E——F ARK#100000007  PRC Property development
Tangshan Xuhui Yiwen Real Estate ~ + A+ H BHEX
Development Co. Ltd. (note) PRC AR 8,000,007
7 July 2011 Registered
RMB10,000,000
paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

T5E
W+ZRA=+-H
BaliZAvE:LE )3 FElb kg
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
REMEEEERE th 51 51 SfiER FiERE
BRNE () “2-TF ANEE61,2245007T  PRC Property development
Tianjin Shijixing Real Estate MA+7~A EHER
Development Co. Limited note) ~ PRC ARE31,224,5007T
16 April 2010 Registered
RMBG61,224,500
paid up capital
RMB31,224,500
REBREIEEXEER " 100 100 AMER  hE FHERE
BRAR (M) —E-CF 20000000%77  PRC Property development
Tianjin Xu Bin Creative Industrial tA=-+HA BHEAR
Park Managements Limited (note)  PRC 20,000,000 T
25 July 2012 Registered
1SD20,000,000
paid up capital
1SD20,000,000
REMBEHEREERAR + 100 100 FfiER FEiERE
(B2) & ARH1000000007C  PRC Property development
Tianjin Xuhai Real Estate NAEA BEHER
Development Co. Ltd. (note) PRC AR E100,000,0007T
5 August 2011 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

REHE
W+ZRA=+-H
BaAYE =Y TEfGHRIE
A Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
Gl ENGIES Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=F —T-——F
2013 2012
% %
RETEBRERH i 100 - afiER R AR
BREFAR () “T-=F ARH500000T PR Provision of consultancy
Wuhan Xurun Investment Advisory TAZ+IH EHER services
Co., Ltd (note) PRC AR 500,000
29 May 2013 Registered
RMB500,000
paid up capital
RMB500,000
EFKABXRREBRAR HE 100 100 HfER  HE EiERE
(K3E) —ANEF ARH45000000  PRC Property development
Xiamen Yongsheng Enterprise +—A=+H BHER
Development Co., Ltd. note) PRC AR E45,000,0007T
20 November 1997 Registered
RMBA45,000,000
paid up capital
RMB45,000,000
EFTXANERBERLR FE 100 100 SfER  PE MEER
(K3) —WN\EF AE#300000007T  PRC Property management
Xiamen Yongsheng Property T—A+=H BEHER
Services Co., Ltd. note] PRC A #30,000,0007T
13 November 1995 Registered
RMB30,000,000
paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

fBEER (KRB BRAR | —2—=FF#K
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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T5E
“+ZA=+-H
BaAYE U= TEfGHRAE
=) Equity interest attributable to BEIRBRRA A2
HEHBAREE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid ~ Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
. e
2013 2012
% %
85 (BE)ERAR Bk 100 100 ETER  BE REER
Xu Ming (HK) Limited “E——fF 10,0007 Hong Kong Investment holding
NAZ++tA ERERIATL
Hong Kong Authorised
27 September 2011 HK$10,000
paid up capital HK$1
JBEBRAR] RERUEE 100 100 afEgx Bk RERR
Xu Ming Limited —E——F 50,0003t HongKong Investment holding
NA=1H EgENER
BVI Registered
20 September 2011 USD50,000
paid up capital USD1
B B REBMBRRR HE 100 100 SR SE AR
(K3) “TTHE ARH20000007T  PRC Investment holding
Xukai (Shanghai) Investment mANE BHER
Consultant Co., Ltd. note] PRC AR E20,000,0007T
8 April 2005 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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REHE
W+ZR=+-H
TR R FEfGRIE
R Equity interest attributable to ERIRGERA  REHE
B ARBE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid  Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
“E-=fF —FT-—_f
2013 2012
% %
MLBEEXBRARA (M) +E 100 100 HMER  E FHERE
Zhejiang Xuhui Property Co, Ltd. ~ —FTRF AZRH1000000007  PRC Property development
(note) NB=+=H FHER
PRC AE#100,000,0007C
23 August 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
BIMEIEERE i 100 100 SfiER FHERE
BRAE () “TE\F AEE200000007  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xujiang Real Estate ~~ — A70H BEREAR
Development Co., Ltd. (note] PRC ARE20,100,0007T
4 February 2008 Registered
RMB20,000,000
paid up capital
RMB20,100,000
BImERRERE " 100 100 AMER  E FHERE
BRAR(HE) —T-TF ARH500000007T  PRC Property development
Zhenjiang City Xurun Real Estate tA+hAH BHEAR
Development Co., Ltd. note) PRC A #50,000,0007T
19July 2010 Registered
RMBS50,000,000
paid up capital
RIMB50,000,000
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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REHE
W+ZR=+-H
BauIZAvE:LE )54 FElE g
HE Equity interest attributable to BETRARRA KLEm
B ARBE Place and date of the Group at Issued and fully paid  Place of TEEK
Name of indirect subsidiary incorporation 31 December share capital  operation Principal activities
ZE-=F —T——&
2013 2012
% %
REEHEREBRAR i 100 100 FHER FiERE
(P3E) ZEERE AE#1000000007c  PRC Property development
Zhongshi Real Estate Development ~ +— AP0 A EHEAR
Co., Ltd. note) PRC AE#100,000,0007C
14 November 2006 Registered
RMB100,000,000
paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

MiEE © RS AR B MERIER RN - #E
RXERDARRRNEEER I EEEPXE
TEEK -

FRINGBEZRRIEZEFANFEAN
BRAKEEEFEBRBONAAF
MEBAR - EER A HEMHE QA
AEETREBNITE

S - AR R EEE R 46 FE R B R B
BmEERIFE 1258 B RN EHARE
1Takfh - EERA - BENB R RER
WHAUAKREBE RN IS
At - W EpLUL FIFR2ENBE AR BE
ERIER
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Note: The English names of these companies represent the best effort made by management
of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

In addition, the directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of initial application of IFRS 12 and at the end of the reporting
period. In the opinion of the directors, there is no subsidiary that have
non-controlling interest individually that are material to the Group and
therefore no information is disclosed for these non-wholly owned
subsidiaries.
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

(a)

PERIOD

On 27 January 2014, the Company issued guaranteed fixed
rate senior notes to the public at discount of 0.455% with
aggregate nominal value of US$200,000,000 (approximately
RMB1,232,400,000) (the “2014 Notes"”) which carry fixed
interest of 8.875% per annum (interest payable semi-annually in
arrears) and will be fully repayable by 27 January 2019.

The 2014 Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange. They are
unsecured, senior obligations of the Company and guaranteed
by certain of the Company’s existing subsidiaries, other than
those organised under the laws of the PRC. The guarantees
are effectively subordinated to the other secured obligations of
each guarantor, to the extent of the value of assets serving as
security.

In January 2014, the Group’s joint ventures with Greenland
Hong Kong Holdings Limited, which in respect of Hangzhou
Greenland CIFI Glorious City Project, has signed onshore and
offshore syndicated loan facilities (“Hangzhou Glorious City
Syndicated Loans"”) with a consortium of offshore and onshore
banks. The Hangzhou Glorious City Syndicated Loans comprise
(i) an offshore US dollar/Hong Kong dollar dual currency term
loan facility with an aggregate amount of approximately
US$320,000,000, with a final maturity of three years and interest
of LIBOR or HIBOR plus 4% per annum offshore term loan; and (ii)
an onshore RMB construction loan facility with a facility amount
of RMB1,000,000,000, with final maturity of three years from
the date of first utilization and interest rate of 106% times of the
People’'s Bank of China Base Rate per annum.
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BE+-A=T—AILER

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F ZZT—=—f T—4F ZIZE-TF ZTTNF
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREEERT AREBRELT ARKEAET AREBEET ARKEBER
£ RESULTS
WA Revenue 11,909 8,144 4,008 4,162 2,631
MR A Profit before taxation 2,975 2,840 2,205 1,034 711
FriSmis Income taxes expense (934) (819) (742) (359) (262)
FERFE Profit for the year 2,01 2,021 1,463 675 449
AT AL - Attributable to;
Vi/NCIEZ 2 =N Owners of the Company 1,894 1,937 1,338 474 342
FEIERR = Non-controlling interests 147 84 125 201 107
2,041 2,021 1,463 675 449
R G Core net profit attributable to
LAy bE equity owner 1,519 921 489 391 310
FRERZF Earnings per share
AREES (basic), RMB cents 33 42 30 MEANA  TERNA
FIRERZOLEF Core earnings per share
AR (basic), RMB cents 26 20 11 TEANA  TEAN/A
EERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
B E Total assets 39,106 26,857 19,225 11,387 7522
BEEE Total liabilities (29,951) (19,916) (15,580) (8,779) (5,567)
9,155 6,941 3,645 2,608 1,955
RABHEB A Equity attributable to
FEIG IR A = owners of the Company 8,611 6,550 3,271 1835 1371
eI RS Non-controlling interests 544 391 374 773 584
9,155 6,941 3,645 2,608 1,955
232 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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